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Founding Principles
Love Your Neighbour, ;
Love Your Country,

Love Your Work. -1‘

by Kiyoshi Ichimura, Founder The Spirit of Three Loves

N3

formulated these Principles in 1946.
35S, encouraging us to constantly
ellbeing of all stakeholders,




Empowering digital workplaces

As our world keeps on changing, every office is evolving its own working
style. To keep pace with new needs which constantly emerging, our MFPs
have evolved even further. A wide range of Apps to suit many different
working styles and support for new ways to leverage your business data,
even when you're away from the office.

Digital workspaces have immense advantages and Ricoh can help you
tap into all the benefits, by tailoring them according to your needs. Our
expertise covers all kinds of businesses spanning several industry
verticals, be they traditional or modern in their approach. We completely
reimagine your existing workplace through several processes like \
workplace analysis and design and management based changes. We
implement these to positively transform the way in which you work with
the help of our quality products and technological offerings.

Ricoh improves workplaces using innovative technologies and services =
enabling individuals to work smarter. - - r—v

Ricoh invites customers to be part of

a new Green Revolution

As a company, Ricoh has always been conscious of its environmental responsibilities, as exemplified by its
philosophy of pursuing a balance between the'3 Ps' — People, Planet and Profit Now we extend this commitment
toyetanother area, and we noire our customers join hands with us.

To reduce our environmental impact, we are digitising the meter reading and billing process of customers'
printing devices by automating meter reading collection through innovative cloud-based Device Management
Software, @Remote. Ricoh is also implementing paperless e-billing via email, in addition to encouraging
customers to pay bills via electronic transfer through RTGS/NEFT.

By involving our customers, we look forward to helping them switch to digital meter reading, e-billing and
e-payment for their monthly printing - in the process, helping them become more efficient more green.

30% of
rainfall

&5 litren

Digital Meter Reading
e E-payment | E-billing




Robust cloud services for
every business need

From hosting a mobile app, e-commerce website, ERP, or any other online application, cloud services empower
users in many ways. It could be through complete office automation and document management that includes
corporate emailing, delivered via Software as a Service model. Or it could be a disaster recovery mechanism, with
automated monitoring and backup, to derisk an organisation. Ricoh Cloud Services take care of all these needs,
without the customer having to worry about capex on hardware and routine service issues.

With growing quantum of data and the need for anywhere access, cloud has |
become an attractive and logical option for today's businesses. The on-demand
scalability offered by cloud solutions provides for quick turnaround times at
optimal cost. Ricoh offers virtual private servers, dedicated servers and co-location
fromits cloud-enabled data centre in Kolkata.

Hosting in Ricoh's data centre helps customers to reduce their overall IT budget,
while also assuring better connectivity, easy disaster recovery, and improved
network security. Ricoh’s data centre enjoys many certifications such as TIER 1 DC,
ISO/IEC27001:2013, CMMI Level 5 & SOC2.

Ricoh Cloud Services offer robust, affordable, secure solutions, so that customers
can enjoy minimum latency and maximum savings, along with improved
productivity and better ROI.

RicohDocs is Ricoh India’s Office Automation & Document Management Solution. It enables customers to work
smarter — by managing their unstructured data, automating their business processes, and streamlining the flow
of their information.

RicohDocs gives the customer the choice of ‘on-premise’ solution (where the solution is hosted on the customer’s
own server), or ‘'on-cloud’ solution (where it is hosted in Ricoh’s data centre), and is offered to the customeron a
SaaS model.

The solution offers the customer an array of modules so that he can pick the one best suited for his organisational
and operational needs. These include Document management, Optical character recognition, Bulk upload, Hot
folder, Mobile applications, Process automation through workflows, MS-Office integration, Records
management, and Barcode integration. The modules can be customised based on the customer’s requirements.

With integration of RicohDocs, organisations derive multiple benefits such as data consistency, reduced
dependency, faster decision-making, and better ROI. No longer do they need to worry about managing their
document and workflow, setting them free to focus on their core business.

Office Automation &

Document Management Solution

Whatever be F:ur document warkflow
requirement, Ricoh has the right solution.




Corporate Social Responsibility —
part of the corporate DNA

Ricoh's commitment to CSR is ingrained in its culture through its founding principles — known as ‘The Ricoh Way'
—"Love your neighbour, Love your country, Love your work". The Ricoh Way defines the scope of CSR at Ricoh India to
cover three areas— corporate governance, welfare of the society, and harmony with the environment.

Social & environmental initiatives

Our CSR model is broadly divided into two parts: activities that respond to our fundamental obligation to society and
value-creating activities that have synergy with our growth strategy. These two pillars support and strengthen our
corporate value.

The Company focuses primarily on the following three programme areas with key projects/activities mentioned in-line
as follows:

e Harmony with Society:

Communication Technology (ICT), the organisation nurtured programmes as
initiated in FY 2015-16 such as 'ICT-led Education', ‘Adarsh Patra" and 'ViewFinder
Project’ in monitoring & evaluating their impact and in establishing
guidance-mechanism for sustainability of same.

CSR projects of the company got featured in the India's Best Practices in CSR Compendium by ISRN which was
launched by Hon. Minister of State (Finance & Corporate Affairs) at Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in July
2017. Additionally, the World CSR Congress 2017 recognised the representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh
India Ltd. with the Citation of '100 Most Impactful CSR Leaders in Global Listing'.

=

¢ Harmony with Environment:
EPR Authorisation by CPCB under E-waste Management Rules 2016 — Ricoh India
Ltd. was granted the Extended Producer Responsibility Authorisation as Producer of
electronic & electrical equipment in India by the Central Pollution Control Board.
The organisation informs the procedure of recycling & makes disclosures of its
e-waste collection and recycling on its website
https://www.ricoh.co.in/about/environment

As an advisory group member and signatory to the declaration of India Business & Biodiversity Initiative (IBBI),
Ricoh India Ltd. promotes sharing and learning on its 'Project Nature Watch' & 'Empowering Digital workplaces'
for paperless workflow to mainstream sustainable management of biological diversity by business.

Representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh India was invited by the Confederation of Indian Industry as
Member to the National Environment Committee in June 2017 for term 2017-18 to contribute as work-group
member of e-Waste Management & Plastic Waste management.

® Raising the Next generation:
Realising the crucial role of management education in shaping of corporate leaders of future, Ricoh India works
with premier management institutions and its faculty to conduct guest lectures for students on principles of
responsible and inclusive business so as to enable a sustainable ecosystem. Additionally, the organisation has tied
up with renowned institutions to build learning modules on efficient & effective end-of-life management to
evangelise aspect of product stewardship and circular economy.

'R-UBUNTU' was launched as an employee engagement program to promote culture of skills-based volunteerism
at the organisation. Over 1000 person-hours were contributed by employees pan-India during office-hours to
conduct activities towards sustainable society.
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NOTICE

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its affairs, business and assets are
being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT vide its Order dated 14
May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15 June 2018 under provisions of the Code.
In view, the Annual General Meeting is being convened by the Resolution Professional.

The Resolution Professional with the approval of Committee of Creditors of the Company had filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai
seeking an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in terms of Section 12(2)
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai has granted an extension of the CIRP period of the Company by further
period of Ninety (90) days vide its Order dated 30™ October 2018.

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna
Chamadia.

Notice is hereby given that the 25" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of RICOH INDIA LIMITED will be held at —

Venue | Hotel The Mirador
131/B, New Link Road, Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400099

Day Friday
Date 21 December 2018
Time 10:00 AM

To transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended as on
that date, together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider and approve not to appoint a Director in place of Mr. AT Rajan (DIN 07487969) who retires by rotation

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
therein, Mr. AT Rajan, Director being the longest-serving member on the Board retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and that
the consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded not to fill the vacancy caused due to retirement by rotation of Mr AT
Rajan.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Resolution Professional/Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

(Mr AT Rajan who after demitting Office as Managing Director and CEO of the Company on 31* March 2018 at present is on Board of the
Company as Non Independent Non Executive Director of the Company as the longest-serving member on the Board retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The vacancy caused due to retirement by rotation of Mr. AT Rajan be not filled.)

For Ricoh India Limited
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Krishna Chamadia
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-2018/11220
Resolution Professional

Place: Noida
Date: 21 November 2018
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A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/HER BEHALF. SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT
AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY.

A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY
OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 15 December 2018 to Friday, 21
December 2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change in address, change of name, bank details, National Electronics
Clearing Service (NECS), Electronics Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, e-mail address, contact numbers etc to the Company’s Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, F-65, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, Telephone
Numbers 011-41406149, Fax 011-41709881, Email ID: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com.

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate such changes to their respective Depository Participants.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant
in the securities market. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN details to their respective
Depository Participants. While, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit their PAN details with MCS Share Transfer
Agent Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the Meeting. Members/Proxies are requested to carry their identity
proof to produce at the venue of the AGM for security reasons.

Member desirous of getting any information in relation to the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 are requested to
address their query (ies) well in advance, i.e. at least 10 days before the meeting to the Company at its Corporate Office located at Noida, Uttar
Pradesh so as to enable the Management to keep the information readily available at the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Dividend amount which remain unpaid/unclaimed for a period of
Seven years is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central Government. Members who have
not encashed their dividend warrant(s) so far for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2015 are once again requested to make their claim with the
Company Secretarial Department of the Company or the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
for obtaining payment thereof.

As a measure of economy copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Members are, therefore, requested
to bring their own copies of the Annual Report at the Meeting.

Members may note that the Notice of the 25 Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 2017-2018 will also be available on the Company’s
website www.ricoh.co.in for their download.

Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request
for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id: ril.
secretarial@ricoh.co.in

Members are requested to quote their Registered Folio Number or Demat Account Number and Depository Participant (DP) ID Number while
making correspondence with MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the Company as the
case may be.

Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors authorizing their representative(s)
to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, facility for
making nominations is available to the Members in respect of shares held by them.

Nomination forms can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited by Members
holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination forms from their respective Depository
Participants (DP).

As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Members are advised to register their e-mail address with the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents of the Company in respect of shares held in physical form and with the concerned Depository Participant in respect
of Shares held in electronic form to enable the Company to serve documents in electronic form.

All documents referred to in accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company during normal business hours (10:00 AM to 5:00 PM) on all working days, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting
of the Company.
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Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2017-18 is being sent to all the Members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents/Depository Participants (DP). For Members who request for a hard copy and for those who have
not registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual Report are being sent through permitted mode.

With the aim of curbing fraud and manipulation risk in physical transfer of securities, SEBI has notified the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 on 8th June, 2018 to permit transfer of listed securities only in the
dematerialized form with a depository from 5th December, 2018. In view of the above and the inherent benefits of holding shares in electronic
form, we urge the shareholders holding shares in physical form to opt for dematerialization. Shareholders can contact the Company’s Registrar
and Transfer Agents, M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited for assistance in this regard.

Voting through electronic means:-

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(@)

(if)
(iii)
(iv)
™)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
x)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The voting period begins on <18 December 2018 at 9:00 AM (IST) > and ends on <20 December 2018 at 5:00 PM (IST)>. During
this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record
date) of <14 December 2018> may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders.

Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company,
then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip
indicated in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Details account or in the company records in order to login.

OR Date of
Birth (DOB)

e Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
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(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app
can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the
Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xx) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.
com and register themselves as Corporates.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting(@,
cdslindia.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User
would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they
would be able to cast their vote.

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
1800225533.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, *A’ Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 1800225533.

(xxi) The voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up capital of the Company as on the Cut Off date i.e
14 December 2018.

(xxii) Mr. Naresh Verma, Proprietor of Naresh Verma and Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership No. FC 5403, CP No. 4424) has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Voting process (electronically or otherwise) in a fair and transparent manner.

(xxiii) The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.ricoh.co.in and on the website
of CDSL www.cdslindia.com immediately. Further, the results along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall also be communicated to BSE
Limited where the shares of the Company are listed.

(xxiv) Facility of voting through Poll papers shall also be made available at the venue of the Annual General Meeting. Members attending
the Annual General Meeting who have not cast their vote by e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at the Annual General
Meeting.

(xxv) Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes the member of the Company after the dispatch of the AGM notice and
holding shares of the Company as on Cut Off date i.e. 14 December 2018 may follow the same instructions as mentioned above for
e-voting.

(xxvi) On receipt of the requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

For Ricoh India Limited
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Krishna Chamadia
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-2018/11220
Resolution Professional

Place: Noida
Date: 21 November 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its affairs, business and assets are
being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT vide its Order dated

14"May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15"June 2018 under provisions of the
Code.

Under Section 17 of the IBC, 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna
Chamadia.

The Twenty Fifth (25) Annual Report with the Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2018 is hereby submitted.
A. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND DISCLOSURES:

Your Directors are pleased to present the 25" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Accounts
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (INR in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Net Sales 68,059 1,21,748
Other Income 928 921
Total Income 68,987 1,22,669
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 12,353 15,866
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 56,473 88,230
Employee benefits 10,463 12,388
Other Expenses 16,482 22,285
(Loss)/Profit before interest, depreciation and exceptional items (26,785) (16,100)
Finance Cost 6,905 15,470
Depreciation and amortization 1,736 1,750
(Loss)/Profit before exceptional items and tax (35,425) (33,320)
Exceptional Items 53,890
(Loss)/Profit before tax after exceptional items (89,315) (33,320)
Tax Expense 95) 660
(Loss) after tax (89,410) (32,660)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 35 8
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (89,375) (32,652)
(Loss)/Profit Balance B/F from Previous year (1,37,058) (1,04,398)
(Loss) carried forward to Balance Sheet (2,25,468) (1,37,058)
1. DIVIDEND

In view of the loss for the period under review, no Dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company.
2. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, there has been no change in the Capital Structure of the Company.
3. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has neither given any Loan, Guarantee nor provided any Security in Connection
with a Loan, directly or indirectly, to any person or other body corporate.

The Company has also not made any investments by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, in the securities of any other body corporate
during the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

4. DEPOSITS

During the period under review, the Company has not accepted or invited any deposits from the public.



NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

The Company had raised NCDs amounting to INR 200 Crores by way of Private Placement basis in the year 2014. These INR 200 Crores
Non-Convertible Debentures were due for redemption on 10"September 2017. However, the redemption period of the NCDs were extended
to 10™ September 2018 and the Coupon Rate was also reduced to 7% from the earlier 7.8%.

The Company defaulted in making payment on Half Yearly Interest on these NCDs for the Half Year ended 10® March 2018 and 10
September 2018.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the year under review, the Company has made no transfer to reserves.
CHANGE IN REGISTERED AND CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company had moved its Registered Office to a new location within the local limits of City of Mumbai i.e.to 1132, 3* Floor, Building
No. 11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road,Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 093 while
Corporate Office of the Company was moved to 7" Floor, Tower ‘B’, Windsor IT Park, A-1, Sector 125, Noida, Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar
Pradesh — 201 301 to economise operations.

B. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

1.

INFORMATION ON CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of
Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its affairs, business
and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT
vide its Order dated 14"May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15"June
2018 under provisions of the Code. Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the
Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna Chamadia.

The Resolution Professional with the approval of Committee of Creditors of the Company had filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT,
Mumbai seeking an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in terms
of Section 12(2) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai has granted an extension of the CIRP period of
the Company by further period of Ninety (90) days vide its Order dated 30™ October 2018.

DETAILS ON THE TRADE SUSPENSION OF SHARES AND LISTING

The Company was delayed in filing its accounts for the quarter and half year ended 30"September 2015 and for the quarter and nine month
ended 31"December 2015. As a result, on 4"May 2016, BSE Limited issued a notice that the shares of the Company would be suspended with
effect from 26"May 2016 on account of non-compliance of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 for two consecutive quarters.

The Company published its financial results for the quarter and half year ended 30"September 2015 on 18"May 2016. Following the
investigations by PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited, India (PwC) and an independent investigation team which were finalised on
17"November 2016, the Company was able to progress in bringing its compliances up to date. Consequently, on 18"November 2016, the
results along with the auditor’s report for the quarter and nine months ended 315December 2015 and quarter and year ended 31March 2016
were filed with BSE Limited. On 12"December 2016 the results and auditor’s report for the quarter ended 30"June 2016 and the results and
auditor’s report for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2016 were filed with BSE Limited and those for the quarter and nine months
ended 31*'December 2016 were filed on 8"February 2017.

Having brought its compliances up to date, the Company proceeded to file an application for revocation of suspension of trading of shares of
the Company with BSE Limited on 19"December 2016. All necessary payments of penalties and filing fees were made at the same time.

BSE Limited has appealed with the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) on 215November 2016. This appeal was in
respect of the Order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) dated 30"September 2016 under which the NCLT had approved
that the Company did not need to follow Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956. BSE Limited contended that the Company should
follow such Sections and hence should have filed an advance Scheme with BSE Limited/SEBI prior to gaining NCLT approval on 23"August
2016.

The Hon’ble NCLAT disposed of the appeal of BSE Limited on 23May 2017. The Order of the NCLT stated that the Company should
comply with SEBI rules but that Sections 100 to 102 of the Companies Act, 1956 were not relevant.

As on date, the trading of Shares of the Company on BSE Limited remains suspended.
LISTING

The Shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fee for the year 2018-19 to BSE Ltd.

The Shares of the Company were placed in Z category by BSE Limited with effect from 4"May 2016 and subsequently suspended from
trading on 26"May 2016.
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The facility of trading in the shares of the Company on trade for trade basis in Z Group on the first trading day of every week was discontinued

by BSE Ltd with effect from 13"December 2016.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:
INR Crores Year ended Year ended
31t March 2018 31 March 2017
Net Sales and other income 689.9 1,226.7
(Loss) before exceptional items (354.3) (333.2)
Exceptional items 538.9 -
(Loss) before tax (893.2) (333.2)

The net sales has decreased from INR 1,226.7 Crores to INR 689.9 Crores on account to slowdown in business and decline in market share
from the previous financial year. There has been a withdrawal of support from Ricoh Japan in October 2017 which has further impacted
the ability to drive growth in the company. Furthermore, the company was severely affected by the fall in the ITS (Information Technology
Services) business segment; the company did not bid for any new projects during the financial year, ongoing projects were delayed as
collections were hindered on account of lack of investments into ITS projects during the period. Exception items increased to INR 538.9
Crores on account of doubtful deposits, debts and write offs which were incurred during the financial year.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary Company. However, IDC Electronics Limited is an Associate Company of Ricoh India Limited.
As per the requirement of Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Form AOC-1 (Statement containing salient features of financial
statement of an Associate Company) is annexed and forms part of the Directors Report as Annexure ‘H’

Performance of the Associate Company

IDC Electronics Limited

The investment in IDC Electronics Limited (IDC) is valued at INR 1 only.
HUMAN RESOURCE

At Ricoh, Human Resource Development is considered vital for effective implementation of Business Plans, Constant endeavors are being
made to offer professional growth opportunities and recognition, apart from imparting training to employees.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN 31 MARCH 2018 AND AS ON DATE

The Promoter of the Company, Ricoh Company Limited, Japan had announced in October 2017 that it will not provide any additional financial
support to Ricoh India Limited going forward. The withdrawal of financial support to the Indian Arm Ricoh India Limited by its Promoter
deeply impacted the financial position of Ricoh India Limited.

The Minority Shareholders of the Company filed a Petition before the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench under Sections 241 and 242 read with
Chapter X VI of the Companies Act, 2013. The matter is pending before NCLT.

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of
Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its affairs, business
and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT
vide its Order dated 14"May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15"June
2018 under provisions of the Code.

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna
Chamadia.

C. INITIATIVES:

1.

QUALITY INITIATIVES

In its endeavor to enhance Corporate Excellence, an org-wide quality training was conducted to impart learnings on the subject of quality
management and enable cross-pollination of best practices across regions.

Ricoh Way Values and Guiding Principles continue to guide the organisation in establishing stakeholder-oriented culture by 360-degree
approach of Customer & Partner Feedback Management Continuous Improvement (‘Each One Kaizen’), Corporate Innovation Management
(‘Ideaz 3.0’ & ‘incub@R’) and benchmarking conformance to various Quality Management Systems such as ISO27001- 2005 and CMMI
Level 4 certification standards.



Cross-functional team of volunteers was formed in July-August 2017 to conduct a baseline study on Corporate Sustainability of Ricoh India
in-line to the integrated sustainability management framework defined under global standard ISO 26000.

SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL INITIATIVES

Our CSR model is broadly divided into two parts: activities that respond to our fundamental obligation to society and value-creating activities
that have synergy with our growth strategy. These two pillars support and strengthen our corporate value.

The Company focuses primarily on the following three programme areas with key projects/activities mentioned in-line as follows:
A. Harmony with Society:

With the core belief of leveraging its competency in the domain of Information & Communication Technology (ICT), the organisation
nurtured programmes as initiated in FY 2015-16 such as ‘ICT-led Education’, ‘Adarsh Patra’ and ‘ViewFinder Project’ in monitoring &
evaluating their impact and in establishing guidance-mechanism for sustainability of same.

CSR projects of the company got featured in the India’s Best Practices in CSR Compendium by ISRN which was launched by Hon’ble
Minister of State (Finance & Corporate Affairs) at Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in July 2017.

Additionally, the World CSR Congress 2017 recognised the representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh India Ltd. with the Citation
of 100 Most Impactful CSR Leaders in Global Listing’.

B. Harmony with Environment:

EPR Authorisation by CPCB under E-waste Management Rules 2016 — Ricoh India Ltd. was granted the Extended Producer Responsibility
Authorisation as Producer of electronic & electrical equipment in India by the Central Pollution Control Board.

The organisation informs the procedure of recycling & makes disclosures of its e-waste collection and recycling on its website https://
www.ricoh.co.in/about/environment

As an advisory group member and signatory to the declaration of India Business & Biodiversity Initiative (IBBI), Ricoh India Ltd.
promotes sharing and learning on its ‘Project Nature Watch’ & ‘Empowering Digital workplaces’ for paperless workflow to mainstream
sustainable management of biological diversity by business.

Representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh India was invited by Confederation of Indian Industry as Member to the National
Environment Committee in June 2017for term 2017-18 to contribute as work-group member of e-Waste Management & Plastic Waste
management.

C. Raising the Next generation:

Realising the crucial role of management education in shaping of corporate leaders of future, Ricoh India works with premier management
institutions and its faculty to conduct guest lectures for students on principles of responsible and inclusive business so as to enable a
sustainable ecosystem.

Additionally, the organisation has tied up with renowned institutions to build learning modules on efficient & effective end-of-life
management to enhance the aspect of product stewardship and circular economy.

‘R-UBUNTU’ was launched as an employee engagement program to promote culture of skills-based volunteerism at the organisation.
Over 1,000 person-hours were contributed by employee’s pan-India during office-hours to conduct activities towards sustainable society.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors of Ricoh India Limited in its meeting held on 24"March 2014 constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee which got dissolved during the year under review on account of resignation of all of the Independent Directors of the Company
on 9" November 2017. The said Committee was re-constituted on 27" March 2018.

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan was appointed as Chairperson of the Committee while Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura (Non-Executive Director) and
Mr. Noboru Akahane (Non-Executive Director) were inducted as Members of the Committee.

On account of resignation of Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura as Director of the Company on 1** April 2018, the said Committee on 15"May 2018 was
again re-constituted with Mr. Subhankar Lahiri, Managing Director and CEO of the Company becoming Member of the said Committee in
place of Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura with Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan and Mr. Noboru Akahane as Chairperson and Member of the Committee
respectively.

Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company effective 28" September 2018.
A detailed CSR Policy has been framed which is placed on the website of the Company.
The CSR activities are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 and the Company’s CSR Policy.

Details of the CSR activities as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder are given in the CSR
Report as Annexure ‘G’ of the Directors Report.
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The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company www.ricoh.co.in at the linkhttps://
www.ricoh.co.in/RID/sites/www.ricoh.co.in/files/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf

The Company’s commitment towards social responsibility is woven into its Corporate DNA, which has always been part of the Ricoh Way,
the foundation of all of our business activities.

The Ricoh Way constitutes the basis of all corporate activities of the Ricoh Group. It comprises of Founding Principles (Love Your Neighbour,
Love Your Country, Love Your Work or The Spirit of Three Loves).

Our CSR focuses inter-alia on using our capabilities as a business to improve lives and sustain our planet through contributions to local
communities and society at large.

In other words, to fully realise our potential as a global organisation to make a better world through new value creation and innovation.

To grow as a respected enterprise, the Ricoh Group must fully discharge its CSR from a consistent global perspective and throughout
every aspect of its operations. In the context of the above, Ricoh India Limited would like to communicate its position as a Member of the
community and establish for both internal and external stakeholders, its philosophy, guiding principles and areas of focus that it would as an
organisation seek to promote in the arena of CSR.

Our CSR model is broadly divided into two parts: activities that respond to our fundamental obligation to society, and value-creating activities
that have synergy with our growth strategy. These two pillars support and strengthen our corporate value.

By embedding value-creating CSR activities into our core business processes, we make the most of our talents and resources - technologies,
products, services and employees, to help solve social issues while simultaneously fostering the growth of the Ricoh Group.

Drawing from its vision and mission statement, through CSR, Ricoh seeks to proactively engage with society by working with communities
to improve their well-being in a compassionate and sensitive manner.

The Company will focus primarily on the following three programmes:

a. Harmony with Society - Community Development / Welfare of the Society;
b. Raising the Next Generation - Education and Skills Development;

c. Harmony with Environment-Sustainable Environment Management

Further, the Company apart from the above mentioned programmes may also participate into other activity(ies) as stipulated under Schedule
VII of the Companies Act 2013.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Necessary information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure ‘F’ of the
Directors Report.

D. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors affirm:-

a) That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanations
relating to material departures. In view of the management, the observations of the auditors are not likely to have a material impact on the
financial statements. Further, in view of the management, it is impracticable to do a retrospective restatement of the financial statements
to take impact of prior period adjustments.

b) The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the Company for that period;

¢) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the interests of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The priority for the Company was to restore it’s compliance by filing financial results and also to bring timely visibility of the Company’s
performance to enable actions to be taken to address the underline operational issues.Consequently, there was limited time to address
internal control and financial reporting deficiencies. Even so, substantial improvements has been realized and improvements are ongoing..

f)  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri was appointed as Managing Director and CEO of the Company by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meetings held on 27" March 2018 effective 1* April 2018 for a period of One year i.e. till
31%March 2019.

Mr. Noboru Akahane, Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company who was appointed as the Chairman and Director of
the Company on 3"August 2017 had tendered his resignation from the Board of the Company with effect from 28"September 2018.
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Mr. Ian Winham resigned as Director / Chairman of the Company with effect from 3™August 2017.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. A. T. Rajan, Director being the longest-serving member
on the Board retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and the Resolution Professional / Directors
recommends to the Shareholders not to fill up the vacancy caused due to retirement of Mr. A. T. Rajan in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

Mr. A. T. Rajan ceased to be the Managing Director and CEO of the Company from 1 April 2018. Mr. Rajan’s tenure as Managing Director
and CEO of the Company expired on 315 March 2018. However, he continues to be a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company.

During the year Mr. U. P. Mathur, Mr. R. K. Pandey, Ms. Ashish Garg and Mr. Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Directors of the Company all of them
resigned on 9"November 2017.

Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from 21*December 2017 while Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura resigned
as Director of the Company on 1*April 2018.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27" March 2018 appointed Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan Additional
Directors (Independent Directors) of the Company with effect from 27" March 2018.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified in Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013.

In terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company took approval of its Shareholders by the way of Postal Ballot to
regularize/reappoint Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary, Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan and Mr. Subhankar Lahiri. The result of the said Postal Ballot was
declared on 28"September 2018.

During the year, non-executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

The composition of the Board, Meetings of the Board held during the year and the attendance of the Directors have been mentioned in the
Report on Corporate Governance in the Annual Report.

The Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) by
the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench dated 14th May 2018. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016,
the Powers of the Board of Directors stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Krishna Chamadia (IP Registration No.
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-2018/11220) appointed as the IRP with respect to the Company. The IRP further continued as Resolution
Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its first meeting held on 15"June 2018 under the provisions of the Code.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

None of the Directors are related to each other within the meaning of the term “relative” as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, 17 (Seventeen) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were convened and held. The details of which are given
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND OF DIRECTORS

All of the 4 Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. UP Mathur, Mr. RK Pandey, Ms. Ashish Garg and Mr. Rajiv Ahuja resigned
together on 9"November 2017. This resulted in dissolution of all of the Committees of the Board.

Mr. Ian Winham resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company on 3August 2017.
Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada resigned as Director of the Company on 21¥December 2017.
Mr. A. T. Rajan, Managing Director and CEO of the Company proceeded on leave till further Orders of the Board effective 23 February 2018.

While Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company only on 27"March
2018.

Given the above, the annual evaluation of Board Performance and of its Committees and Directors could not be done by the Directors.

The Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) by
the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench dated 14th May 2018. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016,
the Powers of the Board of Directors stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Krishna Chamadia (IP Registration No.
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-2018/11220) appointed as the IRP with respect to the Company. The IRP further continued as Resolution
Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its first meeting held on 15"June 2018 under the provisions of the Code.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from all of its Independent Directors as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulations.

SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors conducted a meeting on 27" March 2018 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of
Management. Both of the newly appointed Independent Directors namely Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan were present
at the meeting.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Mr. A. T. Rajan ceased to be the Managing Director and CEO of the Company with effect from 1%*April 2018.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 27"March 2018 had appointed Mr. Subhankar Lahiri as Managing Director
and CEO of the Company effective 15*April 2018 for a term of One year.

Ms. Pooja Aggarwal had resigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 23“December 2017.

Mr. Ajay Kumar Mishra was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 27"™March 2018.
Mr. Manish Sehgal continues to hold the position of the Company Secretary in the Company.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consisted of Mr. U. P. Mathur, Mr. R. K. Pandey, Ms. Ashish Garg and Mr. H. Kitada while Mr. U. P. Mathur was the
Chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors got dissolved on 9" November 2017 when all of the Independent
Directors resigned.

The said Committee was re-constituted on 27" March 2018 and the Committee consisted of the following Directors:-

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary Chairman
*Mr. Noboru Akahane Member
Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan Member

*Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and Member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
resigned with effect from 28"September 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party transactions that were entered into during the year under review were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business. The Audit Committee has given prior approval for the Related Party Transactions.

None of the transactions with any of Related Parties were in conflict with the Company’s interest. Suitable disclosure as required by Indian
Accounting Standard (INDAS 24) has been made in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Further, a Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company is duly uploaded on the Company’s
website under the web-link: https://www.ricoh.co.in/RID/sites/www.ricoh.co.in/files/ricoh-india-related-party-transaction-policy.pdf

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties referred to in Section 188(1) is given in Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure
‘E’ of the Directors Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, has framed and adopted, a policy
namely Nomination and Remuneration Policy to deal with matters of appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
Senior Management and other Employees of the Company. The said policy focuses on the following aspects:-

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to
run the Company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its Goals.

Details of the Remuneration Policy are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
at the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24"September 2015 to hold the Office of the Auditors for a period of five years
till the conclusion of 27" Annual General Meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Companies Amendment Act, 2017 omitted the requirement related to ratification of appointment
of Statutory Auditors by Members at every Annual General Meeting with effect from 7" May 2018. Pursuant to the said amendment, the
Company hereby recommends to the Shareholders for their approval that the requirement of seeking ratification of appointment of Statutory
Auditors at every Annual General Meeting (referred in the resolution passed at the Shareholders meeting held on 24"September 2015 be
deleted.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Mr. Naresh Verma, a practicing Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
Financial year 2017-2018.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31¥March 2018 is annexed herewith as Annexure ‘A’ of the Directors’ Report.
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13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standard of Corporate Governance.

Accordingly, your Company has taken adequate steps to ensure compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance as prescribed under
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

A separate report on Corporate Governance from a practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance with the requirement as stated under
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is attached and forms part of this report.

E. CONTROL ENVIRONMENT AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS:

1.

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION ORADVERSE REMARK
OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT AND BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN
PRACTICE IN HIS SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

With regard to the statement of impact of audit qualifications, the directors have confirmed that they believe that there is no impact of audit
qualification and that, based on their analysis and assumptions, the balance sheet at 31 March 2018 is materially correct

(i) An application for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process of Ricoh was admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai vide order dated 14 May 2018 under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) and hence currently,
Ricoh is under corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”). Mr. Krishna Chamadia (IBBI registration number IBBI/IPA-001/
IP-P00694/2017-18/11220) was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) vide this order. Mr. Krishna Chamadia was
subsequently confirmed by the Committee of Creditors as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) in its meeting dated 15th June, 2018 under
the provisions of IBC.

The Section 20 (1) of IBC, 2016 reads as follows —

“The interim resolution professional shall make every endeavour to protect and preserve the value of the property of the corporate debtor
and manage the operations of the corporate debtor as a going concern”

Accordingly, the RP has been managing the operations of the company as a going concern. Under the current CIRP period, the Resolution
Professional has invited resolution plans from prospective Resolution Applicants. Once a plan is submitted, it will be placed before the
Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) and thereafter to the NCLT for approval. The date of conclusion of CIRP is 28" January 2019as per the
extension granted by Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority vide it’s order dated October 30™, 2018

(i) Considering the above facts and continuing operations of the company, the financial results have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(iii) In view of the management and as per the information available with the Company, the ongoing investigation is not likely to have any
adverse impact on the functioning of the Company or the financial statements.

(iv) The auditor in point (ii & iii), disclaimed their opinion on the accounts for the financial year ending on 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2017, the Directors confirmed that, based on their assumptions and analysis, the financial statement ending 31 March 2017 was materially
correct. Given this, the Directors are of the view that the disclaimer of opinion for the prior year shall have no material impact on the
accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2018

(v) With regard to point (iv) (a) of the Independent auditors report, the Company acknowledges that owing to the legacy IT system and
processes, it is not practical to derive this information, the directors do not believe that manual tracking on a line item basis of such
information is cost effective.

(vi) The Company has reconciled all the vendors balances as on May 14th, 2018 as a part of the ongoing CIRP. The Company is of the view
that no material claims or monies will be payable in the future.

(vii) The company has submitted original documents for revenue contracts to nodal agencies in regular course of business and it retains
copies of such contracts with regard to other documents/agreements, considering the voluminous nature and in absence of a centralized
document management system, it was impracticable to provide the original documents/agreements. The Directors have no reason to
believe that the copies provided are not a true reflection of the originals.

(viii) The Directors have no reason to believe that there are any material inconsistencies/error in calculation of amount allocable to multiple
elements in the lease contracts which shall significantly impact the true and fair view of the financial statements. Further, the company has
been unable to trace all original contracts for all these arrangements in respect to previous years. Whilst, errors have been identified, such
errors are an outcome of the volume of transactions and such errors are not impeding payment or services in respect of the arrangements.

(ix) The Company has reconciled all the vendors balances as on May 14th, 2018 as a part of the ongoing CIRP. The Company is of the view
that no material claims or monies will be payable in the future.

(x) The management was informed that Ricoh Company Limited, Japan (RCL) had given corporate guarantees towards Stand-by Letters
of Credit (SBLC) / Stand-by Documentary Credit (SBDC) issued by Japanese branches of banks whose Indian branches had advanced
loans to Ricoh India Limited. The Indian Banks, thereafter, invoked the SBLCs/SBDCs upon the public announcement of withdrawal of
financial support by RCL, Japan for Ricoh India Limited. The invoked SBLCs/SBDCs were honoured by the Japanese Banks. Pursuant
to the payments made by the Japanese Banks, RCL made payments to the Japanese Banks in terms of the Undertakings.

Under the Section 140 of the Indian Contract Act, RCL, Japan stepped in the shoes of the creditors (in respect of the debt and default
to which the guarantee relate) by way of right of subrogation. Hence, the company recorded RCL, Japan as its Creditor. However, in
the absence of any agreement towards these borrowings, Ricoh India has not recorded interest claimed by RCL Japan in the financial
statements.
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Further, the Company is of the view that there is no significant difference between interest rate on NCD and similar instrument in similar
situation and hence there is no requirement to report under Ind AS 109.

(xi) The management is of the view that the foreign / local currency receivables and payables recorded in the books of accounts are correct.
The Company will take necessary legal advice in order to regularise the non-compliance with the RBI guidelines.

(xii) The management is of the view that all the significant assumption/estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are reliable
(xiil) The Company has exercised adequate internal control in the process of identification and accounting of such write offs/write backs

(xiv) There are no significant adjustments pertaining to prior period in the financial statements other than those reflected in Note 43(B) of the
financial statements.

(xv) The Company is in the process of regularizing the non-compliance with regard to filing of quarterly and annual financial results in
accordance with the SEBI regulations.

(xvi) The Company is currently undergoing CIRP process and significant investments needed to enhance the IT systems and Controls shall be
made by the Resolution Applicant.

The Directors will continue to ensure that the accounting policies are followed consistently such that the results reported, regardless of

the audit disclaimer will, going forward, be a reflection of the Company’s operating performance.

The Statutory auditors have also raised matters in their report on Internal Financial Controls. As regards the comments of the auditors on

internal financial controls we comment as follows:-

a) IT Control Environment: The Company is currently undergoing CIRP process and significant investments needed to enhance the
IT systems. These investments shall be made by the Resolution Applicant.

b) Deficiency of maintenance of books of accounts and documentation: The Company has significantly improved its documentation
management and retention process. Also, the company is in the process of implementing requisite controls in relation to maintenance
of books of accounts and documentation.

¢) Internal control systems relating existence of contract work-in-progress: The directors of the view that there are adequate
internal controls towards existence of contract work-in-progress.

d) Lack of analysis regarding breakup of consumables and spares consumed: The auditor in this particular point is referring to
two different reports getting populated from the same system. The management is of the view that these two reports need not be
compared for further analysis.

e) Deficiencies in accounting of revenue recognition from leases: The management is of the view that there is absolutely no
deficiencies in accounting of revenue recognition from leases.

f) Deficiencies relating to accounts payables including vendor selection process and periodic reconciliations with vendors and
customers: Management is of the view that in its judgment and based on analysis: The Company has a significant number of
customers and vendors who will not participate in reconciliation process. This was also experienced by the auditor where they did
not receive responses against confirmation request sent by them to our customers/vendors.

g) Periodicity and process of physical verification of inventories: Management has the system of periodic physical verification of
Inventory.

h) The Company acknowledges that owing to the legacy IT system and processes, it is not practical to derive this information, the
directors do not believe that manual tracking on a line item basis of such information is cost effective.

i) Process of disposal of property, plant and equipment: The Company has laid down internal process for disposal of Fixed Assets.

The Directors comment on the Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31 March 2018 are mentioned herein below:-

1.

As you are aware that your Company is undergoing a difficult phase and a corporate insolvency resolution process is on as per the directions
of Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench given vide its Order dated 14"May 2018. Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016, the powers of the Board are
suspended and the same are vested with the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia.

The Directors state that due to resignations of all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017 the composition
of the Board of Directors of the Company and its Committees got disturbed and became not in conformity with the requirement of Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Board was aware of the discrepancy in the composition of the Board as the issue was
highlighted and flagged by the Company Secretary of the Company before the Board of Directors from time to time. The Promoter of the
Company RCL, Japan had withdrawn financial support to the Company on 27 October 2017 and the Promoter did not take any initiative or
effort on its part to reconstitute the Board and its Committees and for taking other critical decisions.

Due to turmoil in the Company it was very difficult for the Company to find suitable candidates for being appointed as Independent Directors
given the fact that all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company had resigned together on a single day. Hence, it took time for the
Company to find suitable replacement of Independent Directors.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 22"February 2018 decided to send Mr. AT Rajan, former Managing Director and CEO of the
Company on leave with effect from 23" February 2018 till further Orders of the Board. It is hereby informed that Mr. A. T. Rajan continues
to be a Non-Executive Director of the Company till date. The Declaration to be provided under section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsilibity of Director and the Company has not received any declaration from Mr. AT Rajan for placing before the Board.

2. With regard to the observation of the Secretarial Auditor on non-submission of quarterly results post June 2017, the Directors state that
a Board Meeting was duly convened by the Company to be held on 28 November 2017 to consider and approve Unaudited Financial
Results for the quarter ended 30 September 2017.
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However, due to the resignations of all of the Four (4) Independent Directors on 9" November 2017 and withdrawal of financial support
by the Promoter of the Company RCL, Japan, the Audit Committee got dissolved. In the absence of Audit Committee in the Company,
the Statutory Auditor also did not release the financial results to the Company.

3. With regard to the observation of the Secretarial Auditor on the non-payment of Half Yearly Interest ofINR 200 Crores NCDs of the
Company for two consecutive half year periodsi.e. 10 March 2018 and 10 September 2018, the Directors state that the Company had
filed for Insolvency Petition under Section 10 of IBC, 2016 and hence the Company was not in a position to pay and honour its obligation
to pay half yearly interest to the Debenture Holder namely Ricoh Asia Pacific Pte Limited. Regulation 52 and Regulation 56 pertains
to financial results and Auditors Certificate to be submitted to BSE / Debunture Trustee and the reasons for non compliance are already
explained above in point no. 2.

The decision of not to make half yearly interest payment to the Non-Convertible Debenture holder was taken by the Board with a view
to conserve limited resources of the Company.
Your Directors and the Resolution Professional are doing their best to keep the company as on going concern.

4. With regard to the observation of the Secretarial Auditor that the Company did not prepare consolidated financial statement for the
year ended 31 March 2018 in respect of investment in equity shares of IDC Electronics Limited (An Associate Company) as required
under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.The Directors state that the Company does not exercise any Control or has any
significant influence over the financial and/or operating policies of IDC Electronics Limited. Accordingly, the Company did not prepare
Consolidated Financial Statement as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Investment is valued at INR One only. The Directors do not believe that there is any material difference between the Accounts
reported on a stand-alone basis and those that would be reported on a consolidated basis.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A Statement containing the names of the every Employee employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration of INR
1.02 Crore or more or employed for part of the year and in receipt of INR 8.50 Lakh or more a month, under Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure ‘B’ of the Directors Report.

RATIO OF REMUNERATION

The information relating to remuneration of Directors of the Company as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure ‘C’ of the Directors
Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of the business. The main aim of risk management is to identify,
monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for the business. Your Company recognizes risk
management as an integral component of good corporate governance. The Company has developed and adopted a risk management policy.
Risks that are assessed encompass operational risks, internal control risks, external risks, information technology risks etc.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has significantly improved its documentation management and retention process. The Company is in the continuous process of
implementing requisite controls inter alia in relation to maintenance of books of accounts and documentation.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report form part of this
Report.

F. OTHERS

1.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has put in place a mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behavior through its Whistle Blower Policy. Employees and
Directors are free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct. The report, if any, in this regard as received from any
person will be reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

It is affirmed that no person has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company in this respect. It is also ensured that confidentiality
of such reporting is strictly maintained and that Whistle Blowers are not subjected to any discriminatory practice or harassment.

The Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website under the web-link: https://rconnect.ricoh.co.in/Content/CMSIMAGE/
Policies/WhistleBlowing%20and%20Vigil%20Mechanism%20Policy1.pdf

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
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There were no complaint(s) received from any employee during the financial year 2017-2018.
3. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
There is no need to maintain cost records as the Company is not in the business of manufacturing any goods.

4. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

Not applicable.
5. FUTURE PLANS

The Company is currently undergoing CIRP under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 where in Resolution Plan
can be submitted by a Resolution Applicant within 180 or 270 days from the day of the NCLT order. Considering this, the Future Plans of the
Company will depend upon future course of events.

The Resolution Professional with the approval of Committee of Creditors of the Company had filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT,
Mumbai seeking an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in terms
of Section 12(2) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai has granted an extension of the CIRP period of
the Company by further period of Ninety (90) days vide its Order dated 30" October 2018.

6. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS ORTRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India passed an Interim Order dated 12"February 2018 in the matter of Ricoh India Limited.

(b) Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in
terms of Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its
affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution
Professional by NCLT vide its Order dated 14"™May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its
Meeting held on 15"June 2018 under provisions of the Code. Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended
and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna Chamadia.

(c) Resolution Professional with the approval of Committee of Creditors of the Company had filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT,
Mumbai seeking an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in
terms of Section 12(2) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai has granted an extension of the CIRP
period of the Company by further period of Ninety (90) days vide its Order dated 30th October 2018.

7. DISCLOSURES
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT - 9 is annexed herewith as Annexure ‘D’ of the Directors Report.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Ricoh India Limited

1132, 3rd Floor,11 Solitaire Corporate Park
Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road,

Chakala, Andheri (E) Mumbai 400093

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ricoh
India Limited (hereinafter called the company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Ricoh India Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31March, 2018 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company had proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The present audit report also refers to certain events that occurred after the close of financial year ended
31 March, 2018 to present a fair view of the state of affairs of the company; however, the events that happened after the close of the financial year were
not reviewed for audit purpose. Our Report is to be read alongwith the Statutory Auditors observations in their Audit report dated 26 May 2017 on the
financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2017 and the Audit report dated 21 November, 2018 on the financial statements of the
company for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Ricoh India Limited (“the Company”) for
the financial year ended on 31March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and by-laws framed thereunder to the extent of Regulation 55A;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 ;
# (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended by the SEBI Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities (Amendment) Regulations 2012;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies
Act and dealing with client to the extent of securities issued,

# (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
# (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
# No event covered under these Regulations took place during the Audit period.

vi. There are no specific laws applicable to Company as stated in ICSI guidance note on secretarial audit as per the Company’s management
representation letter during the year 2017-2018.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by “The Institute of Company Secretaries of India”;
(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including amendments thereto.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above except
to the extent stated hereunder:-

Observations:-

During the year under review, the company filed a petition with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai under Section 10 of Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 on 29.01.2018. The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT) ordered the commencement of Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) on 14 May 2018 and appointed Mr. Krishna Chamadia, Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00694/2017-
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18/11220 as the Interim Resolution Professional who has continued as Resolution Professional pursuant to the approval of the Committee of
Creditors in its Meeting held on 15.06.2018 and the NCLT under the provisions of the Code. The CIRP of Ricoh India Limited is in progress
as on the date of this report and its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional.

The matter against the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process is pending for admission before the Hon’ble NCLAT vide Company Appeal
(AT) No. 621/2018.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors except to the extent provided hereinafter. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The Independent Directors of the company Mr R K Pandey, Mr U P Mathur, Mr Rajiv Ahuja and Ms Ashish Garg resigned from the Board of the
company w.e.f. 9 November, 2017. In terms of the regulation 17 and 25 of the Listing (Obligation & Disclosures) Regulations, 2015 as amended where
the chairman of the company is related to the promoter,atleast half of the Board should comprise of Independent Directors. The company was however
not able to comply with this requirement till the time Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman related to promoter resigned from the Board of the company.
Further the vacancy caused by resignation of Independent directorsin listed entity be filled up at the earliest but not later than the immediate next
meeting of the Board of directors or three months from the date of such vacancy, whichever is later. Mr. TanmoyAdhikary and Ms. HamsaVijayaraghavan
were appointed as Independent Directors on 27 March 2018 i.e. after the expiry of prescribed period of 3 months.

The changes in Board of Directors had also affected the composition of Nomination and Remuneration committee and Audit Committee of the Board
during the year.

Mr A T Rajan, Director has not provided written representations as on 31 March 2018, to the Board of Directors, that he is not disqualified as on 31
March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The Company is yet to approve and present quarterly and year to date results alongwith limited review report for the quarters ended post 30 June 2017
in terms of requirement of regulation 33 of Listing (Obligation & Disclosures) Regulations, 2015 as amended

The Company has defaulted in making payment of half yearly interest at the rate of 7% on Rs 200 Crores Non Convertible Debentures issued by the
Company to Ricoh Asia Pacific Pte Limited (The Debenture Holder) listed on BSE Limited due on 10 March 2018 and 10 September 2018 and is not
able to comply with the provisions of regulation 52 and 56 of (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has not prepared a consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of . D.C. Electronics Limited (an associate
company) as required under section 129(3) of Companies Act, 2013 As per the management the Company does not exercisecontrol or has any significant
influence over the financials and/or operating policies of IDC Electronics Limited (“IDC” IDC. Accordingly the Company did not prepare consolidated
financial statement as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The investment is valued at Rs. 1. However the Company had attached
Form AOC-1 in its financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 and provided reason therein for not consolidating its financial
statement.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7 (seven) days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decision of the Board were unanimous and dissenting views, if any,
were found to be duly recorded.

We further report that in view of the frequent changes in management and ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process we are not in a position
to comment whether there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, in our opinion based on the discussion we had with the management officials, following are the events / actions which have a

major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines standards etc. happened during the audit

period:-

»  The Statutory Auditors have not expressed any opinion on the financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31.03.2018 as they
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. They have given an adverse opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

»  As per the disclosure submitted by the Company to BSE Limited dated 30 October 2017, the Promoter of the Company, Ricoh Company Limited,
Japan, had announced that it will not provide any additional financial support to Ricoh India Limited going forward.

» SEBI passed an Interim Order No. WTM/GM/CFD/87/2017-18 dated 12 February 2018 in the matter of Ricoh India Limited and a corrigendum
vide order no. WTM/GM/IMD/87A/2017—-18 dated 6 March 2018. In view of the aforesaid order, after the Board of Directors meeting of the
company held on 22 February 2018, Mr AT Rajan proceeded on leave with effect from Friday, 23 February 2018 till further orders of the Board
of Directors of the company. Mr. ShubhankarLahiri was appointed by the Board as Interim Chief Operating Officer of the Company till further
orders of the Board of the Company.

» BSE vide its order dated 28 March 2018 appointed M/s CJS Nanda & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Forensic Auditors to conduct
forensic audit of the company for the financial year 2012-2013 onwards till date.

» The Office of Regional Director, Western Region carried out an inspection under section 206 and 207 of the Companies Act 2013 and issued show

19



cause notice(s) against the company and its officers for violations of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Company and its Directors /
officers have filed applications for compounding of offences before appropriate authorities as provided under the Companies Act.

» India Ratings and Research Private Limited (Ind-Ra) revised the Credit Ratings for 7.8%, Privately Placed, 2000, Unsecured, Non Cumulative,
Redeemable, Taxable, Listed, Rated Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 200 Crores to IND BBB-/Stable. The Board of Directors of the Company
subject to approval from BSE Limited approved the matter of amendment/restructuring of terms of existing Rs 200 Crores Non Convertible
Debentures and the Coupon Rate was revised from the existing 7.8% per annum payable on semi-annual basis to 7% per annum and date of
maturity of the Debentures was extended from 10 September 2017 to 10 September 2020.

»  As per Disclosure to BSE dated 3 October, 2017 an application to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against the company by Fourth
Dimension Solution Limited was withdrawn by the said Company on 29 September 2017. Later on, a separate application filed again by Fourth
Dimension Solution Limited to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Rule 6 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Application to
Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2016 was dismissed by National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 19.03.2018.

»  The Minority Shareholders of the Company filed a Petition before the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench under Sections 241 and 242 read with
Chapter XVI of the Companies Act, 2013. The matter is pending before NCLT.

»  Mr Tomohiro Kitabatake was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company with effect from 20 April 2017 and resigned on 23 November 2017.
Mr. Rajat Jain was appointed as Internal Auditor on 27 March 2018, he however resigned on 27 April 2018. Thereafter M/s Sanjay Batra and Co.,
Chartered Accountants have been appointed as new Internal Auditors of the Company with effect from 27 March 2018.

»  The Company during the year shifted its Corporate Office from 2" Floor, SalconAurum Building, District Centre, Jasola, New Delhi — 110025 to
7th, 10th and 11th Floors Tower 'B’, Windsor IT Park A-1, Sector 125 Expressway, GautamBudh Nagar Noida, Uttar Pradesh — 201 301w.e.f. 19
February 2018.

» The Registered Office of the Company was also shifted from 801, 8" Floor, Ackruti Star MIDC Central Road, Near Marol Telephone Exchange,
MIDC, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400093 to 1132, 3rd Floor,11 Solitaire Corporate Park, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Chakala, Andheri (E)
Mumbai 400093 w.e.f. 20th June 2018.

»  Securities and Exchange Board of India has passed another Order No. WTM/GM/CFD/50/2018-19 dated 16th August 2018 in the matter of Ricoh
India Limited whereby it confirm the directions issued vide the ad interim ex-parte order dated February 12, 2018 read with order dated March 06,
2018 against the Notices

During the year, there were several changes made in the Board of Directors as listed below:-

S. No. | Name of Director Date Appointment/Cessation
I. Mr AT Rajan, Managing Director 01.04.2017 Appointment
2. Mr Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Director 26.05.2017 Appointment
3. Mr Ian Peter Winham, Chairman &Non Executive Director 03.08.2017 Cessation
4. Mr Noboru Akahane, Chairman &Non Executive Director 03.08.2017 Appointment
5. Mr Yoshitaka Motomura, Non Executive Director 03.08.2017 Appointment
6. Mr R K Pandey, Independent Director 09.11.2017 Cessation
7. Ms Ashish Garg, (Independent Director 09.11.2017 Cessation
8. Mr U P Mathur (ID) 09.11.2017 Cessation
9. Mr Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Director 09.11.2017 Cessation
10. | Mr Hiroyasu Kitada , Non Executive Director 21.12.2017 Cessation
11. | Mr. TanmoyAdhikary , Independent Director 27.03.2018 Appointment
12. | Ms. HamsaVijayaraghavan, Independent Director 27.03.2018 Appointment
13. | Mr. SubhankarLahiri , Managing Director & CEO 01.04.2018 Appointment
14. | Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura, Non Executive Director 01.04.2018 Cessation
15. | Mr. Noboru Akahane 28.09.2018 Cessation

Non Executive Director and Chairman

For NARESH VERMA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

NARESH VERMA
FCS: 5403
CP: 4424

Date : 21 November, 2018
Place : Delhi

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- I and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-I

To,

The Members,

Ricoh India Limited

1132, 3rd Floor,11 Solitaire Corporate Park
Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road,

Chakala, Andheri (E) Mumbai 400093

Our report on even date is to be read along with this letter.

L.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records andbooks of account of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For NARESH VERMA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

NARESH VERMA
FCS- 5403; CP-4424

Date : 21 November, 2018
Place : Delhi
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)

AMENDMENT RULES, 2016
Top Ten Employees of the Company in terms of Remuneration* drawn: (In Indian Rupees)
Employee name Educational 8 Date of Gross Previous % of Equity Whether
(Designation) Qualification 2 Joining Remuneration Employment shares related to
[Age(in years)] 5 5 paid held in the | any Director/
&> Company Manager of
=
= the Company
Mr. Y. Uchida B.A Applied 33 01-06-2015 INR 91,61,785 | Ricoh Company NIL No
(Vice President & CMO) Mathematics Limited
[58]
Mr. Tomohiro Kitabatake B.A. Economics, 33 20-09-2016 INR 86,71,821 | Hitachi Koki Co. NIL No
(Internal Auditor) Waseda Limited
[57] University, Tokyo
Japan
Mr. T. Ohta Bachelor Degree 18 08-04-2013 INR 72,68,879 | Ricoh Company NIL No
(Associate Vice President) in Economics Limited
[40]
Mr. A.T. Rajan BE, Mechanical 30 10-06-1994 INR 70,28,953 Indian Hotels Nil No
(Managing Director & CEO) Engineer Company Ltd
[54]
Ms.Pooja Aggarwal Chartered 18 1-12-2016 INR 69,85,405 Birlasoft Nil No
(Chief Financial Officer) Accountant
[42]
Mr. Sambit Misra B.A. Economic 21 08-06-2015 INR 68,40,167 Canon India Nil No
(COO-PP) Honours & Limited
[45] PGDBM
Ms. Belinda Howell Law Graduate 20 24-10-2016 INR 61,49,650 Freelancer Nil No
(General Counsel) from University
[44] of South Africa
Mr. Manish Kumar MBA (HR), XISS 19 13-4-2011 INR 57,67,550 Indusind Bank Nil No
(Head HR)
[44]
Mr. Shubhankar Lahiri (45) B.Com and 22 10-6-1996 INR 55,82,676 | Gestetner India Nil No
MD and CEO PGDBM Limited
Mr. Raj Kumar Bawa (COO- Diploma in 35 17/10/1994 INR 51,02,258 Xerox India Nil No
NS & ASB)(56) Electrical Limited
Engineering
(a) (i) If employed throughout the financial year was in receipt of remuneration not less than INR 102 lacs:
(In Indian Rupees)
Employee name Educational g Date of Gross Previous % of Equity Whether related
(Designation) Qualification s 2 Joining Remuneration Employment shares held in to any Director/
[Age(in years)] T & paid the Company Manager of the
é :% (INR) Company
=
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(i) If employed for part of the year with an average salary not less than INR 8.50 lacs per month:

(In Indian Rupees)

Employee name Educational 3 Date of Joining Gross Previous % of Equity Whether related
(Designation) Qualification 5 7 Remuneration Employment shares held in to any Director/
[Age(in years)] 5 g paid the Company Manager of the

SR=) (INR) Company

=
Mr. Y. Uchida B.A Applied 33 01-06-2015 INR 91,61,785 Ricoh Company NIL No
(Vice President & CMO) Mathematics Limited
[58]
Mr. T. Ohta Bachelor Degree 18 08-04-2013 INR 72,68,879 Ricoh Company NIL No
(Associate Vice in Economics Limited
President)
[40]
Mr. Tomohiro | B.A. Economics, 33 20-09-2016 INR 86,71,821 Hitachi Koki Co. NIL No
Kitabatake Waseda Limited
(Internal Auditor) University, Tokyo
[57] Japan

(iii) If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate or as the case may be,
at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole Time Director or Manager and holds by himself or
along with his Spouse and dependent Children not less than 2% of the Equity Shares of the Company - : None

1. All appointments of above mentioned persons are contractual in accordance with terms and conditions as per the Company’s rules.

2. None of the above mentioned persons holds more than 2% of the equity shares of the Company either by himself or along with spouse and
dependent children.

3. None of the above employees is a Relative of any Director of the Company.

4.  All above mentioned
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT
DETAILS OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL), RULES 2014

a) the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year:

Name of the Directors Ratio to Median Remuneration
Mr. Ian Winham, Chairman * Nil

Mr. A.T. Rajan, Managing Director and CEO ** 12.05:1

Mr. H.K. Kitada, Non Executive Director *** Nil

Mr. U.P. Mathur, Independent Director **** Nil

Mr. R.K. Pandey, Independent Director # Nil

Ms. Ashish Garg, Independent Director ## Nil

Mr. Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Director ### Nil

Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman $ Nil

Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura, Director $$ Nil

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri, Managing Director and CEO @ Not Applicable
Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary & Not Applicable
Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan & Not Applicable

*Mr. Tan Winham had resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company on 3" August 2017.

**Mr. AT Rajan has ceased to be Managing Director and CEO of the Company effective 1 April 2018.

*#*Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada has resigned as Director of the Company on 21 December 2017.

*HdxEMr. UP Mathur has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

# Mr. RK Pandey has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

## Ms Ashish Garg has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

### Mr. Rajiv Ahuja has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

$ Mr. Noboru Akahane has been appointed as Non Executive Chairman of the Company on 3 August 2017.

$$ Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura has resigned as Director of the Company on 1% April 2018.

@ Mr. Subhankar Lahiri has been appointed as Managing Director and CEO of the Company eftective 1% April 2018.
& Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary appointed as an Independent Director on 27 March 2108

&& Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan appointed as an Independent Director on 27 March 2018.

Independent Directors were paid only Sitting Fees during the Financial year under review. Hence, their Ratio to Median Remuneration has been

shown as Nil.

b) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager,

if any, in the financial year;

Name of the Persons % Increase in Remuneration
Mr. Ian Winham, Chairman * Nil
Mr. A. T. Rajan, Managing Director and CEO ** Nil
Mr. H.K. Kitada, Non Executive Director *** Nil
Mr. U.P. Mathur, Independent Director **** Nil
Mr. R K. Pandey, Independent Director # Nil
Ms. Ashish Garg, Independent Director ## Nil
Mr. Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Director ### Nil
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(©)

(d)

(e)

6]

Name of the Persons % Increase in Remuneration
Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman $ Nil

Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura, Director $$ Nil

Ms. Pooja Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer+ 15%

Mr. Ajay Kumar Mishra, Chief Financial Officer ++ NA

Mr. Manish Sehgal, Company Secretary 5%

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri, Managing Director and CEO @ NA

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary & NA

Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan && NA

*Mr. Tan Winham had resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company on 3" August 2017.

**Mr. AT Rajan has ceased to be Managing Director and CEO of the Company effective 1 April 2018.

***Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada has resigned as Director of the Company on 21 December 2017.

*xx%xMr. UP Mathur has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

# Mr. RK Pandey has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

## Ms Ashish Garg has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

### Mr. Rajiv Ahuja has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9 November 2017.

$ Mr. Noboru Akahane has been appointed as Non Executive Chairman of the Company on 3 August 2017.

$8$ Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura has resigned as Director of the Company on 1% April 2018.

+ Ms Pooja Aggarwal has resigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 23 December 2017.

++ Mr. Ajay Kumar Mishra has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 27" March 2018.

@ Mr. Subhankar Lahiri has been appointed as Managing Director and CEO of the Company effective 15 April 2018.

# Ms Pooja Aggarwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1 December 2016.

& Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary appointed as Independent Director on 27 March 2018

&& Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan appointed as Independent Director on 27 March 2018.

Independent Directors were paid only Sitting Fees during the Financial year under review. Hence, their Ratio to Median Remuneration has been
shown as Nil.

the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees of Ricoh India Limited during the financial year is 5.25%.
the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31 March 2018:

The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31 March 2018 are 641

average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional

circumstances for increase in the managerial Remuneration
The average increase in Salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2017-2018  was 5.25%.
affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employees and the Company. Through its
compensation package, the Company endeavours to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high performance staff. The Company follows a
compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and performance based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance
and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process. The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration

policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN
i)
iii)
iv)

Gov

Registration Date
Name of the Company
Category / Sub-Category of the Company

ernment Company

v) Address of the Registered office

vi)

vii)

Whether listed company Yes / No
Name, Address and Contact details of

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

L74940MH1993PLC074694
22" October 1993

Ricoh India Limited
Company Limited By Shares / Indian Non-

1132, 3" Floor, Building No. 11,
Solitaire Corporate Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg,

Andheri Ghatkopar link Road, Chakala, Andheri East,
Mumbai - 400093

Tel

1 022-66833000

Website: www.ricoh.co.in,
Email: ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in

Yes, Listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

M/s MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

F-65, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I
New Delhi — 110 020

Tel

1 011-41406149, 51

Email id: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. | Name and Description of main products / services | NIC Code of the Product/ service | % to total turnover of the company
1 IT Services 6209 30.96%
2 Multifunctional Printers (MFPs) 4799 69.04%
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Sl. | Name And Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Shares Held | Applicable Section
NO | Company Subsidiary/
Associate
1 Ricoh Company Limited Foreign Company Holding 46.04% 2(46)
Ricoh Building , 8-13-1, Ginza,
Chuo, Ku, Tokyo 104-8222, Japan
2 | NRG Group Limited Foreign Company Holding 27.56% 2(46)
20 Triton Street, London,
England NW13BF
3 I.D.C. Electronics Limited U29309AP1987PLC007845 Associate 39.97% 2(6)
40-46, IDA Cherlapally HCL Post
Hyderabad 500051
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholder No. of Shares held at the beginning of the Year No. of Shares held at the | % Change
as on 1* April 2017 end of the Year as on 31* March 2018 | during the
Demat | Physical Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of Year

Total Total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individuals / Hindu Undivided -- -- - - - -- - - -
Family

b) Central Government / State -- -- - - - - - - -
Government(s)

c) Bodies Corporate - -- - - - - - - -

d) Banks/Financial Institutions - - -- - - - - - -
e) Any Other (specity) -- -- - - - -- - - -
Sub - Total (A)(1) — — - - - - - — -
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other-Individuals
¢) Bodies Corporate 29270370 --| 29270370 73.60 29270370 --| 29270370 73.60 --
d) Bank/Financial Institutions -- -- - - - -- - - -
e) Any Other (specify) - -- - - - -
Sub - Total (A)(2) 29270370 -] 29270370 73.60 29270370 --| 29270370 73.60 --
Total Shareholding of Promoter 29270370 - 29270370 73.60 29270370 -1 29270370 73.60 -
AW =DH+HA2)

C. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 400 400 .0010 0 400 400 .0010 --
b) Banks / Financial Institutions 900 4900 5800 .0146 900 4900 5800 .0146 -
¢) Central Government - - -- - - - - -- -

d) State Government(s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Funds -- -- - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies 2400 - 2400 .0060 2400 - 2400 .0060 -
g) Foreign Portfolio Investors 77079 - 77079 0.19 77079 - 77079 0.19 -
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) -- -- - - - - - - -
Sub - total (B)(1) 80379 5300 85679 0.22 80379 5300 85679 0.22 -
2. Central Govt/State Govt/POI - - -- - - - - - -
Sub - total (B)(2) -- -- -- - - -- - - --
3. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate 1741662 27258 1768920 4.45 1781613 27258 1808871 4.55 0.09
b) Individuals
i) Individual sharcholders hold-| 3273431 1276464 4549895 11.44 3326606 1250100 | 4576706 11.51 .06
ing nominal share capital up to
Rs.1 lakh
ii) Individual sharcholders hold-| 3969842 - 3969842 9.98 3906102 - 3906102 9.82 0.16

ing nominal share capital in
excess of Rs.1 lakh

¢) Qualified Foreign Investor -- -- - - - - - - -
d) NBFCs Registered with RBI -- -- - - - -- - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - -
I.  Trust & Foundation 5200 -- 5200 0.01 5200 -- 5200 0.01 --
II. Cooperative Societies - - -- - - - - - -

III. Educational Institutions - - - - - — — - -

IV. Non- Resident Individual 116894 1361 118255 0.30 113872 1361 115233 29 .01
V. Foreign Companies - -- - - - - . - -
VI. OCBs - - -- - - - - - -
Sub - Total (B)(3) 9107029 | 1305083 | 10412112 26.18 9133393 1278719 10412112| 26.18 -
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(i)

Category of Shareholder No. of Shares held at the beginning of the Year No. of Shares held at the | % Change
as on 1** April 2017 end of the Year as on 31* March 2018 | during the
Demat| Physical Total % of Demat| Physical Total % of Year
Total Total
Shares Shares
Total Public Shareholding 9187408 1310383 10497791 26.40 9213772 1284019 | 10497791 26.40 -
B) = BD+B)@)+B)A)
TOTAL (A)+(B) 38457778 | 1310383 39768161 100 38484142 | 1284019 | 39768161 100 --
(c) Shares held by Custodian and against - - -- - - - - -- -
which Depository Receipts have been
issued
1. Promoter and Promoter Group - - -- - - - - -- -
2. Public - - -- - - - - -- -
GRAND TOTAL 38457778 1310383 ( 39768161 100.00 38484142 1284019 | 39768161 100 -
A) +®B) HO)

Shareholding of Promoters

SI. | Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year as on 31*
No. year as on 1 April 2017 March 2018
No. of | % of total % of No. of | % of total %of | % change
Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares in share
of the | Pledged / of the | Pledged / holding
company encumb- company encumb- | during the
ered to ered to year
total total
shares shares
1 Ricoh Company Limited 18310578 46.04 -- 18310578 46.04 -- --
2 | NRG Group Limited 10959792 27.56 - 10959792 27.56 -- --

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SL Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. of the year as on 1** April 2017 the year
No. of % of total | No. of Shares % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares of the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding Nil Nil Nil Nil
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3 At the End of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
S1. | Folio no./DP ID For Each of the Top Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Category
No 10 Shareholders Decrease Shareholding during
in Share the year (01-04-17 to
holding 31-03-18)
PAN No of Shares | % of total Shares % of total
at the Shares of the Shares of the
Beginning company company
(31-03-17)
/ end of the
year
(31-03-18)
1 [IN30133021242333 QUEST PORTFOLIO [ AAACQ1454B | 650000 1.63 20170331 100000 Purchase | 750000 1.89 OTHER BODIES
SERVICES PVT LTD 20170623 CORPORATES
750000 1.89 20180331
2 | IN30133021663494 KALPRAJ DAMII AABPD7704K | 275000 0.69 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
DHARAMSHI 275000 0.69 20180331
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S1. | Folio no./DP ID For Each of the Top Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Category
No 10 Shareholders Decrease Shareholding during
in Share the year (01-04-17 to
holding 31-03-18)
PAN No of Shares | % of total Shares % of total
at the Shares of the Shares of the
Beginning company company
(31-03-17)
/ end of the
year
(31-03-18)
3 | IN30267930987076 | BENU GOPAL ADRPBS687N | 224200 0.56 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
BANGUR 224200 0.56 20180331
4 1 1201060001670851 SUBHASH CHAND | AAAHS4865F | 210000 0.53 20170331 NIL NIL HINDU UNDIVIDED
MANTRI HUF 210000 0.53 20180331 FAMILY HUF
5 |IN30133021242430 | HINA KALPRAJ AAEPD7137P | 200000 0.5 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
DHARAMSHI 200000 0.5 20180331
6 | 1202810000028124 CHETAN G AAAHCI9870N | 178276 0.45 20170331 NIL NIL HINDU UNDIVIDED
CHOLERA HUF 178276 0.45 20180331 FAMILY HUF
7 [IN30133021242413 HARSHA AAEPD7167K 175000 0.44 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
HEMANG 175000 0.44 20180331
DHARAMSHI
8 | IN30133021242243 HEMANG AAEPD7168G | 150000 0.38 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
RAICHAND 150000 0.38 20180331
DHARAMSHI
9 | 1201130000063540 DIVYESH AAFPS8205E 143000 0.36 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
AMBALAL SHAH 143000 0.36 20180331
10 | 1203230001197128 DILIP TALAKSHI AAIFN4109P 138395 0.35 20170331 NIL NIL INDIAN PUBLIC
138395 0.35 20180331
11 | IN30267930957134 | NBIINDUSTRIAL | AAACN3868N | 148425 0.37 20170331 -24294 Sale 124131 0.31 OTHER BODIES
FINANCE CO. LTD 124131 0.31 20170414 CORPORATES
20180331

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: Nil

Sl

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding

the year as on 1* April 2016 during the year

No. of Shares % of total No. of % of total
Shares of the Shares Shares of the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding Nil
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3 At the End of the year Nil

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Companyhold any Shares of the Company both at the beginning of the year and at

the end of the year.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rupees in lakhs)
Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year as on 1*
April 2017
i) Principal Amount - 126,603 8,784 1,17,819
i) Interest due but not paid -- - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due -- 166 353 (187)
Total (i + ii + iii) -- 126,769 9,137 1,17,632
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
e Addition - R -
e Reduction 22,925 2,451 20,474
Net Change 22,925 2,451- 20,474
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year as on 31* March
2015
i) Principal Amount -- 1,49,528 11,235 1,38,293
ii) Interest due but not paid -- 734 879 (105)
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii + iii) -- 1,50,302 12,114 1,38,188
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(InRupees)
SL Mr.AT Rajan,
No. Particulars of Remuneration Managing Director & CEO | Total Amount
1. Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 75,602,330 75,62,330
1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 70,29,050 70,29,050
c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 5,33,280 5,33,280
2. Stock Option - -
3. Sweat Equity - -
4. Commission - -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others - -
Total (A) 75,62,330
Ceiling as per the Act* 1,20,00,000/-

Remuneration paid to the Managing Director and CEO is within the ceiling provided under applicable sections of the Companies Act, 2013
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Remuneration to other directors:

(In Rupees)

SL
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1(a).

Independent Directors

Mr. U.P. Mathur

Ms. Ashish
Garg

Mr. R.K. Pandey

Mr. Rajiv
Ahuja

e Fee for attending board / commit-
tee meetings

e Commission

e Others, please specify

2,00,000

2,00,000 200,000

1,05,000

Totall(a)

2,00,000

2,00,000 2,00,000

1,05,000

1(b).

Independent Directors

Mr. Tanmoy
Adhikary

Ms. Hamsa
Vijayaraghavan

e Fee for attending board / commit-
tee meetings

e Commission

e Others, please specify

25,000

25,000

7,55,000

Totall(b)

25,000

25,000

7,55,000

Others Non- Executive Directors

Mr. H.Kitada

Mr. Ian Winham Mr. Yoshitaka

Mr. Noboru

Motomura Akahane

e Fee for attending

board / committee meetings - - - - -
e Commission - -- -- -
e Others, please specify -

Total B(2) - - - - -
Total (B) = (1+2) 7,55,000
Total Managerial Remuneration (Mr. AT Rajan remuneration) 75,62,330
1,20,00,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act *

* Ceiling has been calculated as per first proviso of Section II, part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MANAGING DIRECTOR/MANAGER/WHOLE TIME
DIRECTOR

(in Rupees)
Sl. [ Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
No.
Mr. AT Rajan Mr. Ms. Pooja Mr. Ajay
Managing Manish Aggarwal, | Mishra, Chief
Director & Sehgal, Chief Financial
CEO Company | Financial Officer
Secretary Officer
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 75,62,330 18,39,958 93,96,000 31,29,304 2,19,27,592

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 70,29,050 18,39,958 | 93,96,000 31,29,304 2,13,94,312

1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 5,33,280 -- -- - 5,33,280

Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
_ as % of profit
_ others, specify...

5 | Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal
Companies Act | Description Punishment/ [RD /NCLT made, if any
Compounding fees / COURT] (give Details)
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

For Ricoh India Limited

Date : 21 November 2018
Subhankar Lahiri
Managing Director and CEO
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ANNEXURE ‘E’ OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in sub-section (1)
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain Arm’s Length transactions under third proviso thereto

1 | Details of Contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis Not Applicable (Ricoh India Limited
has not entered into any Contract
orArrangement or Transaction(s)
with its Related Parties which is not
at Arm’s Length during the Financial
Year 2017-2018)

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable
(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Not Applicable
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including Not Applicable
the value, if any
(e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable
(f) | date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable
Date on Which the Special Resolution was passed in General Meeting as required under first | Not Applicable
proviso to Section 188
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Ricoh Asia Pacific Operations Ltd,
Fellow Subsidiary
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Purchase of Goods and Services
(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions On Going Contract Basis
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including General Business Transactions
the value, if any which are based on transfer pricing
guidelines
(e) | date(s) of approval by the Board The Transactions are as per the
Related Party Policy of the Company,
Further, the approval of the Audit
Committee is sought as per the
requirement of the Listing Agreement
and Companies Act, 2013
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Date : 21 November 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘F’ OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-
GO REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (AC-

COUNTS) RULES, 2014

(A) Conservation of Energy

(i) the Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

In its endeavour to optimise the consumption of electricity at its premises, the company initiated a voluntary practice of switching off non-es-
sential lights during lunch hours effective June 5, 2017 (World Environment Day). This initiative led to a substantial reduction in its energy

consumption in operations during the year.
(ii) the Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy
Not Applicable
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s
Nil
(B) Technology Absorption —
1. the efforts made towards technology absorption Nil

2. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import substitution. Nil

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

a) the details of technology imported Nil
b) the year of import N.A
c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed N.A
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof and N.A
4. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development Nil

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Earnings (INR Lacs) 2017-2018 2016-2017
Exports 860 176
Others 20 6,118
Total Earnings 880 6,294
Outgo INR in Lacs INR in Lacs
Raw Materials - -
Finished Goods, Spare Parts & Capital Goods 19,192 34,391
Other Expenses 284 454
Total Outgo 19,476 34,845
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ANNEXURE ‘G’ OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors
have constituted a CSR Committee. The Board of Directors have also framed a CSR Policy in compliance with provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The said Policy is placed on the website of the Company and is available on the web link

https://www.ricoh.co.in/RID/sites/www.ricoh.co.in/files/corporate-social-responsibility-policy 2017.pdf

Ricoh’s commitment to CSR is ingrained in culture through its founding principles — The Ricoh Way: Love Your Country. Love your neighbor.
Love your Work. The Ricoh way defines the scope of CSR at Ricoh India covering three areas — corporate governance, welfare of the society and
harmony with environment.

We believe that in order to ensure sustainability, CSR should be an integral part of our business strategies. We call it ‘value-creating CSR’, which
strives to achieve its twin objectives: solutions to social and environmental problems and at the same time driving business results. Hence, sustain-
ability at Ricoh is not * beyond business’ but an inclusive way to ‘business beyond’.

As we say in our corporate tagline, ‘imagine. change.’ we help organizations harness the knowledge and collective imagination of their people, to
enjoy a more productive, fulfilling, and sustainable quality of work and life.

The Company will focus primarily on the following three programme areas with key projects/activities mentioned in-line as follows:
A. Harmony with Society:

With the core belief of leveraging its competency in the domain of Information & Communication Technology (ICT), the organisation nur-
tured programmes as initiated in FY 2015-16 such as ‘ICT-led Education’, ‘Adarsh Patra’ and ‘View Finder Project’ in monitoring & evaluat-
ing their impact and in establishing guidance-mechanism for sustainability of same.

CSR projects of the company got featured in the India’s Best Practices in CSR Compendium by ISRN which was launched by Hon. Minister
of State (Finance & Corporate Affairs) at Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in July 2017. Additionally, the World CSR Congress 2017
recognised the representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh India Ltd. with the Citation of *100 Most Impactful CSR Leaders in Global
Listing’.

B. Harmony with Environment:

EPR Authorisation by CPCB under E-waste Management Rules 2016 — Ricoh India Ltd. was granted the Extended Producer Responsibility
Authorisation as Producer of electronic & electrical equipment in India by the Central Pollution Control Board. The organisation informs the
procedure of recycling & makes disclosures of its e-waste collection and recycling on its website https://www.ricoh.co.in/about/environment

As an advisory group member and signatory to the declaration of India Business & Biodiversity Initiative (IBBI), Ricoh India Ltd. promotes
sharing and learning on its ‘Project Nature Watch’ & ‘Empowering Digital workplaces’ for paperless workflow to mainstream sustainable
management of biological diversity by business.

Representative of CSR & Environment at Ricoh India was invited by Confederation of Indian Industry as Member to the National Environ-
ment Committee in June 2017 for term 2017-18 to contribute as work-group member of e-Waste Management & Plastic Waste management.

C. Raising the Next generation:

Realising the crucial role of management education in shaping of corporate leaders of future, Ricoh India works with premier management in-
stitutions and its faculty to conduct guest lectures for students on principles of responsible and inclusive business so as to enable a sustainable
ecosystem. Additionally, the organisation has tied up with renowned institutions to build learning modules on efficient & effective end-of-life
management to evangelise aspect of product stewardship and circular economy.

‘R-UBUNTU” was launched as an employee engagement program to promote culture of skills-based volunteerism at the organisation. Over
1000 person-hours were contributed by employees Pan-India during office-hours to conduct activities towards sustainable society.2.
The Composition of the CSR Committee.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors of Ricoh India Limited in its Meeting held on 24th March 2014 had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee which got dissolved during the year under review on account of resignation of all of the Independent Directors of the Company on 9th
November 2017. The said Committee was re-constituted on 27th March 2018.

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan was appointed as Chairperson of the Committee while Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura (Non-Executuve Director) and Mr.
Noboru Akahane (Non-Executive Director) were inducted as Members of the Committee. On account of resignation of Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura as
Director of the Company on 1st April 2018, the said Committee on 15th May 2018 was again re-constituted with Mr. Subhankar Lahiri, Managing
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Director and CEO of the Company becoming Member of the said Committee in place of Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura with Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan
and Mr. Noboru Akahane as Chairperson and Member of the Committee respectively. Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman / Director of the
Company effective 28th September 2018.

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:
Average net loss amounting to INR (7,79,47,52,332) /-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above):
NIL

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year. N.A.
(a) Total amount spend for the financial year N.A.

(b) Amount unspent, if any; N.A.

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof,
the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report. N.A.

7. Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR
Objectives and Policy of the Company.

The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy has been carried out with all reasonable care and
Diligence and the same is in compliance with the CSR objectives and the policy of the company

Shubhankar Lahiri Hamsa Vijayaraghavan
Managing Director & CEO Chairman of CSR Committee
Ricoh India Limited Ricoh India Limited.
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ANNEXURE ‘H’ OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part ‘A’: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR)
Not Applicable
Part ‘B’: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Name I.D.C. Electronics Limited (Associate Company)
The Company does not have any Joint Venture
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31 March 2017
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 8 July 2005 (I.D.C. Electronics Limited got associated with Ricoh India
Limited due to merger/amalgamation of Gestetner India Limited with
Ricoh India Limited

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures
held by the company on the year end : 3,98,910
No. of shares
Amount of Investment in Associates or

Joint Venture INR 39,89,100
Extent of Holding (in percentage) 39.97%
4. Description of how there is significant Influence Control of 39.97% of its total shareholding
5. Reason why the associate/joint venture The investment in IDC Electronics Limited is valued at INR 1 only. IDC
is not consolidated Electronics Limited has not traded for many years. The amount under consid-

eration is not material to impact true and fair presentation of the financial
statements. The Directors do not believe that there is any material difference
between the accounts reported on a stand alone basis and those that would be
reported on a consolidated basis.

6. Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet (39,500)

7. Profit or Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation -
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (8000)

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - Nil

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Nil
For and on behalf of the board of Directors of Ricoh India Limited
Shubhankar Lahiri

Managing Director & CEO

Date : 21 November 2018
Place: Noida
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14" May 2018. Its affairs, business and assets are
being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT vide its Order dated 14
May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15 June 2018 under provisions of the Code.

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna
Chamadia.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Ricoh India Limited recognizes that good Corporate Governance is a continuing exercise and reiterates its commitment to pursue highest standards of
Corporate Governance in overall interests of the Company and its Stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The business of the Company was being managed by the Board of Directors. However, pursuant to initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended with effect from 14 May 2018 and the Powers of the Board
remains vested with the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) by the Order
of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench dated 14th May 2018. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the Powers of the
Board of Directors stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr Krishna Chamadia (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-
2018/11220) appointed as the IRP with respect to the Company. The IRP further continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors
in its first meeting held on 15 June 2018 under the provisions of the Code.

The Composition of the Board of Directors had fallen below the minimum requirement in FY 2017-18 as stipulated under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 when all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr UP Mathur, Mr. RK Pandey, Mr. Rajiv
Ahuja and Ms Ashish Garg resigned together as Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017. Further, Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada also resigned as
Director of the Company on 21 December 2017.

The Company Secretary/Compliance Officer of the Company have been periodically informing the Senior Management and Board of Directors of the
Company on the matters pertaining to Compliance of various Regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 which got
effected due to resignations of all of the Independent Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25 January 2018 approved the matter to file an Application under Section 10 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) Process.

As on the date of the said financial year end i.e 31 March 2018, the Company had the following Directors on the Board.
Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman

*Mr. AT Rajan, Managing Director and CEO

Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura, Non Executive Director

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary, Independent Director

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan, Independent Director

*The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 22 February 2018 unanimously decided that on account of SEBI Order dated 12 February 2018 passed
in the matter of Ricoh India Limited Mr. A.T Rajan shall proceed on leave till further Orders of the Board.

The Board evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies, performance objectives and effectiveness of Corporate Governance
practices.

As on 31 March, 2018 the total strength of the Board of Directors of the Company was Five, comprising of One Executive Director, Two Non-Executive
Directors and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. One of the two Non-Executive Independent Directors namely Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan is
a Woman Director.

During the year under review, Mr. Noboru Akahane was Non-Executive Chairman of the Board.
All Directors possess relevant skills and experience to bring rational judgement for running the affairs of the Company.
No Director is related to any other Director on the Board in terms of the definition of ‘Relative’ given under the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. AT Rajan term as Managing Director and CEO of the Company expired on 31% March 2018. However, as on date he continues to be Non Executive
Director of the Company.
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Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura resigned as Director of the Company on 1* April 2018.
Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company on 28 September 2018.
Mr. RK Pandey, Mr. UP Mathur, Ms Ashish Garg and Mr. Rajiv Ahuja, Independent Directors of the Company resigned together on 9" November 2017.

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in the Meeting of the Board held on 27 March 2018 effective 1 April
2018.

Further, Mr. Subhankar Lahiri was also appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company by the Board in their meeting of
27" March 2018 for a period from 1% April 2018 to 31* March 2019 subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company which was subsequently
obtained by way of Postal Ballot conducted by the Company. The result of the Postal Ballot was declared on 28 September 2018.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary is a Management Graduate from [IM, Ahmedabad with Graduation from IIT, Kharagpur and having more than 20 years experience
in varied Industries including last 10 - 12 years in Leadership Roles.

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary has worked as CEO of Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited from May 2011 to November 2017. He has been CEO of
Innovative Tech Pack Limited from June 2009 to April 2011. He has worked as Vice President of Betts Indian Private Limited from May 2002 to May
2007.

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan (Woman Director) is a Law Graduate from Symbiosis Society’s Law College, Pune.

She is Masters in European Law and Practice from the Universite de Rouen, France and the Universidade Catolica, Lisbon, Portgual. She is presently
working as Senior Legal Protection Officer in the Ara Trust (A Private Charitable Trust).

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan is there a Member of Management Board and responsible for the overall Management and Implementation of the Programme
and day to day decisions.

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan has experience in Budgeting, Fund Raising and Preparing Annual Financial Reports.
Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan has also worked as Legal Consultant in Ministry of Women and Child Development, Government of India.

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Formal letters of apointments have
been issued to the Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its Promoters, its Management or its
Associates, which in the judgment of the Board may affect independence of judgment of the Director, apart from the Sitting Fees received by them for
attending the Meetings of the Board and Audit Committee Meeting.

Managing Director and CEO
Mr. Subhankar Lahiri age 45 years holds Bachelor Degree in Commerce and also Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management.
He is also a Certified Auditor under ISO 9001.

In a career spanning 23 Years Mr. Subhankar Lahiri has worked in areas of Product Marketing, Sales, ERP Implementation, Service Management,
Supply Chain, Total Quality Management, Vertical Business - Manufacturing and Project Management.

He has previously worked as Head - Centre of Excellence and Project Director in Ricoh India Limited.
Mr. Subhankar Lahiri started his career with Gestetner India Limited in the year 1997.

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri has been working in Ricoh India Limited from July 2005 onwards post merger of Gestetner India Limited with Ricoh India
Limited.

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board meets frequently to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy (ies) and strategies apart from transacting other normal Board business.

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, Seventeen (17) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held, i.e on 20 April 2017, 26 May
2017, 3 August 2017, 30 August 2017, 1 September 2017, 15 September 2017, 26 October 2017, 27 October 2017, 3 November 2017, 9 November
2017, 25 January 2018, 8 February 2018, 13 February 2018, 22 February 2018, 6 March 2018, 9 March 2018 and 27 March 2018.

The maximum interval between any two meetings was less than One Hundred and Twenty days, as stipulated under Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

None of the Director of the Company is a Member of more than (Ten) 10 Committees or is Chairman of more than (Five) 5 Committees across all Listed
Companies in which they are Directors.

Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the financial year ended 31st March, 2018, the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on Monday, 25 September 2017 and also the number of other Directorships and Committee Memberships/Chairmanships in other Public
Companies of the Directors of the Company are as follows:-
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Details of Attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting:-

Name of the Director Category Attendance Particulars No. of Directorship and Committee* Membership/
Chairmanship in other Companies
No. of Board Meetings Last Other Committee Committee
AGM Directorship Membership | Chairman-ship
Held Attended
Mr. AT Rajan # MD/CEO 17 14 Yes NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Noboru Akahane % NED 17 14 Yes NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura + NED 17 11 Yes NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Tan Winham ++ NED 17 2 N/A NIL NIL NIL
Mr. H Kitada * NED 17 0 No NIL NIL NIL
Mr. R.K. Pandey ** NED/ID 17 10 Yes 10 3 1
Mr. U.P. Mathur $ NED/ID 17 10 Yes NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Rajeev Ahuja $$ NED/ID 17 7 Yes 4 NIL NIL
Ms. Ashish Garg ## NED/ID 17 10 Yes 1 NIL NIL
Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary @ NED/ID 17 1 N/A NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan @@ NED/ID 17 1 N/A NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Subhankar Lahiri *** MD/CEO 17 N/A N/A NIL NIL NIL
Note:-

Committee position of only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committee mentioned.
% Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman of the Board on 28 September 2018.

# Mr. AT Rajan has ceased to be the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company w.e.f. 15" April 2018. However, he
continues to be Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company. As decided by the Board in its meeting held on 22 February 2018, Mr. AT
Rajan proceeded on leave till further Orders of the Board.

+ Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura has resigned as Director of the Company on 1% April 2018.

++ Mr. lan Winham had resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company on 3 August 2017.

e Mr. H Kitada has resigned as Director of the Company on 21% December 2017.

** Mr. R.K. Pandey resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.

$ Mr. U.P. Mathur resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.

$$ Mr. Rajiv Ahuja resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.

## Ms. Ashish Garg resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.

@ Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary has been appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27" March 2018.

@@ Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan has been appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27" March 20138.
**%MTr. Subhankar Lahiri has been appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company with effect from 1** April 2018.
NED — Non-Executive Director

ID - Independent Director

MD - Managing Director

CEO - Chief Executive Office

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

None of the Directors are related to each other within the meaning of term * Relative’ as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

NUMBER OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company hold either any Shares of the Company or convertible instruments.
INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Members of the Board are provided with well-structured and comprehensive agenda papers. All major agenda items are backed by in-depth
background information and analysis, wherever possible, to enable the Board Members to take informed decisions.

40



RICOH

imagine. change.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The Independent Directors of the Company are being paid only sitting fees towards attending the Board of Directors and Audit Committee Meetings.
No other Remuneration or Commission is paid to Non-Executive/Independent Directors of the Company.

The following table gives details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year 2017-18:-

(In Rupees)
Name of the Director Salary and Performance Commission Sitting Fee Total
Perquisites linked Bonus

Mr. AT Rajan # 75,62,330 - - - 75,62,330
Mr. Noboru Akahane - - - - -

Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura + - - - - -

Mr. Ian Winham ++ - - - - -

Mr. H Kitada * - - - - -

Mr. R.K. Pandey ** - - - 2,00,000 2,00,000
Mr. U.P. Mathur $ - - - 2,00,000 2,00,000
Mr. Rajeev Ahuja $$ - - - 1,05,000 1,05,000
Ms. Ashish Garg ## - - - 2,00,000 2,00,000
Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary @ - - - 25,000 25,000
Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan @@ - - - 25,000 25,000
Mr. Subhankar Lahiri **%* - - - - -

# Mr. AT Rajan has ceased to be the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company w.e.f. 31% March 2018 on account of
expiration of his term. However he continues to be Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company.

** Mr. R.K. Pandey has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
$ Mr. U.P. Mathur has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9™ November 2017.
$$ Mr. Rajiv Ahuja has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
## Ms. Ashish Garg has resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura resigned as Director of the Company on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Tan Winham resigned as Director/Chairman of the Company on 3 August 2017
Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada resigned as Director of the Company on 21 December 2017.
@ Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary has been appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27" March 2018.
@@ Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan has been appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27" March 2018.
*%%MTr. Subhankar Lahiri has been appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company with effect from 1* April 2018.

No Stock Option or Pension was given to any of the Director of the Company during the financial year 2017-18.

The remuneration policy of the Company is to pay competitive remuneration, thereby facilitating the Company to recruit and retain the best talent. The
remuneration paid to the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company is decided by the Board of Directors.

The Company is paying only Sitting fees to its Independent Directors for attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. The
Independent Directors of the Company were being paid Sitting Fees of Rs. 10,000/- and Rs. 15,000/~ each for attending the meetings of the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors respectively.

The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Director consists of fixed component and variable performance incentive and is determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and is subsequently approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company as per
applicable provisions of Law.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company holds any shares in the Company as on date of this Report.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must for every employee, including Board members and senior management personnel of Ricoh India
Limited. The Code is intended to serve as a basis for ethical decision-making in conduct of professional work.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.ricoh.co.in All Board members and Senior Management Personnel affirm
compliance with the Code of Conduct annually.

A declaration signed by the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company to this effect is annexed and forms part of this report.
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In accordance with Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company shall familiarise its Independent Directors with their Roles,
Responsibilities in the Company, Nature of the Industry in which the Company operates and Business Model/Profile of the Company through various
Programme(s). A familiar Programme was conducted on 27" March 2018.

The objective of a familiarisation programme is to ensure that the Independent Directors understand the business of the Company and contribute
accordingly to the cause of the Company.

The Company had conducted a familiarisation programme for its Independent Directors, the purpose was to familiarise them inter alia with the
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, the code of conduct to be adhered, to the nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the
business model of the Company, meeting with the senior management team members etc.

The details of such familiarisation programme has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www.ricoh.co.in and the weblink thereto is http://
www.ricoh.co.in/investors/Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors.

SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company met separately on 27 March 2018 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members of
management. The meeting was attended by both of the Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the requirement of sub-regulation (7) of Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Independent Directors were familiarized with
the following:-

(i) Nature of the Industry in which the Company operates

(i1)) Business model of the Company

(ii1) Products and Services offered by the Company to its Customers

(iv) Roles, Right and Responsibilities of the Independent Directors

A familiarization session incorporating the above was conducted during the meeting to train and update the Independent Directors.
A separate meeting of the two newly appointed Independent Directors was of the Company was held on 27" March 2018.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various Committees of Directors to deal with specific areas/ activities which concern the Company. The Board Committees
are set up under the formal approval of the Board, to carry out the clearly defined role which is considered to be performed by members of the Board as
part of good governance practice. The Minutes of the Meetings of all of the Committees are placed before the Board for review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and as per the requirement of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR), the Company has an Audit
Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee during the year has fallen below the minimum requirement as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 when all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company resigned together on 9" November
2017.

The main role and functions of the Audit Committee, inter alia include:

a) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company
b) Review and monitor the Auditors Independence and performance and effectiveness of Audit process

¢) Examination of the Financial Statement and the Auditors Report thereon

d) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with Related Parties

e) Evaluation of Internal Financial controls and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Non-Executive Directors.

As on 31 March 2018, the Committee was headed by Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary, Chairman of the Audit Committee and comprises of Mr. Noboru Akahane
and Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan as its Members.
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All the current Members of the Audit Committee have relevant experience in financial matters.

During the year, the committee held Six (6) meetings i.e. on 20 April 2017, 26 May 2017, 30 August 2017, 1 September 2017, 17 October 2017 and
27 March 2018.

The attendance record for the Audit Committee Meetings held during the year is as under:-

Name of the Members Attendance

Mr. U.P. Mathur 50f5
(Resigned on 9 November 2017)

Mr. R.K. Pandey 50of5
(Resigned on 9 November 2017)

Mr. H. Kitada 1 of 5
(Resigned on 21 December 2017)

Ms. Ashish Garg S5of5
(Resigned on 9 November 2017)

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary 1 of'1
(Appointed on 27 March 2018)

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan lofl
(Appointed on 27 March 2018)

Mr. Noboru Akahane 1of1
(Resigned on 28 September 2018)

Attendance is expressed as number of meetings attended out of number eligible to attend.
All Members of the Audit Committee of the Board are Financially literate.

Mr. UP Mathur, Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company had attended the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on
Monday, 25 September 2017.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
FINANCE COMMITTEE/BOARD COMMITTEE (FOR FINANCE MATTERS)

The Finance Committee/Board Committee (For Finance Matters) is entrusted inter alia with the functions pertaining towards borrowing from time to
time any sum or sums of money for meeting the financial requirements of the Company, to increase, decrease or modify any of the existing Working
Capital Limits etc.

The Finance Committee/Board Committee (For Finance Matters) until 9" November 2017 consisted of two Directors and it met as and when required.

The Committee consisted of Mr. AT Rajan, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. U.P. Mathur, Director. Mr. AT Rajan, Managing Director and CEO was
the Chairman of the Committee.

On 9" day of November 2017 the Finance Committee/Board Committee (For Finance Matters) got dissolved on account of resignation of all of the
Independent Directors of the Company considering the fact that one of the Independent Directors Mr. U.P. Mathur was a Member of the said Committee.

The Finance Committee/Board Committee (For Finance Matters) of the Company had held (Five) 5 Meetings during the year under review i.e on 2 May
2017, 7 June 2017, 7 July 2017, 1 September 2017 and 9 October 2017.

Further at the Board Meeting of the Company held on 27 March 2018 the Finance Committee/Board Committee (For Finance Matters) was again re-
constituted effective 1% April 2018.

Mr. Subhankar Lahiri was appointed as Chairman of the said Committee while Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan were Members
of the said Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In view of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which became effective from 1st April 2014, all Listed Companies are required to constitute the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be to identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may infact be
appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board such Directors’ appointment and removal and shall
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carry out evaluation of every Directors’ performance.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and recommend to the Board, a Policy, relating to the Remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors decide whether to
extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the Policy ensure that:-

(a) The level and composition of Remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the Quality required to run the
Company successfully;

(b) Relationship of Remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(¢) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The said Committee consisted of three Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. U. P. Mathur, Mr. R. K. Pandey and Ms.
Ashish Garg.

The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. U.P. Mathur, Independent Director.

On account of resignation of all of the Independent Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
got dissolved on 9" November 2017.

Further, the said Committee was re-constituted and re-casted on 27" March 2018. Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan was appointed Chairperson of the said
Committee while Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Mr. Noboru Akahane were appointed as Members of the said Committee.

During the year under review (Four) 04 meetings of the Committee were held i.e on 26 May 2017, 03 August 2017, 30 August 2017 and 27 March 2018.

The attendance record for the meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during the year is as under:-

Name of the Members Attendance
Mr. U.P. Mathur @ 30of3
Mr. R.K. Pandey @@ 30of3
Ms. Ashish Garg @@@ 30of3
Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary # 1of1
Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan ## 1of1
Mr. Noboru Akahane $ 1of1

@ Mr. UP Mathur resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.

@@ Mr. RK Pandey resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
@@@ Ms Ashish Garg resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
# Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary was appointed as Director of the Company on 27" March 2018.

## Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan was appointed as Director of the Company on 9" November 2017.
$ Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Director of the Company on 28 September 2018.

Attendance is expressed as number of meetings attended out of number eligible to attend.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of
Board of the Company, its Committees and the individual Board members, including Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the performance of Independent
Directors of the Company shall be evaluated by the entire Board of Directors provided that the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not
participate.

Performance evaluation is normally done by the Company in the month of March of an year. However, evaluation for the Financial Year 2017-2018
could not be done by the Company on account of resignation of Directors of the Company at regular intervals throughout the year.

All of the 4 Independent Directors of the Company together resigned from the Board of the Company on 9 November 2017. Mr. Hiroyasu Kitada
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resigned from the Directorship of the Company on 21 December 2017. Mr. Ian Winham resigned as Director/Chairman of the Company on 3 August
2017. Mr. AT Rajan proceeded on leave under instructions of the Board effective 23 February 2018.

Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary and Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghavan were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company on 27 March 2018.
REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Remuneration policy of your Company is a comprehensive policy which is competitive, in cognizance with the industry practices and rewards
good performance of the employees of the Company. The policy ensures equality, fairness and consistency in rewarding the employees on the basis of
performance against set objectives.

The Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high performance workforce. The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed
and variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance and the performance of the individuals is measured through the
annual process.

The Company’s philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and all other Employees is based on the
commitment of nurturing a culture of leadership with trust.

Keeping in view the above, the Company has adopted a Policy towards remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
other Employees which is fully aligned to this Philosophy.

The key factors considered in formulating the Policy are as under:-

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the
Company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(¢) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its Goals.

OBJECTIVE OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The objective of the Company’s Remuneration Policy is to ensure that the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management Personnel
and other Employees of the Company are governed by comprehensive compensation criteria that foster meritocracy and right behavior. Remuneration
packages are designed to attract and retain high caliber personnel required to run the Company successfully. The remuneration shall be competitive and
based on the individual responsibilities and performance.

One of the objective of the Remuneration Policy is to ensure that it is aligned to the overall performance of the Company. The Policy ensures that it is
fair and reasonable to attract and retain requisite talent, is linked to attaining performance benchmarks and involves a judicious balance of fixed and
variable components.

The Remuneration Policy is guided by a common reward, retention framework and set of principles and objectives as more fully and particularly
envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules issued thereon, inter-alia principles pertaining to determining
qualifications, positives attributes, integrity and independence etc.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In view of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, which became effective from 1 April 2014, all Listed Companies are required to constitute the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

On account of resignation of all of the Independent Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee got
dissolved on 9™ November 2017.

The said Committee was re-constituted on 27" March 2018 effective 1 April 2018 with Mr. Noboru Akahane, Chairman while Mr. Subhankar Lahiri
and Ms Hamsa Vijayaraghvan acting as Members of the Committee.

Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company with effect from 28 September 2018.
Mr. Manish Sehgal, Company Secretary acts as a Compliance Officer of the Company.

The Company had received (Fourteen) 14 complaints during the year. All the complaints have been duly settled and redressed by the Company. All
Share transfers are completed within statutory time period from the date of receipt provided the documents meet the legal requirements in all respects.

The Committee is inter alia entrusted with the responsibility to address the shareholders’ and investors’ complaints with respect to transfer of shares,
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends and approves and monitors transfers, transmission, splitting and consolidation of shares
issued by the Company.

As on date there is no complaint of any Shareholder which has not been resolved by the Company to the satisfaction of the Shareholder.

The Committee met (Ten) 10 times during the year. There are no shares pending transfer.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE UNDER SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
the Board of Directors of Ricoh India Limited in its Meeting held on 24 March 2014 had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
which got dissolved during the year under review on account of resignation of all of the Independent Directors of the Company on 9" November 2017.

Further, the said Committee was re-constituted on 27" March 2018.

Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan was appointed as Chairperson of the Committee while Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura (Non-Executive Director) and Mr. Noboru
Akahane (Non-Executive Director) were Members of the said Committee.

On account of resignation of Mr. Yoshitaka Motomura as Director of the Company on 1% April 2018, the said Committee on 15 May 2018 was again
re-constituted with Mr. Subhankar Lahiri, Managing Director and CEO of the Company becoming Member of the said Committee in place of Mr.
Yoshitaka Motomura with Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan and Mr. Noboru Akahane as Chairperson and Member of the Committee respectively.

Mr. Noboru Akahane resigned as Chairman/Director of the Company effective 28" September 2018.
The role of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee inter-alia is as under:-

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in compliance with
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities.

¢) Monitor the CSR Policy of the company from time to time.

During the year, One meeting of the CSR Committee was held on 27" March 2018.

Further, the Company has formulated a CSR Policy which has been uploaded on the website of the Company

(Web link: http//www.ricoh.co.in/Investors/Policies/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Location and time, where last three AGMs were held: No. of Special
Financial Year | Date Venue Time Resolutions
passed
2016-2017 25 September 2017 | MC Ghia Hall, 4" Floor, Bhogilal Hargovinddas Building, 18/20, 3.00 P.M. 5
K. Dubhash Marg, Kala Ghoda Fort, Mumbai — 400001
2015-2016 22 December 2016 Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Ground Floor, opp. INOX 9.00 A.M. 1
Cinema, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021.
2014-2015 24 September 2015 | The Leela Hotel, 10.00 A.M. 3
Sahar, Andheri East,
Mumbai — 400059

Details of Special Resolution(s) passed in the last 3 Annual General Meetings are as under:

Financial Year Particulars

2016-2017 Re-appointment of Mr. UP Mathur as Independent Director of the Company for the period of Five years.
Re-appointment of Mr. RK Pandey as Independent Director of the Company for the period of Five years.
Re-appointment of Ms. Ashish Garg as Independent Director of the Company for the period of Five years.

Re-appointment of Mr. AT Rajan as Managing Director and CEO of the Company for the period of One year from 1st April
2017 to 31st March 2018.

To consider and approve the matter of issuance of appropriate financial instruments in one or more series/tranches up to Rs 1000
Crores.

2015-2016 To consider and approve the matter of issuance of appropriate financial instruments in one or more series/tranches up to Rs
1000 Crores.

2014-2015 Appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar as Managing Director and CEO of the Company for the period of three years from 1st
April 2015 to 31st March 2018.

To authorise Board of Directors to raise or borrow money up to Rs 600 crores (Rupees Six Hundred Crores only)

To authorize Board of Directors to create charge/ mortgage on the assets of the Company

Extraordinary General Meetings:

During the period under review from 1% April 2017 to 315 March 2018, no Extraordinary General Meeting was held.
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WHETHER ANY SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN POSTAL BALLOT
Whether any Special Resolution passed last year through Postal Ballot — No

However, the Company has conducted the Postal Ballot in the Financial Year 2018-2019 for the purpose of taking approval of the Shareholders of the
Company for the following Resolution:

1. Appointment of Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary as an Independent Director (Ordinary Resolution)

2. Appointment of Ms. Hamsa Vijayaraghavan as an Independent Director (Ordinary Resolution)

3. Appointment of Mr Subhankar Lahiri as Director (Ordinary Resolution)

4. Appointment of Mr. Subhankar Lahiri as Managing Director and CEO of the Company (Special Resolution)

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 22 August 2018 had appointed Mr. Naresh Verma, FCS, Proprietor of M/s Naresh
Verma & Associates, Companies Secretaries as Scrutinizer to conduct the Postal Ballot and Remote E-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

M/s Central Depository (India) Services Limited (CDSL) was appointed as the Agency for providing Remote E-voting platform.
The Company had completed the dispatch of notice of Postal Ballot along with Postal Ballot Form on 27 August 2018.

Further, Friday, 10 August 2018 was fixed as Cut off date/Record Date for ascertaining the names of the Shareholders of the Company to whom the
notice of the Postal Ballot was required to be sent.

The Voting period remained open from Wednesday, 29 August 2018 from 9:00 AM onwards to Thursday, 27 September 2018 till 5:00 PM.

All Postal Ballot Forms received up to 5:00 PM on Thursday, 27 September 2018 being the last date and time fixed by the Company for the receipt of
the Postal Ballot Forms were considered for scrutiny.

The result of the Postal Ballot was declared on Friday, 28 September 2018 at 4:00 PM at the Corporate Office of the Company located at 7 Floor, Tower
'B’, Windsor IT Park Building, Sector 125, Expressway, Noida, Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh — 201 301.

As per the Scrutinizer Report dated 28 September 2018, all Resolutions were passed with requisite majority.

The results of the Postal Ballot were communicated to the BSE Limited and were also uploaded in the website of the Company.

Details of Voting Pattern:

Particulars of the Resolutions (Consolidated (E-voting and voting through Postal Ballot Forms)

No of Votes No of Votes in No of Votes % of Votes in % of Votes in

Polled Favour against Favour against

Appointment of Mr. Tanmoy Adhikary as 31095079 31092529 2550 99.99 0.01
an Independent Director
(Ordinary Resolution)
Appointment of Ms. Hamsa 31095079 31092029 3050 99.99 0.01
Vijayaraghavan as an Independent
Director
(Ordinary Resolution)
Appointment of Mr. Subhankar Lahiri as 31095079 31091029 4050 99.99 0.01
a Director
(Ordinary Resolution)
Appointment of Mr. Subhankar Lahiri as 31095079 31092529 2550 99.99 0.01
Managing Director and CEO
(Special Resolution)

No Special Resolutions are proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Friday, 21 December 2018. Hence, the procedure of Postal Ballot is not laid down.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company’s Quarterly results along with the Notes are published within 48 hours of approval by the Board in English and Regional language
newspaper (viz. Free Press Journal in English and Navshakti in Marathi) in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 47 of SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015 circulating in the State of Maharashtra and are also intimated to the Stock Exchange.

Any website where displayed

| Yes, Results are displayed on the Company’s website i.e www.ricoh.co.in
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| Whether it also displays official news releases

The Company’s results and other information are displayed on the Company’s website namely www.ricoh.co.in

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting
Date
Time

Venue

Financial Year

Listing on Stock Exchange

21 December 2018
10:00 AM
Hotel The Mirador

131/B, New Link Road Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 099

1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018
The Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited,

25th Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001.
Listing Fee for the year 2018-2019 has been duly
paid by the Company to the BSE Limited.

Scrip code at BSE : 517496

ISIN No. : INE291B01015 (Equity)

L74940MH1993PLC074694

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company
Details of Debenture Trustee
Asian Building, Ground Floor
17, R. Kamani Marg,
Ballard Estate
Mumbai — 400001
Telephone : 022-40807000
Fax : 022-66311776

Email : response@idbitrustee.com

Payment of Depository Fees

Annual Custody / Issuer Fee for the year 2018-2019 has been paid by the Company to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services Limited (CDSL).

Market Price Data

The facility of trading in the shares of the Company on Trade for Trade basis in Z group on the first trading day of every week was discontinued by BSE
Ltd with effect from 13 December 2016.

Shares of the Company were suspended from Trading with effect from 26 May 2016 on account of non compliance of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 for two successive quarters.

Hence, Market Price Data is not available for the Financial Year 2017-2018.
Share Price Performance in comparison to the BSE Sensex

The facility of trading in the shares of the Company on Trade for Trade basis in Z group on the first trading day of every week was discontinued by BSE
Ltd with effect from 13 December 2016. Further, Shares of the Company were suspended from Trading with effect from 26 May 2016 on account of
non compliance of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for two successive quarters.

Hence, Share price and BSE Sensex data is not available for the Financial Year 2017-2018.
In case the Securities are suspended from Trading, the Directors Report shall explain the reasons thereof

As detailed in the financial statements and fully explained in the Annual Report 2015-2016, the Company was impacted by financial irregularities
and falsifications, the impact of which were included in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016. Due to these issues, the Company
delayed in filing its accounts for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2015 and for the quarter and nine month ended 31 December 2015. As
aresult on 4 May 2016, BSE Limited issued a notice that the shares of the Company would be suspended with effect from 26 May 2016 on account of
non compliance of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 for two consecutive quarters.

The Shares of the Company at present remains under suspension.

The Company had filed an application for revocation of suspension of Trading of Shares of the Company with BSE Limited on 19 December 2016. All
necessary payments of penalties and filing fees were made at the same time.
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BSE Limited listed an appeal with the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) on 21 November 2016. This appeal was in respect
of the Order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) dated 30 September 2016 under which the NCLT had approved that the Company
did not need to follow Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956.

BSE Limited contended that the Company should follow such Sections and hence should have filed an advance Scheme with BSE Limited/SEBI prior
to gaining NCLT approval on 23 August 2016.

The Hon’ble NCLAT disposed of the appeal of BSE Limited on 23 May 2017.

The Order of the NCLT stated that the Company should comply with SEBI rules but that Sections 100 to 102 of the Companies Act, 1956 were not
relevant.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

All work related to Share Registry is handled by the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, F-65, 1st
Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.

Phone: 011-41406149 to 51 Fax: 011-41709881
E-mail: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
Website: www.mcsregistrars.com

Share Transfer System

The Share Transfers (pertaining to Shares in Physical Mode) are approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee which normally meets twice
in a month.

Share Transfers are normally processed well within the time stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, provided the documents are complete
in all respect.

Investors/Shareholders Correspondence(s) may be addressed either to the Company at its Corporate Office or to its Share Transfer Agents at the
following respective address(s):-

Mr. Manish Sehgal MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
Company Secretary (Unit: Ricoh India Limited)

Ricoh India Limited F-65, 1* Floor, Okhla Industrial Area

7" Floor, Tower B, Phase I, New Delhi - 110020

Windsor IT Park Building, Tel: 011-41406149 to 51

A-1, Sector 125, Noida, Email: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
Uttar Pradesh — 201301 Website: www.mesregistrars.com

Tel: 0120-4988 200 Fax: 0120-4988 222

Email: ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in

Distribution of Shareholding of the Company as on 31 March 2018

Range (Number of Shares) Folio Shares

Nos. Percentage % Nos. Percentage %
1 to 500 13758 85.66 1714982 431
501 to 1000 1262 7.86 919643 2.31
1001 to 2000 578 3.60 838760 2.11
2001 to 3000 155 0.97 398341 1.00
3001 to 4000 52 0.32 188027 0.47
4001 to 5000 50 0.31 234194 0.59
5001 to 10000 97 0.60 719831 1.81
10001 to 50000 81 0.50 1660233 4.17
50001 to 100000 11 0.07 810873 2.04
100001 and above 17 0.10 32283277 81.18
Total 16061 100.00 39768161 100.00
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

The Company has arrangements with National Securities Depositories Ltd. (NSDL) as well as the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL)
for demat facility.

As on 31 March 2018, 96.77% of the Shares of the Company were held in dematerialised mode. ISIN for the Company’s Shares is INE291B01015
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity

As of 31 March, 2018, the Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other Convertible Instruments.

Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

The Company does not have a Hedging Policy but follows treasury policies of Ricoh Company, Limited. The Company before Hedging evaluates the
likely gain/loss on account of hedging. An average foreign exchange rate is worked out based on the purchase made during a particular period.

Thereafter, the foreign exchange premium and changes are worked upon based on the current foreign exchange rates and future foreign exchange rates.
Further, in consultation with our Bankers, it is further analysed whether current open foreign exchange needs to be hedged considering the likely foreign
exchange gain/loss.

This exercise is repeated over a period of time and the foreign exchange is hedged once it is within the range of an average foreign exchange purchase
price.

Plant Locations: Not Applicable
Address for Correspondence and E-mail ID for Investors:

Compliance Officer - Mr. Manish Sehgal, Company Secretary

Corporate Office: Registered Office:

7" Floor, Tower B, Unit No. 1132, 3% Floor Building No. 11,
Windsor IT Park Building, Solitaire Corporate Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg,
A-1, Sector 125, Noida, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Chakala,

Uttar Pradesh — 201301 Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 093

E-mail: ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in
Tel: 0120-4988 200

Fax: 0120-4988 222

Designated e-mail ID for Investors:
ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(A) Disclosures on materially significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large.

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions with the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Disclosures on transactions with related parties have been incorporated in the notes to the Accounts, being part of the Annual Report.
None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in potential conflict with the Company’s interest at large.
All the Related Party Transactions were in ordinary course of the business and negotiated on an arm length basis and were intended to further the
Company’s interest.

(B) Details of non-compliance by the Company, Penalties, Strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s) or the Board or any
Statutory Authority, or any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

The Company defaulted in making half yearly interest payment on its Rs 200 Crores Non Convertible Debentures for the half year ended 10 March
2018 and 10 September 2018.

The Company defaulted in making timely submission of quarterly financial results for the quarter ended 30 September 2015 and 31 December
2016. Further, there was non compliance in submission of audited results for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company defaulted in making timely submission of quarterly financial results for the quarters ended 30 September 2017, 31 December 2017
and for the year ended 31 March 2018. Further, there was non compliance with timely submission of results for the quarters ended 30 June 2018
and 30 September 2018.
The Company has initially paid a penalty of Rs 18,86,593 (Rupees Eighteen Lakh Eighty Six Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Three only) to BSE
Limited while a sum of Rs 24,46,976/- (Rupees Twenty Four Lakhs Forty Six Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Six only) was also paid as penalty
to BSE Limited for non-compliance with Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

(C) Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism, Whistleblower Policy affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Company has put in place a mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behavior through its Whistle Blower Policy. Employees and Directors
are free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct.
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The report, if any in this regard as received from any person will be reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. It is affirmed that no person
has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company in this respect.

It is also ensured that confidentiality of such reporting is strictly maintained and that Whistleblowers are not subjected to any discriminatory
practice or harassment.

(D) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements.
The Company is in full compliance with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
Exchange.

(E) Web link where Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed- Not Applicable

(F) Web link where Policy on dealing with related party transactions: https://ricoh.co.in/about/Investors/Policies/Related Party Transaction
Policy.

(G) Non Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance report of sub-para (2) to (10) of Part-C of Schedule V of Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements, Regulations 2015, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed.

On account of resignation of all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company on 9 November 2017, the composition of the Board and
its Committees got disturbed and the same became not in conformity with the requirement of Regulations 17, 18, 19 and 20 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company had not complied with the requirement of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which stipulated submission of
financial results to the Stock Exchange.
The financials for the quarters ended 30 September 2017, 31 December 2017 and 30 March 2018 were not submitted by the Company as per the
time frame provided by SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

(H) The Corporate Governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of
Schedule II have been adopted
The Company had not adopted discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(I) The disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub
regulation (2) of regulation 46 shall be made in the section on Corporate Governance of the Annual Report

On account of resignation of all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company on 9 November 2017, the composition of the Board and
its Committees got disturbed and the same became not in conformity with the requirement of Regulations 17, 18, 19 and 20 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company has duly complied with the requirement of Regulations 22, 23, 25, 26, 27 and 46(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 while
Regulation 21 and Regulation 24 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable upon the Company.

The Company had not complied with the requirement of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which stipulated submission of
financial results to the Stock Exchange.

The financials for the quarters ended 30 September 2017, 31 December 2017 and 30 March 2018 were not submitted by the Company as per the
time frame provided by SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Company has complied with the disclosures as required in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Details of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

Rs 200 Crores Unsecured, Non-cumulative, Redeemable, Listed, Rated Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market
Segment of BSE Limited.

The Coupon Rate on the NCDs was reduced from 7.8% to 7% and the period of maturity of the NCDs was also extended to 10 September 2020.
The relevant details are mentioned below:-

Coupon Rate in % | ISIN Principal Amount | Date of Maturity Name of the Debenture Credit Rating for
Trustee Debentures

7 % INE291B01028 Rs 200 10 September 2020 | IDBI Trusteeship Services IND BBB- Stable
Limited

The Company defaulted in making Half Yearly payment of Interest on these Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) to the Debenture Holders on
previous two occasions i.e for the Half Year ended 10 March 2018 and 10 September 2018.

Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required under Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, Certificate on Corporate Governance is given in the Annual Report.
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Subhankar Lahiri
Managing Director & CEO

Dated: 21 November 2018
Place: Noida
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Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Ricoh India Limited on Compliance of Code of Conduct

I, Subhankar Lahiri, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Ricoh India Limited based on confirmation received from all the Directors
and Senior Management of the Company, do hereby state that all the current Board Members and Senior Management personnel of the Company has
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2018.

For Ricoh India Limited
Date: 21 November 2018 Subhankar Lahiri
Managing Director & CEO

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER PROVI-
SIONS OF CHAPTER IV OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

We, Naresh Verma & Associates, Company Secretaries, have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Ricoh India Limited,
for the year ended on March 31, 2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(”SEBI Listing Regulations™).

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes the design, implemen-
tation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable
assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the condi-
tions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2018 except that the company is in non-com-
pliance of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as financials for the quarters ended 30
September 2017, 31 December 2017 and 31 March 2018 alongwith limited review report are yet to be made available by the company and trading of
its shares has been suspended. Further on account of resignation of all of the Four (4) Independent Directors of the Company on 9 November 2017,

the composition of the Board and its Committees got altered and the same became not in conformity with the requirement of Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20
and 25(6) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company presently is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) in terms of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) reg-
ulations and Mr Krishna Chamadia, Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00694/2017-18/11220 has been appointed as Resolution Professional by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai in this regard.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has con-
ducted the affairs of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations under the
Listing Regulations with reference to Corporate Governance Report accompanied with by a report thereon from the statutory auditors and should not
be used by any other person or for any other purpose.

Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring
after the date of this report.

For Naresh Verma & Associates
Company Secretaries

Naresh Verma
CP:4424, FCS: 5403

Date : 21 November 2018
Place : Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ECONOMIC REVIEW

INDIAN ECONOMY

India will clock a GDP growth rate of 7.2% in 2018 and 7.4% in 2019 as a result of robust private consumption, public investment and government

reforms, says United Nations ‘World Economic Situation and Prospects 2018’ report released on Monday.

The Indian economy will grow at 7.2% in 2018 and accelerate to 7.4% in the following year as a result of robust private consumption, public investment
and structural reforms, but it still faces the risk of sudden capital withdrawal on account of monetary policy normalization in developed countries, a
United Nations report said.

“Despite the slowdown observed in early 2017 and the lingering effects from the demonetization policy, the outlook for India remains largely positive,
underpinned by robust private consumption and public investment as well as ongoing structural reforms,” this is as per the United Nations World
Economic Situation and Prospects 2018 Report. At the global level, growth is expected to remain steady at 3% in 2018 and 2019, it said.

The report also forecast that inflation in India will be 4.5% in 2018 and 4.8% in 2019, slightly above the Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) medium-term
consumer price index-based (CPI-based) inflation target of 4%. The Central Bank had in its 6 December monetary policy review had raised its fiscal
second-half inflation estimate range marginally to 4.3-4.7%.

“Subdued inflation, coupled with a good monsoon season, offers scope for additional monetary easing. However, if inflation accelerates faster than
anticipated, the loosening cycle could end abruptly,” said the report.

In the latest review, Reserve Bank of India left its repurchase rate—the rate at which it infuses liquidity in the banking system—unchanged at 6%. The
UN Report listed sluggish private investment as a key macroeconomic concern for India.

Subdued credit growth, low capacity utilization in some industrial sectors and balance sheet problems in the banking and corporate sectors have been
the problems faced by the Indian economy, while public investment in infrastructure has played a critical role in propping up overall investment growth.

The other challenge is a spike in risk aversion and sudden capital withdrawal that monetary policy normalization in developed economies could trigger.

“Central banks in developed economies are currently operating in largely unchartered territory, with no historical precedent as guidance. This makes
any adjustment of financial markets less predictable than during previous recoveries and amplifies the risks associated with policy errors,” said the
report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

INR Crores Year ended Year ended

31* March 2018 31* March 2017
Net Sales and other income 689.4 1,226.7
(Loss) before exceptional items (337.9) (334.2)
Exceptional items 547.5 -
(Loss) before tax (885.4) (334.2)

DISCUSSIONS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The net sales has decreased from INR 1,226.7 Crores to INR 689.4 Crores on account to slowdown in business and loss in market share from the
previous financial year. There has been a withdrawal of support from Ricoh Japan in October 2017 which has further impacted the ability to drive
growth in the company. Furthermore, the company was severely affected by the fall in ITS (Information Technology Services) business segment; the
company did not bid for any new projects during the financial year, the ongoing projects were delayed as collections were hindered on account of
lack of investments into ITS projects during the period. Exception items increased to INR 547.5 Crores on account of doubtful deposits, debts and
write offs which were incurred during the financial year.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Today, technology-centric transformation altering business and society on the way it’s existed. We believe that technology capabilities enable sustainable
change at the speed of digital business. This will be depending on the political, social and economic situations and future developments.

The economic slowdown has affected the growth to an extent, however, the countermeasures by the government will ensure a faster economic growth
which will boost the business in total.

The new data-centric paradigm and developments centered this will be leading the business growth in the near future. However, the increase in theft,
ransom & cyberattack will also force Organizations to invest more to prevent such incidents.

This new age of network intelligence is reinventing businesses, governments, and individuals and opens new avenues for Ricoh to expand. Today
customers want a quick, easy and seamless digital experience. They want personalized treatment, intuitive user interfaces, access to data and other
things in real-time.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench with effect from 14™ May 2018. Ricoh India Limited affairs, business
and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Krishna Chamadia appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT vide its
Order dated 14 May 2018 and continued as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors in its Meeting held on 15 June 2018 under provisions
of the Code.

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the Resolution Professional, Mr. Krishna
Chamadia. The Moratorium Period as stipulated under Section 14 of the IBC Code, 2016 is in force.

Under the current CIRP period, the Resolution Professional is in the process of inviting Resolution Plans, once a Plan is submitted, it will be placed
before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) and thereafter before Hon’ble NCLT for approval.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As mentioned earlier, the Resolution Professional is in the process of Inviting Resolution Plans for the Company which shall be subsequently placed
before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) and thereafter to Hon’ble NCLT for its approval.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
Risk description Risk impact Risk mitigation
Competition The company’s success depends on its ability on price, | Ricoh Company Limited is continuing to develop new
product range and has been hindered by constraints in | products and services that the Company can leverage. In
supply addition, the Company is offering higher value services
such as IT services, that extend the importance of the
Company to its customers
People The Company’s success depends on its ability to attract, | Human resource processes are being refined and
retain and motivate the best people with the right | improved taking advantage of benchmarking and best
capabilities at all levels of the organization practices within the Ricoh Group globally
Foreign Currency Volatility Volatility in foreign currency may impact our costs and | The risk is managed in accordance with Ricoh Company
hence operating results treasury policies that cover appropriate hedging
Cost Pressure Increase in employee costs and other expenses may create | There is a continuous focus on increasing productivity
margin pressure and looking for ways to automate and improve processes
Compliance and Control Failure to address would expose the company to further | In continuation of the previous financial year, efforts
losses have been put in place to monitor, control and improve
compliances within the company and its processes
Reputation Following the falsification of accounts, the Company | There is a clear focus on ethics and integrity. The Ricoh
needs to rebuild the trust of all its stakeholders Way is reinforced on an ongoing basis. We will deliver

high quality services to delight our customers. We will
operate transparently so that all stakeholders are aware
of our progress.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

It is essential that the Company has in place adequate internal control processes and procedures that reflect the scale, nature and complexity of its
business.

As part of the analysis that enabled the Company to report its results for the previous year, areas for improving internal control were identified. The
Company is focused on continuous improvement and hence improvement will be an ongoing process reflecting both changes in the business and
opportunities for automation and enhanced controls. The focus is to ensure that the issues that led to falsification or errors cannot recur and to ensure
that the Company has a reputation for compliance and business excellence.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCE/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE
EMPLOYED

The Company’s approach is to unlock the potential of people while continuously developing their functional, operational and behavioral competencies.
The Company aspires to build and harness a team of dedicated employees who will work with passion, zeal and a sense of belongingness and play
a definite role in significantly accelerating the growth and transformation of the Company. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the
Company as on 31 March 2018 are 641.

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in this Management’s Discussion & Analysis Report describing the Company’s outlook, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions
may be “Forward Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws or regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those
expressed or implied.
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BSRA&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

6th Floor, Tower- 4, Plot # 07 Telephona + 91 120 386 8000
Advant Mavis Business Park Fax + 91 120 388 8999
Sector- 142, Noida Exprassway

Moida- 2013056, UP (India)

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Ricoh India Limited
1. Report on the audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements

We were engaged fo audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Ricoh India
Limited (*the Company"), which comprisc the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of profit
and loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
summary of the signifcant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management’s responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial statements

Ricoh India Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code (*“the Code™). Its affairs, business and asseis are being managed by the Resolution Professional
appointed by the Hon’ble NCL'T Mumbai vide its Order dated 14 May 2018 under the provisions of the
Code as Interim Resolution Professional and subsequently as per section 22 of the Code as Resolution
Professional of Ricoh India Limited. The matter against the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process is
pending for admission before the Hon'ble NCLAT vide Company Appeal (AT) MNo. 621/2018. Under
provisions of section 17 of the Code, the powers of Board of Directors of Ricoh India Limited are
currently under suspension and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional of Ricoh
India Limired.

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Resolution Professional is responsible
for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 20173 (“the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profitloss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are firee from material misstatement, whether due o [raud or
CITOr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Under section 20 of Code, it is incumbent upon
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Resolution Professional to manage the operations of the Company as a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

The written representations with regard to these financial statements provided to us during the course of
our audit, have been signed by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
However, the Resolution Professional, who was appointed subsequent to the year end, has not signed
these written representations.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audir. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. Because of the matters described in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion™
paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

(i) Attention is drawn Lo note 1 of the financial statements which brings out in detail the fact that the
Company’s net worth has been eroded by its accumulated losses as at the end of the current year.
Further, during the current year, the ultimate parent company has announced that it will not
provide any additional financial support to the Company going forward and will not supply
additional hardware or accessories to the Company unless pending payments are made.
Thereafier, the Company filed an application under section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Proeess with Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai.
This along with matters listed below indicate the existence of multiple uncertainties that are
significant to the financial statements as a whaole, cast significant doubt an the Company’s ahility
Lo continue as a going concern.

In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the outcome of which cannot
be presently ascertained and significant dependence of the Company’s operations on the ultimate
parent company as well as matters listed below, we are unable to comment whether the Company
will be able to continue as a going concern. Consequently, we are unable to comment as to
whether the going concern basis for preparation of these financial statements taken by the
Company is appropriate.

(ii) In view of irregularities and suspecled fraudulent transactions noted during the year ended 31
March 2016, the Company carried out investigations. As a result of the investigations, the
Company recorded significant adjusiments in its books of accounl during the year ended 31
March 2016.

In view of the fact that investigations by regulatory authorities in matters relating o
abovementioned financial irregularities are yet to be completed, we are unable to comment on
the consequential impact, if any, on the financial statements of the outcome of such
investigations / enquiry by law enforcement agencies and outcome of related litigation and
claims.

(iii) We had made various observations in our audit report dated 26 May 2017 on the financial
staterments for the year ended 31 March 2017, which inter alia included apart from other matters
[including those listed in paragraph 4(ii) above], limitations with regard to availability of
necessary audit evidences including original documents and information, satisfactory
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explanations and justifications required for audit for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2017, In view of the limitations and uncertainties involved, we had expressed our inability
to express an opinion on the financial statements for the aforesaid years. Our disclaimer of
opinion on the current year financial statements is also because of the possible effects of the
ahove matters on the figures for the current vear and on the corresponding figures for the vear
ended 31 Mareh 2017 and balances as at 1 April 2016 (including the adjustments required, if any
on transition to Indian Accounting Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act), which
also affects their comparability with current year figures,

(iv) We are unable to comment on the necessary adjustments / disclosures in these financial
statements in relation to the following items, in view of non-availability of certain necessary
information / documentation / satisfactory explanations relevant to the current year audit --

a. lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed (included under purchases of
stock in trade) with related sales; and
b. original documents / agreements were not made available in most cases and hence we

have had to carry out our audit procedures on photo copies of those documents, As
explained to us by the management, the original documents for certain revenue coniracts
have been submitted with the nodal agencies and with regard to other documents /
apgreements, considering the voluminous nature and in absence of a centralized document
management system, it was impracticable to provide the original documents / agreements.

{v) During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, in respect of machines given on
lease, we were not able to complete owr audit procedures due o non-availability of complete
documentation / defails e.g. ahsence of lease contracts, details and reconciliation of amount
collected, amount due as at period-end, analysis of nature of lease such as aperating lease vs.
finance lease and basis of allocation of revenues to multiple elements of the contracts (e.g. lease
instalment and charges based on number of prints) etc. Further, we observed inaccuracies /
inconsistencies in details used for computation of lease receivable as at period end such as fair
value of lease, lease terms, computation of interest rate implicit in the lease ete. No further
information in respect of such lease contracts entered till 31 March 2017 and continuing in the
current year has been provided to us for the purpose of our audit in the current year.

Further, based on samples tested in respect of lease contracts entered during the current year, we
noticed inconsistencies / errors in calculation of amounts allocated to multiple elements in the
contracis (e.g. fair values of various elements, lease instalment and charges based on number of
prints).

In view of abovementioned observations, we are unable to comment on the appropriateness of
revenue [rom operations and of the constituents thercof as well as depreciation expense
recognised for the vear ended 31 March 2018 and the consequential impact on the carrying value
of lease receivables and of assets given on lease as at 31 March 2018.

(vi) As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has received certain
claims aggregating to INR 75,097 lacs till 14 May 2018 from certain vendors and customers. As
per the books of account of the Company, the balance recoverable from these customers /
vendors (advance given net of amounts payable) is INR 34,361 lacs as at 31 March 2018, As
informed to us by the management, the Company has terminated most of the contracts with the
said customers / vendors. [Also refer to notes 36 and 43 of the financial statements]

The management believes that the claims made by the customers / vendors are frivolous and not
tenable. A provision in the books of account has also been created on the basis of management’s
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. (wii)

(viii)

(ix)

estimate of the balances io the exient considered doubtful of recovery. However, basis the
evidence currently available, we are unable to express an opinion on the apnropriateness of the
provision in respect of the aforementioned balances / claims.

Attention is invited to note 41 of the financial statements wherein it is stated that as a part of its
intimation of Oectober 2017 to not provide any additional financial support going forward to the
Company, the ultimate parent company has repaid all outstanding balances of the Company's
bankers aggregating IMR 129,528 lacs since the same had been guaranteed by the ultimate parent
company. The ultimate parent company has further claimed an interest of INK 3,515 lacs on the
aforementioned amount payable to it by the Company for period till 31 March 2018. In absence
of any agreement regarding terms, the Company has not acknowledged the amount of interest
claimed by the ultimate parent company as debt. Further, the duration of this loan has not been
determined though it has been included under Borrowings as current liabilities in these financial
statements.

Further, the Company has also not recognized the impact of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments™
on the accounting and classification of this amount.

Similarly, the Company has not ascertained the impact of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments™ an
the redeemable non-convertible debentures aggregating to INR 20,000 lacs issued to a Group
company with an intercst rate which appears to be lower than the market rate of interest.

Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact of the above on the financial statements,

Trade receivables include foreign currency receivables of INR 1,849 lacs in respect of two
related parties wherein there is an unreconciled difference (higher receivable balance in the
books of account of the Company) of INR 446 lacs. Pending reconciliation and agreement on
these balances, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the carrying value of trade
receivahles,

Further, some of the foreign currency balances (both receivable and payable) have been
outstanding for a period which is beyvond the prescribed period for settlement of such balances as
per the Reserve Bank of India (RB1) guidelines. Mon-compliance with the provisions of RBI
guidelines may result in imposition of penalties on the Company, which have not been quantified
by the Company. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impaet, if any, of the above
mentioned non-compliance on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,

Alttention is invited to note 43(A) of the financial statements wherein it is stated that the
Company has used significant assumptions / estimates in accounting in certain critical areas such
as revenue contracts, quantities and valuation of inventories, provision for doubtful receivables
in respect of outstanding trade receivables / supplier advances and provision for certain employee
benefits, These assumptions / estimates primarily include —

a. allocation of revenues and costs to multiple elements of the revenue contracts and
estimated costs to complete or exit the contracts;

h. assessment and quantification of onerous contracis;

. realizable values of damaged, non-moving and slow-moving inventories aggregating to
INR 10,520 lacs {with a net realizable value of INR. 3,180 lacs);

d. realisability of outstanding receivables from customers and supplier advances and which

is also not based on expeeted credit loss model as required under Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments™; and
e future expected withdrawal rate of employees,
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In view of the significance of these assumptions / estimates and in the absence of substantive
audit evidence including past trends, reconciliation with customers / vendaors, reliable estimate of
future developments etc., we are unable to validate the reasonableness of these assumptions /
cstimates. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the consequential impact of the actual
outcome as compared to the aforementioned assumptions [ estimates, if any, on these financial
statements.

(x) Allention i3 invited o nole 40 of the Onancial statements wherein it is stated that the Company
has during the year done a detailed examination of certain receivable and payable balances and
as a result the Company has written back the balances aggregating to INR 943 lacs (payable
balances of INR 3,440 lacs, net off receivable balances of INR 2,506 lacs) where the necessary
details / documents were not available with the Company. The aforesaid amount writien back
{nel) has been included under “Exceptional items” in the financial statements. However, in
absence of the necessary details required for the purposes of our audit, we are unable to comment
on the appropriateness of such amounts written back (net) and their consequential impact on the
financial statements.

{xi) During the year, the Company has recorded significant adjustments pertaining to prior periods in
the financial statements. Attention is invited to note 43(B) of the financial statements wherein it
iz stated that the impact of such adjustments has been guantified at ITNR 6,548 lakhs by the
management. However, in absence of the necessary details, we are unable to comment on the
completeness, existence and accuracy of this amount. Further, the impact the prior period
adjustments has not been restated retrospectively / disclosed separately in the financial
statements as required under Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors™,

(xii) The Company needs to strengthen its internal control systems, in particular its I'T controls and
those relating to existence of contract work-in-progress; revenue from leases; reconciliation of
consumables and spares consumed with related sales; accounis receivables including periodic
reconciliations with cuslomers, age wise analysis and application of receipts from customers;
physical verification of inventories; accounts payables including vendor selection process and
periodic reconciliations with vendors; classification of costs relating to items of purchase of
traded goods including cosis incurred towards warranty and cerlain coniract expenses; and
disposal of property, plant and equipment. We are unable to determine consequential impact, if
any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial statements.

(xiii) The Company has not filed its financial results for the periods ended 30 September 2017 and
subsequent periods till date as preseribed under regulation 33 of the SERI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Eeguirements) Regulations, 201 5.

Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, of this non-compliance on the
financial statements.

In view of our observations in paras 4(i) to 4(xiii) above, we are unable 1o determine the adjustments,
that are necessary in respect of the Company's assects, liabilities as on balance sheet date, income and
expenses for the year, the elements making up the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
and related presentation and diselosures in the financial statements.

Most of the aforesaid maters except for 4(i), 4(vii), 4(viii), 4(xii) and 4(xiii) were also included
{completely or partially) in the basis of disclaimer of opinion in our previous year audit report.

.8
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5.

Disclaimer of opinian

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
have not been ahle to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accardingly, we do nol express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. .

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

(i)

(i)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (*the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and except for the
effects, if any, of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
enclose in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

B

as described in the basizs for dizsclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were unable (o obtain all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

due to the possible effects of the matters deseribed in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
paragraph, we are unahle to state whethar propar hooks of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement and the statement
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account as

maintained;

due to the effect of the related matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
paragraph, we state as below —

i. the financial statements do not comply with Ind AS B [refer to paragraph 4(xi) above];
Ind AS 17 [refer o paragraph 4(v) above] and Ind AS 109 [refer to paragraphs 4{vii) and
4{ix) above] specified under Section 133 of the Act;

ii. we are unable to statce whether the financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (other than those referred to in paragraph 6(ii)(d){i) above)
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

on the basis of written representations received from the dircetors as on 31 March 2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act except
that the then Managing Dircctor (no longer with the Company) has not provided such
representation to the Company. Accordingly, we are unable 1o comment as to whether the
aforesaid individual was disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Seation 164 (2) of the Act;

the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above;
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h.  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B, and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in aceordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  in view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion,
we are unable to state whether note 36 to the standalone financial statements discloses
the complete impact of pending litigations on the financial position in the standalone
financial statermnents of the Company;

ii.  in view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion,
we are unable to state whether the Company has made pravision, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foresecable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts (the Company does not have any derivative contracts); and

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForBS R & Co. LLLP
Chariered Accounleants
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Wz

Vikram Advani
Partner
Membership Number: 091765

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21 November 2018
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Annexure A to the independent anditor’s report

The Anncxure A referred to in independent auditor’s report to the members of Ricoh India Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(a) Except for the effects of the matter described in paragraph 4(v) of our main report, the Company
has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of its fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular program
of physical verification of its fixed assets. In accordance with this program, fixed assets except
for machines given on lease, were verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its fixed assets, As informed to us, material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In respect
of machines given on lease, as informed to us, the Company has relied upon the system of
monthly billing based on physical counting of the output of such machines as evidence of their
existence.

(c) We have been provided with the court certified copies / photocopies of the title deeds in respect
of the immovable properties. Based on these, the immovable properties are held either in the
name of the Company or Gesteiner India Limited which got merged into the Company in the
previous yvears,

The inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been physically
verified by the management subsequent to the year end. The Company performed roll back
procedures to arrive at derived guantities of inventories as at the year end. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification needs to be increased to make it reasonable considering the size and nature
of the Company’s operations. As informed to us, material discrepancies noted on such verification
{ roll back procedures, between the physical stocks and the book records have been properly adjusted
in the books of account. For the inventories lying with third parties, the Company has relied upon
the installation reports / delivery documents available with the Company as an evidence of their
existence.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of
our main report, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of
our main report, according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
given any loans, or made any investments, or provided any guarantee, or security as specified under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of
our main report, as per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of Scction 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
there under.

According to the information and explanations given o us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
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any of any activities / services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, puragraph 3(vi) of the Crder
is not applicable.

(vii) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us; on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company; and appearing in the books of the accounts as statutory dues paid
/ pavable, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion
paragraph 4 of our main report, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-tax,
sales tax, value added tax, service tax, duty of customs and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. In case
of goods and services tax the statutory dues have not generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit have not been serious. As explained to
us, the Company did not have any dues on account of duty of excise.

According to the information und explanations given to us; on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company; and appearing in the books of the accounts as statutory dues paid
/ pavable, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion
paragraph 4 of our main report, no amounts payable in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable excepl as mentioned below

Mame of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to | Due date Date of
statute dues (IMR lacs) which the payment
amount
relates
The Central | Goods and | 5.44 July 2017 25  August | 20 October
Goods  and | services tax 2017 2018
Services Tax
CAct, 2017 ) )
Income-tax Tax 0.24 May 2017 7 June 2017 | Not paid till
Act, 1961 deducted  at date
SOUTCe
Income-tax Tax 0.08 July 2017 7 August | Not paid till
Act, 19461 deducted at 2017 date
source

() Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4

of our main report, in particular paragraph 4(iv)(b) and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs
and value added tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except as mentioned below. As explained to us, the Compuany did not have any

dues on account of duty of excise.

Forum
Amount Period to where the
MName of the Mature of demanded | Amount pald which it dispute iz
statute dues ({INR lacs) | under protest relates pending

Income-tax Income-tax 242 = | Asscssment | High court
Act, 1961 years (A.Y.)

199%-00,

2006-07,

2009-10 ]
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Income-tax Income-tax 216 - | ALY, 2005- Income tax

Act, 1961 06, 2007-08 | appellate

tribunal

Income-tax Income-tax 739 o0 | A, Y.2002- | Appellate

Act, 196] 03, 2003-04, | authority

2005-06, upto
2006-07, Conimission
2007-08, er's level
2008-09,
2011-12,
2012-13,
2013-14,
2014-15,
2015-16

Finance Act, | Service tax 250 7 | Dec 2004- Appellate

1994 Sept 2006, authority
Oct 2009- upto
Sept 2010, Commission
Oct 2003- er's level
Mar 2004,

Oct 2010-
Mar 2012,
Oct 2009-
— Sept 2012 _

Sales tax Act | Sales tax 4,590 125 | Various Iribunals of
years VATIOUS
between siates
Financial
Years (F.¥Y.)

1984-85 to
2012-13

Sales tax Act | Sales tax 45,792 1,455 | Various Appellate
years authority
between upto
F.¥. 1981- Commission
82 1o 2014- er's level
15

According to the information and explanations given Lo us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders during the year except as mentioned in the
table below. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to Government during the year or as
at 31 March 2018.

(viii)

Particulars Amount of default as Period of default Remarks, if any
at the balance sheet
date (INR lacs)
Redecmable non- 733 March 2018 Interest on debentures
convertible
debentures

(ix) Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of
our main report, in particular paragraph 4(vii) and according to the information and explanations
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given 1o us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year,

(%) According to the information and explanations given to us, and except for the effects of the matters
described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph 4 of our main report, no material fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.

{xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Except for the effeets of the matters described in the basis of the disclaimer of opinion paragraph of
our main report, in our opinion and according to the information available as at present and
cxplanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year

(xv) Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of the disclaimer of opinion paragraph of
the main report, according to the information available as at present and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

M-

Vikram Advani
Partner
Membership Number: 091765

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21 November 2018
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Annexure B to the independent auditor’s report
Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act

We were engaged to audit the internal financial contrals over financial reporting of the Company as of 31
March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of ils assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Stundards on Auditing,
issued by 1CAIl, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil (o oblain reasonable assurance
aboui whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting, and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding and an examination of
whether internal financial controls over financial reporting existed, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statermenis, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our adverse opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relinbility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s internal {inuncial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, sccuralely and fairly reflect the
iransactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Imherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finuncial reporting, including the
pussibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Adverse opinion

As described in paragraph 4 of our main report, a large number of matters relating lo fnancial statements
have been observed and have formed basis of disclaimer in our main report and which clearly illustrate
that the Company had not established internal financial controls system with reference to standalone Ind
AS financial stalements and that whatever financial conirols with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements had been established were not operating effectively. Subsequently, the Company is
focussing on strengthening ils internal controls and the process is still continuing as at the balance sheet
date. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, following
significant aspects of material weaknesses in internal control system are particularly noteworthy -

a) Deficiencies in the IT control environment;

b) Deficiencies in maintenance of books of accounts and documentation including non-availability
of certain documents / apgreements;

c) Intarnal control systems relating 1o existence of contract work-in-progress;

d) Lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed with related sales;

e) Deficiencies in accounting of revenue recognition from leases;

£ Deficiencies relaling 1o accounts receivables including periodic reconciliations with customers,

apge wise analysis and application of receipts from customers;

E) Periodicity and process of physical veritication of inventories;

h) Deficiencies relating to accounis payables including vendor selection process and periodic
reconciliations with vendors;

i) Tdentification of contract costs / warranty costs from within traded goods;

i Process of disposal of property, plant and equipment.

A ‘material weakness® is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internul financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, because of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion paragraph of our
main report and in view of the material weaknesses described above, the Company has not maintained
adequate and effeetive internal financial controls over financial reporting as of 31 March 2018
considering the essential components of internal controls as stated by the Guidance Note issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

X
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We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31 March 2018 standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and these material weaknesses have inter-alia affected our opinion on the
financial statements of the standalone Company and we have issucd a disclaimer of opinion on the
financial statements.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Ao

Vikram Advani

Pariner
Membership Mumber: 021765

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21 November 2017
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Rigoh Lndia Limdted
Balance Sheot as al March 31, 2018
(Rugrers fre Sukda, wreieas odherwiie siaivd)

As i Az i Anal
Ry Fa March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprl 1, 2016
ASSETE
MNon-ourreni asyets
Pmperry, plant smad srpuipment 1 4,301 6038 [oRel it ]
Capial work-in-progress - B 5
Goodwill 4 . .
Dither Intangible asscty e 26T 192 4T
Financaal asscls

i Emvestrremis i 5 = .- -

il. Loana & 4,515 3,207 199

il Ondier fAnancls] sssess 7 14,334 11,571 14,111
Inonema X BEaeTE (ner) L] o 7T i
Oither non=cumént assets b 1, s 1,533 2,508
Tetal nen-vurrent azsels 9,007 17484 ESIET
‘Current nsen
Tvemiories L] I0.5T3 13328 47,174
Finanecisl amets

I Trade recebhmbles 1 175TE 55206 54,337

i . Cash wnd eash oquivaicnts 12 14, 405 3,585 & 088

fiil. Bank balances other than cadh and cash equivalents, above 13 6,657 1449 1,897

v Lowni & 5.133 2913 -

w, Dther fnsncial asscis 7 17,725 16,036 9,591
Chher curreni asssis ] 1114 £4.354 45,520
Total carrent arsets 113,257 156,531 168,431
Toiml nsvets 142,004 134,375 AT
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
Equéty ghare capital 14 (n}) X7 307 3977
Otbier " 14 {b) (hoR61%) (19,243} (PR ER1}
Total equity {104,641 {15.268) (94,914}
LIABILITIES
Mons=current Nabiities
Financial Habillties

i Bovrowings 15 (a) 20,000 . 20,000

il Crhier financinl Habilides H 448 k} o]
Frened mirna 17 494 040 3,693
Crther nam-curment lisbilites i 13 12 41
Taoral non-current lisbiliies 20,977 3,088 16,107
Curveni linbilithes
Financial liabilldes

. Hormowings 15 (b 129,528 106,603 214,501

ii. Trade payaliss 0

a) Total cutstanding duss of micro and small enierprisca L] n -
b} Toad ding dises of ored il than mico snd small enierprises B, 918 T, ™ 44079

1, Crer finameclal Hehilides 1] 1,718 21,843 44611
Provisons 17 754 ax e ]
Driber cusrent labilities % A7 £ 843 a588
Totnl current labilithes 136,208 106.583 I6R.2TT
Total Hahilities 247265 10%.641 204384
Taotal aquity and Eabilities 141624 194,375 180470
Bigmificant scenanting policies 2
The oies fiarm of these finanoinl staiemenis

Moo il et of o M ¥ar and on beball of Ricol India Limited

As per our report of even date anached

For BSR & Cs, LLPF -

Char fered Accournbanty

Firm Regiatrabion Mo, - 101I48WW =1 00022 Subliankar Lahlel AJiy Wamar Mishra PMamish Sab
Managing Direclor Cluel Financial Oificer
DM GECESIGE
Taken an record

Membership No, 091703

Plawe: Moida
Date. 21 Hovembes 20018

wiltinn Chnmadia
Resvlubion Frofessional
IP Fogn nuo. IBBLIPA-
00 V/IP-FOOGPAFI01 T-

A0 VWS TZI0

Flace: MNolda
Doate: 38 MNéovndmber 2018
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Ricah Indis Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Rupracs i dokhs, wnliss otherwise simhd)

Particulars Moles For the year endei For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2017
Income
Revenue from cperations 2 68,059 121,748
Other incoma 23 928 921
Total imeome 68,987 122,669
Expenses - s
Purchase of stock-in-trade and services 24 56AT3 #8,230
Changes in invemories of stotk-in-trade 5 12,353 15,866
Employes benefits expense 26 10,453 12,388
Finance costs a7 6,905 15400
Depreciation and amortisation cxpense 28 1,736 1,750
Other expenses 29 16,482 22,285
Total expeases 104,412 155,989
Loss before exceptional items and tax (35,415 (33,3200
Exceptional items a0 L) -
Loss before tax (29,315) (33,320}
Income tax cxpense ;
“Tax related 1o previous yeass (95) A0
Total tax expense (95} 660
Lass for the year (A) (B,4100 (32,6600
Other comprehensive income
Iberms that will not be reclussifiod to profit or loss
Remsasurameits of defined berefil halility! {assed) i3 8

Inceune tax relating o wbove meniionad item - -

Diher comprebensive income’ (loss) for the year, nef of tnx (B) 35 8
Toitnl ecomprehensive Income’ (loss) for the vear (A+B) (B2375) {32,652)
Logs per equity share of face value of INR 10 each 42

Bosic (INR. ) (215) (BZ)
Diluted (INR ) (225} (82)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial satements

For and on behalf of Ricoh Indla Limied
As par our report of even dale attached

ForBS R & Co. LLF
Charfered Acoouninnis
Firm Registration Mo, - 10124 8W/AN-100022

Subhankar Lahid Ajay Kumar Mishra
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
s DIN: DRORDIGE
Vikrnm Advani ]
Partner Taken ¢n reco
Membership MNa. 091765
Plnce: Moida

Date: 21 November 2018

rishm Chwmdin
Resolution Professionul

IP Regn no. IBBUIPA-D01/1P-

POOSS4/2017-2018/11220 RICOH INDIA LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Inolvency Resolution Process
By NCLT, order May 14, 2018)

Place: Moidn

Dmtz: 21 November 2018
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Ricoh India Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Significant accounting policies

1.

a)

Background of the Company

Ricoh India Limited (*the Company™) is a publie limited company incorporated and domiciled
in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office situated at
Linit No. 1132, 3rd Floor Building No. 11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg,
Andheri, Ghatkopar Link Road Chakala, Andheri East Mumbai — 400 093. The corporate office
of the Company is situated at 7th, 1 1th Floor, Tower 'B', Windsor IT Park, A-1, Sector 125,
Expressway, Gautam Budh Nagar, Noida, Uttar Pradesh — 201301,

Its shares are lisied on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) in India. The Company is
engaged in the business of Office Imaging Equipment, Production Print Solutions, Document
Management Systems and Information Technology Services.

An application for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP™) of Ricoh India
Limited was admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai vide order
dated 14 May 2018 under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (“IBC™) and hence
currently, Ricoh is under CIRP, Mr. Krishna Chamadia (IBBI registration number [BBL/TPA-
001/IP-PO06S4/2017-18/11220) was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“TRP™)
vide this order. Mr. Krishna Chamadia was subsequently confirmed by the Committee of
Creditors as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) in its meeting dated 15 June 2018 under the
provisions of IBC. The matter apainst the CIRP is pending for admission before the Hon'ble
MNCLAT vide Company Appeal (AT) MNo. 621/2018 and has been fixed for hearing on 11
December 2018.

The Section 20(1) of IBC reads as follows —

The fnrerim resolution professional shall make every endeavour o protect and preserve the
value af the property af the corporate debior and manage the operations of the corporate debtor
G5 & ZFOINg COncern.

Accordingly, the 1" has heen managing the operations of the company as a going concern.
Under the current CIRP period, the resolution professional has invited resolution plans from
prospective Resolution Applicants. Once a plan is submitted, it will be placed before the
Committee of Creditors (“CoC"™) and thercafler o the NCLT for approval. The date of
conclusion of CIRP was 10 November 2018 (180 days) which has been subsequently extended
by another 90 days.

Considering the above tacts and continuing operations of the Company, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act") and other relevant
provisions of the Act.
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The Company's financial statements up to and for the year ended March 3 1, 2017 were prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), notified
under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards has been applied. An explanation on how the transition to Ind AS has affected the
previously réported financial position, financial performance dnd cash flows is provided in note
44,

The financial statements were adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors and taken on
record by the Resolution Professional on November 21, 2018,

b) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Anancial staternents of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”). The
financial statemenls are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest rupees lakhs, unless
otherwise stated.

¢) Basis of measurement .

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the

following:
= certain financial asseis and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured
at fair value

= defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

d)} Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting cstimales which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement
in applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the arcas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

s Determination of the estimated wseful lives
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule
I of the Companies Act, 2013, In cases, where the useful lives are different from that
prescribed in Schedule II and in case of intangible assets, they are estimated by
management based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replucement, anticipated technological changes, and maintenance support,
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MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit abligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation,
actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of
the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-cmployment benefit
obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined
benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumiptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting period.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying wvalues of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax
credits, The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset as the Company has estimated
that it is not probable that fumre taxable income will he available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilised.

Provision for enervus contracts

Provision for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period
in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the
reporting date.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the closing date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from
the amount included in other provisions.

Lease classification

All leasing arrangements are classified as operating/ finance lease based on the terms and
conditions of the leasing arrangements at the inception of the lease period. Judgement is
required with respect to classification of lease as operating or finunce lease.

Taxation and legal disputes
Judgement is required to ascertain whether it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit required to seitle the taxation and legal disputes.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Provision for obsolete and slow moving invenltories are made based on the expected sales
and consumptions of inventory, which may differ from actual outcome and could lead to
significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statement.

Impairment of trade receivables and other financial assels

Trade receivables and other {inancial assets are stated net of appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables and other financial assels are
written off when the management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on
the expected credir loss basis.
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Lstimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and thal are belicved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Measurement of Gair values

A number of the Company”s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial .assets and liabilities.

Fair values are calegorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either dircetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unabservable —inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Il the inpuls used o measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
mnto different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized
in ils entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy al the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Shect based on the current/non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when:

It 1z expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period jor

It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Current asscts include the current portion of non-current financial assets. The Company
classifies all other assels as non-current.

A liability is treated current when:
s [t is expected to be settled in normal operating eyvele;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;,
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
maonths after the reporting period.
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current [inancial linbilities. The Company
classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

L I I

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has u!enntmﬂ twelve months as its
operating cycle for the purpose of curre 3 A5 s
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Significant accounting policics

a)

b)

Forcign currency
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies al yvear end exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

MNon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monclary assets and lisbiliies such as equily
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity
investments classified as FVOC] are recognised in other comprehensive income,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated atl historical cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 1= recognised in
profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

(In transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property, plant and equipment recognized as at April |, 2016, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Subsegquent expenditure
Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale assel,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged Lo profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred,
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<)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their
estimated useful lives and is generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s
usetul lite or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

The useful lives as estimated for property, plant and cquipment are in accordance with the
useful lives as indicated in Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 (Table 1 below), except for
certain classes of assels where different useful lives have been used (Table 2 below), which are
as per management’s estimate based on internal evaluation.

Tahle 1
Assel class = - Useﬁ.t_l_'l'lﬁ {(in years)
Leaschold land / Leasehold improvements | Over the period of lease
Buildings - 30
COfice eguipment _ 5
Computer hardware (end user devices) 3 -
[Flectrical installation 10 B
Furniture and fixtures 10 -

Table 2
Asset class iy o Usecful life (in years) i
Air conditioners - 10 N
Ilant and machinery ) 10 B
Computer hardware — servers and networks 5
Vehicles - 1
Machines capitalized and machines under | 3
facilities management contracts

Depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes
that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a
pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed off).

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amnount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losscs on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Intangihle assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition such intangible assets are carried at their cost less any accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment loss.
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d)

€)

Subseguent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Tranxition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
iis intangible assets recognized as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carryving value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Amaortisation methods and periods.

Intangible assets are amortised in the statement of profit and loss over their estimated useful
lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits of the asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amotised on straight
line basis.

The amortization period is as follows:

| Asset class Useful life (in years)
Computer software 5
Trademarks 3

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial vear and
adjusted il appropriate.

Impairment of assets

MNon-financial assets arc tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that sufferad
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Leases

Determining whether an arrangemeni contains a leaye

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.
At incepiion or on reassessment of the arrangement thal contains a lease, the payments and
other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and
those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. It it is concluded for a finance
lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlyving asset. The liability is reduced
as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Ax a lessee:

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s inception at the fair value e leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The padefling rental obligagens, net of finance charges, are
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included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liahility and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assels are
accounted for in accordance with accounting policics applicable to the assets.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
to the company as lessee arc classificd as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation o compensale for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Ax Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. 'T'he
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Lease incentives
granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as finance leases. In the circumstances whereby the lessor is a
manufacturer or dealer, the profit or loss from finance lease is recognized in accordance with
revenue recognition policy which is same as recognition policy of products sales. Asscls given
under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount ¢qual to the nel investment in
the leased assets which is the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower the present value of the
minimum lease payment computed at the market rate of interest. After initial recognition, the
Company apportions lease rentals between the principal repayment and interest income so as
to achieve a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the
finance leascs. The interest income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct
costs such as legal cost, brokerage cost ele. are recognized immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

f) Financial instruments
Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of the entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another enfity.

Recognition and initial measwrement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or 1ssue.

Classification and subsequent meastremend

Financial assets
Omn initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
— amortised cost;

— FVOCT — debt investment;

— FVQC] - equity investment; or
— FV'TPL
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A Mnancial assel is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and

is not designated as at FVTPL:

~ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

A debt investment is measured at 'VOC] if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

— The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
confractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Omn initial recognition of an equily investment that is nol held for trading, the company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOX] as described above
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assels: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. MNet
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognisced in profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These asscts are subsequenty measured al fair value.
Intercst income under the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

FVOCI Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequenr measurement and gains and losses

Financial liahilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial lability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classifisd as held-for-trading, or it iz a derivative or it is
designatled as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
~financial assets measured at amortized cost; and
~financial assets measured at FVOCI.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
are credil-impaired, A [inancial asscl is “credit-impaired® when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the finaneial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial assel is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

~ Significant financial ditficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— A breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

— The restructuring of 8 loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not
consider otherwise;

— It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The dizsappearance of an active market for a securily because of financial difficultics.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected eredit losses:

— Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has nul imercased signilicantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
evenls over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available withoul undue cost or
eftort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a ]'.ln‘.tbu.blllt}f -weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
the difference between the cash flows

83



-

Ricoh India Limited
MNotes Lo inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

due o the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects Lo receive),

I'resentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowanees for financial assels measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
canying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income thal could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the wrile-off. However, financial
assels that are wrilten off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecagnirion
Financial assefs

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the righls to receive the contractual cash fows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Balance
Sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liahilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are moditied and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rale method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assel to the gross carrying amount of a financial asser.
When calculating the cffective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses,
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Dividends

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right o receive payment is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will Mow Lo the Company,
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.,

(Misetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are oftset and the net amount presented in the Balance
Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultancously.

Non-derivative financial assets — service concession arrangements

The Company recognizes a financial asset arising [rom a service coneession arrangement which
it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the grantor of the concession for the construction or upgrade services provided.
Such financial assets are measured at fair value upon initial recognition and classificd as (rude
receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, such linancial assets are measured at amortised
Ccost.

h) Inventories

D

Inventories which comprise contract work-in-progress, stock-in-trade (including spares and
consumables) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, net of provision for
obsolescence. Cost of inventories include all cost of purchase, cost of conversion material costs
und other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, Cosls
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is done on an item by item basis, The basis of
determining cost for different categories of inventory is as follows:

Spares and consumables Weighted Average basis
| Stock in trade Weighted Average basis |
Contract work in progress Actual contract specific cost till date

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes eash on hand and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdratis. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Employee benefiis

Short-term emplovee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary beneflils that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees® services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as eu : Zam T

85



Ricoh India Limited
Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2018

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services
are rendered by employees. Retirement benefits in the form of superannuation is a defined
-contribution scheme and the contribution towards defined contribution. scheme is charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the Fund is due.

Defined benefit plans:

(i) Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The company's net obligation in respeet of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benetit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the caleulation results in a potential asset for the
company, the recognized asset is limited Lo the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds firom the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan
(“the asset ceiling’).

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in OCI. The company determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (“past service cost” or *past service gain’) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The company recognizes gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(i) Provident fund

‘The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund set up as an irrevocable trust. Doth the emplovees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The aggregate
contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment. The interest rate payable by the trust to the beneficiaries every vear
is notified by the appropriate authorities. The Company has an obligation to make goad the
shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest
rate. The annual contribulions paid by the Company to the provident fund are charged off to
the Statement of Profit and Loss. In addition the Company provides for the interest shortfall, if
any and is determined annually based on an independent actuarial valuation report.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise,
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(til} Compensated absences

k)

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilised it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.
Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employvee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement.
The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method, The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market vields at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
EBemeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recognised in profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefils are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits., The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those henefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves
the payment of terminations benelits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected
1o accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months afier the end of the

reporting period are discounted to present value.

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily [rom the sale of Ricob products and other IT
equipment, together with implementation, integration, maintenance and related support
services.

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue is net of taxes, rebates,
returns, trade allowances and amount collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognized
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement
with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from services is recognised when the significant terms of the amrangement are
enforceable, services have been delivered and collectability is reasonably assured. The method
of recognizing the revenue and cost depends on the nature of services rendered,

fa) Time and marerial contraces

Revenues and costs relating 1o time and material contracts are recognised as the related services
are rendered.

() Fixed price contracts

Revenues from fixed price contracts including implementation and integration services are
recognised based on the co nied contractu T nes which represent deliverables
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(@)

fe)

n

accepted by the customer or deliverables where the Company is assured that delivery will be
accepted by the customer and collectability is reasonably assured, The Company estimates total
costs and total revenues on such contracts on a regular basis. Where the estimate of total costs
exceeds total revenues in an arrangement, the estimated losses are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current
contract estimates.

Maintenance contracts

Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised ratably over the period of the contract.
When services are performed through an indefinite number of repetitive acts over a specified
period of Lime, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified period unless
some other method betier represents the siage of completion.

Service concession arrangemenis

Revenue related to operation or service revenue is recognized in the period in which the services
are provided by the company consistent with the company”s accounting policy on recognizing
revenue on service contracts,

Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generaling activities or deliverables are provided under a single
arrangement, each deliverable that is considered to be a separate unit of account is accounted
for separately. The allocation of eonsideration from a revenue arrangement to its separate units
of account is based on the relative fair value of each unit in accordance with the principles given
in Ind AS 18. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best
evidence of its fair value. In cases where the Company is unable to establish objective and
reliable evidence of fair value, the Company has used either cost plus reasonable margin method
or residual method to allocate the arrangement consideration. In cases of residual method, the
balance of the consideration, afler allocating the fair values of undelivered components of a
transaction has been allocated to the delivered components for which specific fair values do not

exist.

In instances when revenue is derived from sales of third-party vendor services or material,
revenue is recorded on a gross basis when the Company is a principal Lo the transactlion and net
of costs when the Company is acting as an agent between the customer and the vendor. Several
factors are considered to determine whether the Company is a principal or an agent, mosl
notably whether the Company is the primary obligor to the customer, has established its own
pricing, and has inventory and credit risks.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction eosts) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

The fair value of the liability portion of a redeemable nen-convertible debentures is determined
using a market interest rate for an equivalent redeemable non-convertible loan from an
unrelated party. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on redemption of the debentures. The remainder of the proceeds is altributable to
the equity portion of the instrument. This is recognised and included in sharcholders® equity,
net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract

|5 d:scharged cancelled or expired. ‘I'he difference between the carrying amount of a linancial
1 xtinguizhed or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,

ixsets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there
is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liabilily as current, il the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as
a conseguence of the breach.

m) Borrowing costs

Borrowings cost are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs)
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. General and specific borrowing costs that
are dircetly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

n) Income taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the eurrent period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a fransaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/no
longer probable respectively thal the related tax benelit will be realized.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liahilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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r)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, excepl to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or direetly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or dircetly in equity, respectively.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheot date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses
are not provided for.

Warranties
Warranty costs are estimated on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience.
Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the year of sale of goods.

(hmerous coniracts

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under
the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower
of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on
assets associated with that contract.

Condingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, ete. are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Contingent liahilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoceurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
abligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made
Contingent assets are not recognised however are disclosed in the financial statements where
an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually and if it
is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income
are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.”

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative conlract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
company enters into certain derivalive contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks which are
not designated as hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
and are included in statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest methad, less provision for impairment.
wbPig
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5)

t)

u)

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other pavables are presented as current
liabilities unless payvment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to
chief operating decision maker. The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as
chiet operating decision maker which assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions.

Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

= the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the company

= by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial vear

(i} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures vused in the determination of basic earnings per

share to tuke into account:

= the after income tax cffect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

= the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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MNote 4: Intangible assets

Compuier

Coodwill Trademurks software Total
Yeur ended Muarch 31, 2017
Deemed cost as at April I, 2016 - [ 470 an
Additions - - 75 75
Adjustments* - - - -
Closing gross currving wmount us of March 31, 2007 _ i 45 546
Accumulated amortisation
Opening necumuluted amorisulion - . o -
Amortisation charge for the year - 1 153 154
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2017 = 1 153 154
Met carrying amount az at March 31, 2017 - - 322 392
Year ended March 31, 2008
Gross carryving amount as at April 1, 2017 - 1 545 546
Additions - - 51 5
Disposals - - - -
Adjustments® - - (23) (23}
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 20017 o i 573 574
Accumulnted amortisation
Opening accumulated depreciaton - 1 133 154
Amortisation charge for the year - - 153 153
Dispasals - - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation - 1 306 307
Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 - - 267 267

*Adjustments represent amount written off during the vear.

The Company has elected Ind A5 101 exemption and continues with the carrying valuc for all of its intangiblc asscis as its deemed cost as at the
date of trensition i.e. 1| April 2016, Funther, the Company has mvalled the exemption provided under Ind AS 101 for not applying Ind AS 103 in
respect of business combinations prior to the date of transition.
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Ricah Indin Limited
Naobes iw mancial sialemmnis for ibe yesr ended March 31,2018
(Rpees ive lokhs, unlexs akorwize sraed)

Node 5 : Invesimends F¥on corresi)

Farticalars A i Murch 31, Asnd March 31, As mt April 1, 20046
ELL] 07

Noe-trade (unquated) inverments
Invvestmend in wguily imsl

39E910 (Merch 31, 2017: 192,910, April |, 2016 198,910 equity shares af
I Electronbes Limbed of TNR. 10 each, flly pald up [t coot less peovision
for dieninstion of INR, 3% laihy (March 31, 2017. INR. 3% lakhs, Apnil I, 2016
INE. 39 lnkhs) The casrying vaben of ihis investmeni is INE 1 {March 31, 2017
THR 1, Apeil 1, 1016 INR 17]

Agpregate cosi of unguoled nen-curreni invest » 19 ki

Aggregaie value of provision on nngquoled non-tarrent invesiments 18 e »

Nate 6: Lonns

FParticular Ag it March 31, 2018 Ag nl March 31, 2007 Asat April 1, 2016
Curreni Mon-rwrrest Current Mas-enrrent Current Mon-tarrant

Security depoaits

- considered good 511 4515 243 1,207 » G

- considened doabeful = 233 - LIS - 1,115
£133 S048 913 43 - 014

Leas: Allowance for doubtful security deposity . {733 - (1115 - {1,115)

Total loass 5133 4515 2913 3207 - 6.599
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Waote 8 ¢ Income lax nssels (net)

Farticulars
Income toc naset (net of provision for income )
Met income tax assets At vear end

96

AsatMinrch 31,3018 Asar March 31, 2007 Avut April 1, 2016
Adnd 2707 ™
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Ricoh India Limited
Notes to financial statemenis for the year ended March 31,2018
{Rupeex in lakhs, unless otherwics shated)

MNote 10 : Inventories

PFarticalars

As at March 31, 2018 As at Mareh 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2006

(vlureed af lowir of cost and met realisable value)

Seock-in-trade
Contmaot work-in-progress (lying with third parties)
Tetal inventorics

B.264 77,558 34,461
12,711 5770 14,733
0,475 33328 49,194

(i) Pravision for abéolescence and defective / damaged Inventories amounting vo INR. 8,752 lakhs (March 31, 2017: IMR. 7,202 Inkhs, Apeil 1, 2016: INR 12,514 lakhs hus been recognized in

the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Includes stock m tmngit INR 2,618 tokhs (Morch 31, 2007 [ME 2,764 lnkha, Apeil 1,2006: INE §,649 lakhs)
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Ricoh India Limited
Motes to inaneifl stntements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Hupees in fokhs, unleo ofierwise stoted)

Mote 11 # Trade receivables

Farticulars Asul March 31,2018 As af March 31, 2017 As at Aoril 1. 2016

Unsecared, considered pood 37,578 55,296 54,837

Unsecired, conzidered doubtful 30,449 8,761 8247
6E027 64,057 63,084

Less : allowance for expected credit loas (30,449} (8.761) (8,247

Total trade recelvables 37,578 55,206 54,837

MNote: The exposure fo financinl risks and-fuir value messurement reloted to thess financial instruments is deseribed in Note 32,

Mote 12 : Cash and eash equivalents

Particulars Asg al March 31, 2018 As al Mareh 31, 2007 As at April 1, 2016
Balance with banks
- 0N curTent Becounts 14,009 1,245 3,021
- on deposil accounts {with ariginal matunty of 3 months or less)® 38 400 103
Chexquez on hand 357 1,868 953
Cash en hand | 2 3
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,405 3,555 4,083

* Bank deposits represent fixed deposiis pleced as secarily for bank guariniees,
Mate: There are o repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as al the end of reporting period and prior periods.
Mote: The exposure to financial risks and fair value measurement related to these financial instruments is described in Note 32

Mote 13 : Bank balonees other than cush and cosh equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2007

As at April 1,2016

Unpaid dividend account 5 [3 [
Bank deposits (due for matarity within 12 months of the reporting date)

6,659 1441 (811
Taotal bank balnoces others than cash and cush equivalenis 6667 1,449 1897

* Bank deposits represent fixed deposits placed as security for bank guarantees.
MNote: The exposure to finencial risks and fir value mensurement related to these financial instruments is deseribed in Note 32,
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Ricol Indis Limited
Motes tn finangial statements for the year saded March 31,2018
(Rupews i lokhs, unless sherwine suried]

14 {a) Eguity share capital
Partirilars As at March 31, 2018 As i March 31, 20017 As at April ), 2016

. i ol shares Amuount Muanilur of shares Amount  Number af shares Amaunt
Authorised share enpltal
Equety,shares of INR. 10 each 45, 000,000 &, 500 45,000,000 4,500 45,000,000 4,500
7 2% Cumulative redesmahle preference shams of IME V0 zach S00.000 SO0 200,000 500 500,000 S0

45,500,000 5,000 430,000 S.000 45,500,000 5000

Issued capital
Exuily shares of [MR 10 each fully peid up 39,768,161 31,077 39,768,161 3,977 39,768,161 3977
Bubscribed and paid up capital®
Ew'l.}rm of IR, 10 each Asdky paid up INTE6961 3 39,766,961 3977 A0, TEA DG 1577

= On 15 October 2016, 10,935,792 ghares held hy WROE Chroup Limibod wern cancolled and se-msued sl o premasm.
*eyeludes 1,200 (March 31,2007: 1,200, Apell |, 2006; 1200) equity shases of INR. 10 cach have been forfeited valued ot TNR 0.04 lokhes

Recancilintion of the number af shares and amount outstanding at the beginaing and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As al March 3. 20018 As at March 31, 20017

= Number of shares Acrmarnd Mumber of shares Amount
Equity shares outsianding at the beginning of the vesr A9 766,961 vy 39,766,961 EX 7l
Add: Eruity shares issoed during the ysar - 5 10,858 792 1,006
Lesz: Equity shares cancelled during the vear - - 10,959,792 1,096
Shures putstanding at the end of the year 39,766,961 EX 5 E] 28, TE6 961 AaT7

Rights, preferenres nnd restrictions attached to equily shires
Thmwhu|mﬂpd|ﬁaf¢mmm:pun1n:ufm!'Il}p:rlhlm.Mﬂmﬂdhumhmﬂnﬁmbﬁmmlwmmmﬂﬂmm
time tn time. In tha event of liguidalion , the equity sharchaldess are eligitle 1o roceive the remalning nssets of the Compamy afier distribution of all pref ifn propartion (o their

Shares of the company held by heldingfultimate helding company

"As at March 31, 2014 As ot Murch 31, 3017 As st Agril 1, 2016
Number of shares Mumber of shares Mumber of shares
Ricoh Compamy Limited, Japan 18,310,578 1B 10578 18,310,576

{lmmediate and ultimate holding company)
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% af the total number of equity shares in the Company

Farticulars As at Mnrch 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 Agat April 1, 2016
Mumber of shares e halding Mumber of shares % holding  MNumber of shares %% holding

Name of shareholder
= Ricoh Coempany, Limted, Japan 15,310,578 A6% 18,310,578 68 18310,578 46, 04%
10,859,792 FEL 10,959,702 X% 10,959,792 27.56%

~MRG Group Limifed

(5] '
@ %
+
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Mate 14 [b): Other exquity

As al Awril 1, 2016

Particalars A al March 31,2018 As at March 312017

Roetsined carning (226,468] (137,058) (AL )
Securities premium 111,204 1110 =
Capital rescrve 1,100 1,103 7
Capital redemption rescrve 500 500 S00)
Deteentune redémplion reserve 3000 S 5,000
Other oommyprebonsive moome . 43 B .
Total other equity (10461 4) 15,243) (98.851)

Manure and pirpose of other reseryes

Extainesd enrmings
Eeiained enmings represend the scourmulaied Insses that the Company has till daie

Parliculnrs As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31,2017
Opening balance [137.058) (104, 3598)
Het loss for U yes {594 100 £32,660)
Closing balance (226,468} {137,038)
Securities premium
Securities premmium represends share issued at premium less share issus expenses. The nessrve is alilised in soeondence with the provisions of the Companies Ao, 2003
FParticular As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
melubdm 110204 -

iizm on equiry sheres re-issued - 110,204
Chﬂl‘bll.ln:l 111,204 111204

Capital reserve

The réserve ks created based an sistutory requirement under the Companies Acl, 2013 or the erstwhile Companies Act, 1936, The reserve includes INE, 109G lakhs cresbéd on cancellation and re-
igtue off 10,859,792 abares beld by NRG Group Limited during Ue vear eisded March 31, 20017,

As al March 31, 2017

Farticulars As al March 31. 2018

Opening balanee 1103 T
Add: Cancellation of shares - 1O
Closing balance 1,103 1,108

Capitnl redemption reserve

The capltal redemption rescrve wns eresled as per the requiremenis of the Companies Act, 1956 on redemnption of 7.5% cusmulative rodecmable preference shares,

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Dooning balieos S00 EIT]
Closing balnnce S00 SO0
Debeniure redemplion reserve

As per the Cormpanies (Share Capital end Debentures) Rules, 2014 (; ded), the O s required o ereste deb

ption reserve oul of profits, which i svailable for paywment of

dividend, equal 1w 25% of the amount of debenmures fmued. Accordingly, the Cnmnmhld appeoprinted 24% of the debentures tssued which would be utflised for redemption af debennancs

during its maturity,
Particulars As ot March 31, 2018 As nt March 31, 2017
Dptning balance < 000 5 000

Clusing bal 5,000 5,000

Dither comprehensive income

This roprosonts items of ineome and cxpense thal aro oot recognized in profit snd loss but are shovn in the statoment of profit and loss s "Oiber
comprehensive income”, This comprises actuarial gain / loss on remensurement of defined benelfit plans.

As ad March 31, 2017

Parliculars As ot March 31, 2018

Ohpening, halanes [ =
Remeasurcenents of defined benefit lishility! (mset) 33 L}
Trans{es bo | sarmings - -
Dleying halance 43 ]
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P BHELE LT
Nates to financial macements for the year ended March 31 2018
(Reqpeey I Laiths, unless atherwine steied)

Mule 15 () Nonecurrent borrowings

Particulars T Mamritydate  Tersuel AsatMarch 31, At st March 31, AsatApril I,
repayment 1018 M7 1016

Redeemalble noa-converiible delaniure
Unsecured
Ricoh Avia Pocific Pre Limited - fellow subsidiery 20,774 200156 11,133
2,000 umits) March 31, 2017: 2,000 units; Apdl |, 2006 2000 units) of 7.3% per ansum nan-cunvertible 10-Sep=20  Sangle repayment
dohentures af INF. 10 lskhs sach were alloited on 10 Sepiember 2014, These dshestures gre unsecored, Hmed, o the end af the
nﬂmuﬂuuﬁknﬁmmmluwmwmmmnmm&bmhmuum temmmn
payment om halfl yearly basds. The del A with mame texms and cosditions and with &
modified Imm:rltal‘mpumdmduglh El.htn.yu:ml'.r-la for o forthar dursticn of 3 years

0T 0,16 aLLxa
Less: Curress! maturities of long-term barrowings {included in noie 16) - 20,000 .
Less: Interest accrued (incheded in note 16} ™ 184 1133
Total on-currant borrewings 20,000 .. 10, 104
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Ricoh Lndis Limited
Motes to financial fratements for the year ended March 31,2008
My im fobher, sevlans ofhersdse e

Muie 15 (b Curresi borrewings

Partlenlaes An st March 31, 2008 A st March 31, 2007 As st Aprid I, 2016
Uaseenred

Lasni prpayabis an drmind

¥ram banks

Cash credi N 24,103 EA O
Amainst ook debvis = = DT
Vendor finencing - - 1K 383
Buywr's liow of crmdid - - 19,185
Warking eaplez] lann - 0,500 47,787

Fram risted party
Flech Compeny, Limied 129,578 - -

From athers
Trads recmivabls finansing. - - BRI

Taotal nerrend borrowings 129,538 106,503 T4 So0

* Pummmnt to wiheirmwal of finsncial suppar w te Compesy by Ricoh Congpany Limshed, Jspan (RCL, shirsme parent company) during the sersem nansial year, all the kaans sopsassiing from the hasks in the asture of cagh credit asd
Wﬁlﬂiﬂwm‘mmmhm beter of crodil (SULC) e by RCL, were demanded by ihe bankers inchuling CiliBlank M.A_, BNP Paibas, HEBC, The Bk of Teloe-Miubishi UFT Lid and Mixks
Bamd Lid ROL paid s 2 2 thw banks and accondiagly, e outsanding amouni peyable ta ROCL is mrw incheded wrier ursecured lsess. |s atwence of fnrmal werma snd eondirinng, na ineres has heen sesrmed
B the Compasy an stich barmutnge

Far the year ended 11 Murch 2017, lsans repayshie om demasd inslude esah eredir snd notking eapini derasd lsang mnctloned by Citiflenk NUAL BNP Paribar, HEUC, Tha D of Tokyo=Mitmtishl LD Led. aned M1imaler Blicnic 1Bd.
Thee s avalled in lndiss Fapocd, Duning e yeur coded 2] March, 2007 U briges daics sanged fron 7000 1o 16200 pe anoum (Previea rear £40% 10 163500 per axnam). The s erodit and working ospital loan wers backed by
Eanndby lemes of eradly ghven iy 1he uilmae paren sompany Rish Compary, Limied, lapss

P he yeas ended 31 Mak 1016, Lows copayabls un demand inchads canh credit. overdiall. buyer's eredit, vendor ficancing. M ing amd g capiml desmand |oan meeinned by Ciifiark MA., BNP Paribes,
HERC, Deutsehe Bank AL, Bank ol Amerien HLA., The Bank of Tekpo-itsebiahi UF] Lad , [adeting Banke, Miruho Tank Lid. ﬂhlwnmu_d mummum:wmum;nmmqm,
mmmmIltmmmmihmmhtlﬁ“mmﬂ_‘wﬂ:hnﬂ“hwvﬂDﬁyﬁm-ﬂ]lmhlihlﬂ—mnm
eurrency lsans ard foeelpn corrency loans g G 540 10 |6 9080 per snrmem and 0635 1a | 969 per ananm reapectively,

Mt dehe recaneiliarion

Ap ai March 31 I919 Aj ot March 31, T0IT __As s Apeil 1, 2016
Cash and cash pquivaicnts 14,405 1,355 4, 0E3
Curvent barrowings (129, 528) {106, BT} (204 401)
Mo eatvent bovrowings (iecluding cusren maturities of bosg trn bonowegs) (20,0000 {20,000 {20,000
Mt debrt {138,133) {123, 04k} (2 A1H)
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l.bwil-lll-m
i figpncial satoments for the vear eaded Manch 31,2018

mqun-. Lakhs eileit sbrceiee matadl
Hoee 17 1 Frovidea
Partirulany At Marek 35, D& Ay m Murch 31, 3007 A mn agrdl 1, 3006

Cursesi Dios) current Lsrrent [ian curresl Lnrrest L TE T T
Previslons for smploves banafiny
Cranain n W ] - win
Carceniated iheeni e L) 1 W '™ T
Eenplows schaza 11 2 & 2 sl
Tarad pravislens fer emplayee benefio (A) 190 e I Lisl FE LR
Diber privishme
Warramiy M 7 - = -
[ LFrd - il ] 1459 = Ap0g
Tuusl mber provisisas (1) B E— — FT I s A0¢
Total provives: (A +1) ] aw [L]] 280 - — T
Froviiion b smideves banafiey
fih Befined beachil plamy
Frovideas fund;
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frly Risk exneanre
Theeaih ity dcfinad bonafil plass, e Company i sxposed 1 8 susber altale. foe rro siesifess slwilich we deiled beloo
Ratewest Fiste i | Thee dafimed bl ohdigation calculuted et & diosnd rate Based 08 goweranent hoady. Bond yeld daes have lmere relatisasineship with defised heseflr shiliguisn.
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March J1. 3018
Defired bemallc shlisnsoes
Foce] 1 bis] 14 1 Alg |
i FiL] 1 153
Mmreh 11,3017
Defied beneflt shlbmos
ETH) M1 1k 158 17
FiH 27 L] 188 7
Mwreh 0, 2016
Defficed beaellt shlizanm
i 191 1 18 18 FIEd 984 |
15} el 190 19 unr 3 |
Caher nravhism
Mﬁrw
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Previvian for (nerous cosfracts
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(i) Movenieats in rovidks
Mavemeni in eazh ele of prevmen during the finanoal yesr, are set oul below:
Warrasiies  Oaereul Contracts
Provishon as on | April 2016 = €004
Additios duriag the yesr n IR
Reveral devieg the year . {1.549)
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‘Warrasiie
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Uhilizarinn during the yesr - (V6
Provision as al 31 March 2018 L] 237
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Ricoh Indin Limited

Motes to finnneinl statements for the year ended March 31,2018

(Rupees in lakhs. unless otherwize siated)

Note 18 : Dther non-current linbilities

Particulars Asoat M.ur:_l.: 31,2018 As at March 31, 20017 As at' April 1, 2006
Uinearned revenue 13 4 4
Advance from customers 20 28 39
Total other non- eurrent liabilities 33 32 43
Note 19 ;: Dither currenl linbilities
Particulars As at Muarch 31, 2008 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2006
Statutory dues
= Tax deducted ar source 206 212 444
- Provident fund and employee state insurance 59 T B4
= Value added tax - - 633
- Other statutory dues B 7 7
Advance from customers T0 5344 5,184
Unearned revenue . 9,331 10 214
Total other current labilities 9674 2643 6,566
\
@ —
o v
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Moie 20 : Trade payahles
Particslyes

Ax mr Mareh 31, 2018

A ar March 31, 2007 Ag At April 1, 2016

Trade payshles
=10tal putstasding dues of mro s small enlorprises (Rafer to now 1K)
= tetal cutslaneding duzs of crodion olber Usan micro aad small encerprises
Tonal track payahles
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Ricoh [ndia Liullﬂl:ll
~  Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Fupees in lakhs, unless atheraise sioted)
Nute 21 : Deferred tux assets/ (linbilities) (net)

1d) The balance comprises temporary differences atiributable to:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016
Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment and intengible asscts 5,174 3,968 -
Carry forward lax loss 51,256 42 664 -
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables and advances 10,538 2,707 -
Provision for doubtful deposits 11,828 o4

Provision for employee benefits 360 464

Others 378 &9

Total deferred tax nssets 79,534 S0,794 -

Deferred tax assets recognised = = =

Ag ot March, 31 2018, March, 31 2017 and April 1, 2016, the Company did not recopnise deferred tax assets on tax losses and other temporary differences because
o trend of fubure profitability 15 ool yel elewly discemnible, The above tax losses expire ol various dates ranging from 2024-25 10 2027-28, This excludes depreciation
loss which can be carried on for indefinite period.

1) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Farticulars Faor the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Profit before income tax expense (59,315) (33,3200
Tax rate (%) 35% 35%
Tax at the Indian tax rate (30,910) {11,531}
Tux ellect of wmuunts winch are mol deductible (laabde) n calculeting (2,208) (1,027)
taxahle income:

Losses which are not allowsble on which no deferred tax has been created (28,644} (10,504)

Income tax expense

)
o
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Ricoh India Limited

Maotes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2018

{Rupees in fakhs, unless otherwize stoved)

Mote 22: Revenoe from operations

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Sale of goods 41,664 71,085
Sale of services 23,490 40,366
Other operating revenues
Finance income 2722 1,993
HRental income 183 7R3
Exchange gain (net of exchange loss) - 1,302
Liabilities’ provisions no longer required writlen back - 6,215
Total revenue [rom operations 68,059 121,748
Note 23: Other income
Particulars For the vear ended Far the vear ended
Muarch 31, 2018 Murch 31,2017
Interest incomes
~fram fixed deposits T4 443
=from others 105 in
Mizccllancous income 59 107
Tatal nther incame 918 o1
Note 24: Purchase of stock in trade and services
Particulars Far the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Purchese of stock-in-trade # (Net of subsidy / reimbursements received 53,617 15404
INR Nil (previous year: INR 4,940 lakhs) X 3
Purchese of services 2,856 9 R06
Total 56,473 88,230
# Includes provision for doubtful balances with customs auwtharities of INR Wil (March 31, 2017 INR 981 lakhs) and halances with customs
authorities written off of INR Nil (Manch 31, 2017 INR 769 lakhs).
Mote 25: Changes In Inventories of stock-in-trade
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Stock-in-trade af the beginning of the year 33,328 49,194
Less: Stock-in-trade at the end of the year 20,975 33,328
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 11,353 15,866




Ricoh India Limnited
Notes ta Ninancial statements for the year éended March 31,2018
{Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26: Employee benefils expense

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, wages and bonus [net of subsidy / reimbursement received INR 0,974 11,696
20 lakhs {previous year: INR 336 lakhs)]
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 17) ki) 408
Compensated absences 99 53
Staff welfare expenses 68 141
Total employee benefits expense 10,463 12,388
MNote 27: Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended  For the yvear ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest on
- non convertible debentures 1471 1,560
- short term borrowings 5,351 13,039
- others 83 713
Met loss on foreign currency transactions to the extent regarded as borrowing costs - 158
Total finance costs 6,905 15,470
Note 28: Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1,583 1,596
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 153 154
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 1,736 1,750
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Ricoh India Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
{Rupeas indabhs, unless ctherwise stated)

Mole 29: Othey oxponsed

Particulsry

For ihe year eniled
March 31, 2N8

Fur the yeur ended
Murch 31, 2017

Prewer

Rt {refer note 35

(e of subsidy reimbursemens received IR Nil (previous year: TNR 37 Lukhs)
Advertisement and business promotion

(et of subrady/ reimbursements received INR Nil (previous year: INR 734 Lakhs)
Riepuirs and muinienancs

~Buildings

= Oehers

Insurarce

Rates and taoes

Lagal and profiessional fees*

(Met of ssbsizly iemburssiments received TNR Nil (previoas year: TR 3 Lakhs)
Cammission on sales

(Met of subsidy’ reimbursements received TNR. Bl (previous year: INR 2 Lakhs)
Freight, clearing snd forsnrding

(et of subsidy’ reimbursements received TNR Kl (previous year: TNR 2 Lakhs)
Communicalion expenses

Travelling and conveyancs axpented

{Met of subsidy retmbursements roosived [NE Nil (previows year [NE 206 Lakha)
Outsyurcing expenses

(et of subsidy’ reimbursements roccived IMR Bl (previous yoar INK 2 Lakhs)
Recruitment expenses

Printing and stationery

Bank charges

L= om sale’disposal af property, plant and equpnsent

Advences, deposits writien ol

Property, plant and cquipment vritien off

Provision for doubtful deposity

Dad debts written off

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Training expensss

Muscellaneous Fxpenses

Exchange loss (el of exchange gain)

Corporate social responsibility expenses (rofor mote 30)

Wirmnity

Tomal other expensey

Includes payment to auditors (exclusive of service tax | GST)
As muditor

Sradistiry awdit foes

“periaining o curmend yesr

~pesimiming i previows year

In other capacity

(ther maters

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses

MNate Mk Corporate social respomstbility expenditure

66
4,786

a7

257
T3
142

1457
iz

2,301

724
0

3803

EBaa

BEgn

353
4,944

47

1{1]
192
19
1,720
1274
2512

1,09
Ti4

4105

1648

155
124

11

291

Particular For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 201K March 31, 2017

fmmﬂmﬂﬁwhmwmwmmmupﬂmusﬂfﬁcm - 4

Anount spent during the yea - 4
- 4
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Mate 31 ¢ Falr value measuremeni

Fariulur A a1 Mlasch 31, 3018 A% i Miarch 31, 3017 At al April 1, 3006

1) Financisl asset a1 amorbed con Carrying vabue Fair value Camying value Fair value Camying valus Fair value

Trade receivables 1737 1131 13304 25,208 HET 24,507
Loanscurrem | Hem sures) 8640 8648 £120 120 4800 8,859
Cash and sk equivalents 14,405 14,405 3,533 3,518 4,081 1,083
Bank balances other than cesh and cash equivales 8667 6687 1448 1410 1.807 LRs?
o T m—— pp— 31089 11080 19,607 18,607 24,003 I
Tatal 100,357 100,337 106,027 104,027 91,718 91.71%
2) Pinaneisl Nabilty ot mmortised sost

Borrewtngs feurrent | Hom currani) 149,928 148,528 108,603 104,603 234,301 234,501
Tende payakles B4 BEL4 71LE1 71511 443 43T
ey flzancind lisbillsies (murres / mom surrent) 1164 3k 13,331 33331 1417 3417
Tutsl 134,308 36,308 200,843 200,543 181.397 21307

ﬁ'l'hlﬁnhll'ﬁll.‘nnﬂl_h-dlllkdl_-Induddlthlmuwhﬂml_tmﬂ]d.hw hlnmmmlh.lp-dﬂ. dbnhlhlfhlduﬂmnhl\.h-..mﬂ
largzly

s d hial ede reesivabion. sk aed vash equivaleonss. vthe Fank b ESTE ST wilir B ial aeamia. b ings. wade payeblos &l ober Onascial labilsie app yiag

du b ke gherl-lem saluitics of Gess insthemenle

(1) Discoumi rate wsed = determining fir valwe. Tha inlewst reie ssed 1o discoust estimaled futern cash floves, whese applicable, are based on the i |k ing rade of | uﬂﬁh—nlulhblh'-h
averags mahe sl ol borewisgs of te Conpany and s cere of [bacia) s is e aveags pmarket mic of sl ol reiod The T Wﬂﬁ- d b valus I | mxasis o i

Iiabilithes meing e beot and most relevant data available, The fur value of the: fnancial aupets and llabilites b MMIWMHMNMMNM hlmmmwﬂmpﬁm
othaer than in & forcod or liquidation sake.

[} D vative. ! d contract mrc moanmed ot fir valne through peofit and koes § Lewel 2] The mark i mearket boss on pech contrects amounting 10 (MR Ml ([INE M) as st Sarch 31, 2017, INR 363
Inkche ma 8 April 1, Mmhhﬂmmmmwlmﬂlﬂnhmwmm
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Ricoh India Limited
Notes to Ananchal stntements for the year ended March 31,2018

{Hurrees in fakl, unless eiharwise saled)
Mote 33: Cagital management

Risk management

The Company's policy is to maintain & strong capital base so a8 fo maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustiin fulune development of the busness The
management elso momiors the return oo equity.

The Board of directors regularly reviews the Company’s capita! siracture [n light of the economic eonditions, lusiness strategies and future commitments. For the parpose of
Company's capital management, capatal includes iscued share capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves, Deit includes pon-convertible debentures and vanous
overdrall fisalies.

The objective of the Company's capital management structuse is o engure sufficient liquidity to support its business and provide sdequate retams 1o sharcholders, The management
mosutoss the long term cash flow requirements including extermally imposed espiind mquinements of the business in order to pssess the mequirements for chanpes o the capital
structure to meel the sid ohjective, As pun of this monitoring, the monagement considers the cost of cupital und the risks sssecimted with each class of caphal end makes adjusiments
to the capital structure where nppropriete, in light of chenges in ecomomic conditions end the risk chamcteristizs of the underlying assets. The funding sequirement is met through a
cambination of equity, intemal sccruals, borrowings or undertake other restructuring sctivities as approprisse.

The Company is currently expericocing liquidity ixsacs and is facing difficulty in managing the capital to support ity busincas due to signifizant erozsion of the Company's net weorth.
Also refer to note 1.

The Company's copital and nal debd weme mada up s follows:

ASal A al Asal
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Total debt {Long term and shoet term borrowings) 149,523 126,603 234,501
Less: Cash and eash equivalents 14,405 3,555 4,083
ﬁ.!]!ﬂtd nel debi 135,123 123,048 130418
Total cquity T104,641) (15.265) (94.914)
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio {1.3) 1) [24)

Mote 34: Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the business of office imaging equipment, preduction print solutbons, document management systems and information technalogy services. The Beard of
Directors during the vear were the Company's Chief Operating Decigion Maker (CODM) within the meaning of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’. CODM examined the Company's
performance, reviews intemal management reponis, allocats resounces based on analysis of various performance indicator of the Comgany as & single unit. The CODM cansidered 1hat
the sabe of poods i an integral pan of the delivery of services whether it be by way of Ricoh product or third party product. The CUHDM aleo considened that the delivery of IT servioes
1% an adpacent activity that extends the Company's integrated offening to customers. Tharefoce, there is only a single reportable segment for the Company as per the teq s ol
Ind AS 108 Operating Segments’
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RICOH

imagine. change.

Ricoh India Limited
Nates to financia! statements for the year ended March 31,2018
fRumets in lakhe, unless otherwive shaled)

Note 36:-Contingent [Eahilities

1. Claims ngsainst the Company not scknowledped as debis
Sales tax®
Service tax®
Incame tnx
Rent cases
Carsymer olaims

b, Guarantees outstanding

¢, Claims from vendors nod scknowledged as debis

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

50,383 40,384 9,385

250 ENE] E

1,157 735 g
: 0 0
10 101 2
26,971 31,165 33,847
75097 - i

* The Company has deposited INR 1,678 lakhs upto March, 31 2018 { March 31 2017 INK 1,267 lakhs; Apeal 1, 2016 [NR 979 lnkhs) which have been shown under "(ther assets”

apadust variois demards dispated by the Company as mentioned abave.

The Compaty is involved in varous law suds, olams and procesdings that anse in the erdinary courss of business, the outcome of which {3 inherently unceriain, Some of these matters
malude speculative and frivolows olaims for substontial or indeterminate amounts of damages. The Company reconds  Labilicy when it is both probable that a loss has been incurned and
the nmount con be reasonahly estrmated, Significan judgement is required to detemmine both probability snd ihe estimated amount. The Company reviews there provizions asleas
quasierly nnd ndjust these provisions sceordingly to reflset the nmpact of negofintion, settlements, rulings, advice of legil counse] and updated infarmation. The Company belizves that the
amount or estimated range of reasonebly possihle koss, wall not either individunlly or in aggregate kave o muterinl pdverse effect on the business, financial position, results of the Company

or eash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal nnd other contingencies s ot March 31, 2018,

Cuamnsees have been given by the Company 10 customens againat performance of machires, earnest money depsil Against lenders. The gearantess hive been given in fhe normal course

of the Company’s operations and are not expected to result in any loss to the Company, on the basia of baneficianes flfilling their ordinary commercial obligations.

The Company does not expect any reimbursemnents i respect of the sbove contingent linkilitics,

Node 37: Transfer pricing

The Company has a comprehensive system for maintaining information and decuments as required by the transfer pricig logislation under seation 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
Since the law roquires existence of such information and documentation to be contemnpormneats in nature, the Company has such recards rnmmmrqu.mlmd:rlrw The

mankgement ir of the opinlcn that its transsctions are at arms leagth 5o that the aforesaid legiatation will not have any impact on the fi

Inceme tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Note 38: Dues to micro and small eoterprises

Principal smourt due to suppliers registered undar the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) and remaiming unpaid &= at year end

Trade payables
Capitn] preditors
[nterest dus to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remiining unpaid as at year end

Principal umounts prid to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act, beyord the appointed day
during the year

Interest paid, other than under Saction 16 of M3MEL Act, to supphiess registersd under the
MEMED Act, eyond the appoinisd day during the yes

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Inezrest due and payable sowards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, for payments
already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for sardier vears

Mareh 31, 2018

L

Ly s puart

Mareh 31, 2017

trly on the amoust of

March 3, 2016



Riih lndis Limited
Motes do Nmencialetxizmenis for the year ended Mards 31,2018
(Regees in ks, evoeps fior shove dv and if csherwenr stated)

Mote 391 Lenses
(A} Finames leases (A a lesaor)
T Company procades Maltifusciion Devices, Laser Frimers, Proj and Lomy Pergpheraly on Snance esse to 52l ‘The machines are provided for the major pery of the eximaed psefll 18
ol the mmei
1) Recondlistion berwesn the grss lmse reoovesbin and the present value of minimum leese gy (et lesrn dhile’) m1 the Bafance sheet daie are s fnlloes
March 31, 3008 March 31,2007 As 2l April 1, 2006
Girges imvestoent in leaw (LR g I3 L3HAIT
Unesrmed Finesce Incoms 1,715 5,_311'_ 1,353
et lvesr=aen in leass 15,845 AT 453 1018
(IT} (hross |ease recoverable snd the present valus of mink lese pay ivable (met | erable) ai the Fal sheer dare fior the following perinds sre s follows
i Kl Rt ik L
Tfwrek 31, 3008 Mwreh 31, 2007 April 1, 2016 Tlarch 31, 3018 March 11, 7007 April 1, 2006
Withis pee yess 400 (B ]] 2421 5,405 11,142 150
Later thas oo year and not lates thas five yean 1370 19,184 e ¢.650 16311 12078
Later thas five yesrs . - * -
14,770 Az 985 15412 13,055 IT AN 14019

{8} {3

The tenure for Saance leage i mnimum thres vears.
Aftes the expiry af the comiract e lesses hus the right (o parchase the machine

Operating beased (As a lessor]

The Compasy provides Muttifanction Devices, Laser Primess, Propeciors and Companes Periphenals on cencellable operating leave for a pericd which [ mubitantially beis thes the estimated usetal Ble of the machise.
The monthly rectal accriing 10 the Company 00 such besses b recopnised a1 iacome n the Statement of Profit asd Loss. Dzicg the year, an amount of INK 153 lakhs (March 31, 2017 INE 783 bk} was

recanised s rental incoee kad kave been lncluded @ revenue from operations In he Stalemest of Frodit and Lom .

March 3, 2018 March 5, 2007 As s Agril 1, 2016
(Giress cammying amoust 202 (K113 928
Accsmamlaiod deprecislicn (ELL] &M .
et Canrying amount k] 1248 wan
Deepreciation for the year ™ 2] .

"Thse Bsture minimum lesse receivables under pon-cincslable operating base ace s follows:

March 31, 1K March 31, 2817 A at 1, 2016
Recesvmible within ons year i) 58 8
Hecevabbe berwees ot ind five year 3 Jag bt
Recevrably slter five yman - = :
) [ 141

(B} {5y Orperaring beases (Ax 8 benee)
Thee Company has takes oo bease, pressives for males and senvics offices, warehouses for songe of leventories and sccommodation for s empbeyeet wader cancelably and sos-cincullalie operating Isse. The lsinm am

rengwilis on b periodic besis af the uplice ol boll the lssur and lomor. Dusing itbe yesr smwun) of INF, 4,785 lakha waa

(elirch 31, 2007 INRE. 4,744 k).

A) The premizes are typically on o lesss for a perind of | to 4 yesrs;
B) Thee warehomses sre on s lease for period ef | ta § yesey; snd

) Erpleryes scenmmundation ere on jeme for s pedod of 1103 years

Sablening lynm persined in any of the shove memioand lesse smsgemenn

Non cancellshle opersting |esse rental payshls {minimum |ease prymen:) under thesa benses are e follaws:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 3017 April 1, 00%

Within one year 1,045 1en 2338

Lazer than ona paar burt noe liter than five yean (5111 L& 1084

Lazm e live yeain — - = ¥
LE6E 1008 3,333

122
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RICOH

imagine. change.

Ricoh Indla Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
{Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if atherwize siated)

Nofe 40: Exceptional items March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Provision for doubtfuul supplier advances # 32,000 =

Allowance for expected credit Inss # 1,719 -

Provision for onerous contracts written back # {970)

Balances writien back / wrillen off * (943) .
53,890 -

* The Company has during the yedr carried out o detailed examinition of certain receivable and payable balances and as a result the Company has written hack
the balances aggregating to INR 760 lakhs (pavable balances of INR 3,266 lakhz, net off receivable balances of INR 2,506 lakhs) where the necessary details /
documents were not availuble with the Company vr where the amounts were long outstanding and hence, not considered recoverable / payable. The details of

such balances are as follows ;
|Particulars Write off| Write hack
Liahilitizs / provisions no longer required written hack - 3,248
Property, plant and equipment wrinen off 353 =]
[Balances with government authorities written off 1,000] >
"Ralances receivahles from customers written off 340 2
Security deposits written off ) 477 o
|Other miscellancous balunees 318 201
| 2,506 3,449|
# Also refer (o note 43
258G
(=) (ol
-
@ v
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Ricoh India Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year cnded March 31, 2018
(Rupees in lakhs, except for sharve data and {f etferwise stareal}

MNote 41: Signiffcant evenis
The following significant events / situarions came up hefore the Company in it lookout for resurgence:

On 27 October, 2017, the ultimate parent company, Ricoh Company Limited (RCL), decided 1o withdraw the financial support
which was given by it 1o enable the Company to meet its financial obligations as and when they [l due. This financial support
was over and above the capital infusion of INR 112,300 lakhs which was provided by NRG-Group Limited in the immediate
preceding financial year, The ubove support was extended vide issue ol "stand by letter of credit' (SBLC) by RCL 1o the banks,
whercby RCL agreed to pay the entire loan which was covered under the SBLC.

Further, soon after the withdrawal of financial support and as agreed, RCL paid the guaranteed outstanding bank loans
{including interest and fee, wharever applicable) covered under SBLC to the wune of INR 129,528 lakhs. As a corollary, the

loans which were pavahble 1o banks are now payable o RCT.,

On 29 January 20138 the Company voluntarily filed a petition for Insolvency under section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, 2016 before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai. Further, this petition has been admirted by the
Hon’ble Tribunal vide its order dated 14 May, 2018, The Company [led the petition to initiate Corporate Insolvency
Rezolution Process againgt itself due to default commitied in repayment to its operationa] creditors,

Further, upon acceprance of the bankrupicy petition, the affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution
Professional, Mr. Krishna Chamadia, appointed by the Hon'hle Narional Company Law Tribunal by Order dated 14 May, 2018,
under the provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional. (IP Regismration Mo, IBRI / TPA-001 / IP-PO0G654 / 2017-
1%/ 112200, Mr. Krishna Chamadia was subsequently confirmed as the Resolution Professional (*RP™) by the Comminee of

Creditors in its meeting dated 15 June, 2018 under the provisions of IBC,

Furthermore, in line with Para 10 of the said NCL'T Order, moratorium shall commence under section 14 of the Insolvency and
Rankruptey Code, 2016, which prohibits the following:

a) The instimaition of suits or continuation of proceedings against the corpomte debtor including execution of eny judgment,
decree or order in any court of law, tribunal, arbitration panel or other authority;

b) Transferring, encumbering, alienating or disposing of by the corporate debtor any of its assets or any legal right or beneficial
interest therein;

a) Any action to foreclose, recover ar enforce any seourity interest created by the corporate debior in respect of its property
including any action under the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act,

2002,

d) The recovery of any property by an owner or lessor were such properly is occupied by or in the possession of the corporate
debtor.

On 12 Fehruary 2018, the Securitiez and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) issued its Interim Order. These Orders were issued in
response 1o the letler, suo-maoto written by the company to SEBI, intimating them of the falsification of accounts, which was
highlighted in its forensic review of hooks of accounts.

Further, SERI in its Interim Order issued directions, whereby SFRI appointed an audit firm to conduct a detailed forenzic audit
ol the books of accounts of the Company from financial year 2002-13 onwards till the date of the Order. Based on the
information available with the Company, the audit firm was to submit its forensic andit report with the SEBI by 30 September
2018, There has been no further communication from SERI in this regard.
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imagine. change.

Ricoh Tndia, Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
{Rupees indakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mofe 42: Earning per share

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(a) Basic (loss) per share (In INR)
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company (225) (82)
{b) Diluted (loss) per share (In INR)
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company (225) (82)
{c) Nominal value per share (In INR) 10 10
(d) Basis for calculating earnings per share

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
(Laoss) for the year attributable to the equity holders of the company (89,410) (32,6600
used for basic and diluted (loss) per share
(e) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator (nos.)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator 39,766,961 39,766,961
in calculating basic earnings per share®
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator 39,766,961 39,766,961

in calculating diluted earnings per share*

* On 15 October 2016, 10,959,792 shares of NRG Group Limited were cancelled and re-issued al a premium. There is no effect on the
weighted average number of shares due to this cancellation and re-issue,
The Company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic (loss) per share and diluted (loss) per share are the

SHITIL.
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Ricoh India Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Rupeer in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 432

A. Select key assumptions / estimntes

In the absence of past trends, reconailintion with customers / certain vendors, reliable estimate of future developments eto, the Company has used
asgumptions / estimates for nccounting in certain orens such ns revenoes contracts, quentities and valuation of inventories, provision for doubtful receivables
in respect of outstanding trade receivables / supplier advances and provision for cenain employee benefits. These assumptions / estimates primarily include

loventories

- To arrive at the quantitics of inventories as at the year end, the inventories were physically verified subsequent to the year end and roll back procedures
were carried out to record the identified shortages / excesses as on 31 March 2018;

- Basis certain trends of sales and purchases, inventories were categorized into slow and non-moving inventories;

- Provasions were created for damaged, slow moving and non-moving inventones basis mmputs from the sales and marketing teams with regard to realisable

valuesz of such inventories,

Aroounis receivables

- The allowance for trade receivables considered doubtful of recovery aggrepating to INRE 30,449 lakhs (TNR 23,797 lakhs during the current vear) has been
created on the basis of the best estimate of the Company, actunl receipt and information available 1l dote from the customers;

= The expected credit loss model as required under Ind AS 102 has not been followed considering the current state of affairs and the diverse nature of
businesses and customers,

Supplier advances

= The provision agninst certnin supphier advances considered doubtful of recovery apgregating to INR 32,006 lakhs (MR 32,006 lokhs during the current
wear) has been created on the basis of the best estimate of the Company and information / confirmations available till date from the vendors;
- Mo provision has been created for claims made by the vendors to the extent considered frivolous and not tenable (refer to note 36);

Revenus confracts

= The Company has computed revenue and related costs from ITES (Information Technology Enabled Services) contracts which invoelve upfront supply of
equipment and thereafter related services like warranty, maintenance, training ete. in accordance with Ind A3 17, Ind AS 1% and Ind AS 113;
- Fair values of tote] consideration under the contracts have been allocated to ench separaiely identifinble components, The fair value of esch component has

been determined based on the mest appropriate method i.c. relative fair values / cost plus o reasonable marging
- Expected liguidated damages have been ascertained basis the details of actual performance an the contracts vis a vis the terms;
- Interest mtes for the finnnce lense element in the contmet is considered at the market mie of interest or implicit mte within the lease, whichever is higher,

= Drizcounts are allocated to the multiple clements in proportion of their fair valucs;

Provision for employee benefits

= The withdrawal rate of employees for the purpozes of computation of provision for post employmen: benefits and other long term emplovees benefits is
taken on the basis of recent trends and the fiuture business plans of the Company.

In the view of the management, the actual outcome vis a viz the amounts recorded basis aforementioned assumptions / estimates is not expected to be
materially different from that recorded in the financial statements,

B. Prior period adjustments

As o result of the sigmficant corrections! anulysis mude by the Company during the current year, the Company hes identified expenses{net) amounting to
IMR. 6,548 lakhs as those relating to prior periods. However, in absence of the exact details with regard to the periods to which these pertain, these have not
been adjusted in the previous year fipures! opening equity as at April 1, 2016.
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imagine. change.

Répah India Limited
Mistes to financial senteosents for the year ended March 31,2018
(Raypwes Iy fafs, wrnlees ol sbmindl

Mnde 4d: Tranaltion in Ind AS

These are the Coerpey’s first financisl ssasements propered in aooordence with Ind AS.

The Commpany bae sdopied Indles Accounting Standards (led AS) & sotified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, resd together with Rubs 3 of the Companies (Indien Accounting
Sandnrds) Rules, 2015, with effact from April 1 2017, with trnsition date of 1 April 2016, persumnd fo notifiontion ssued by Misistry of Corpomnte A 5ais dated Febuary 16, 7005 Acoordicgly,
the Snsncial ststements foc the wear ended March 3, 2018, the compantive fnformation prescated £ these financial statermenty for the year ended Mareh 31, 2017 and the opening Ind AS babance
sheet n at April 1, 2005 kave been prepared in scoordance with Ind AZ,

In prepating opeisg Ind AS balsnce sest, the Company has adjusted amounts repomied previcasly in the financial statements prepaned i accordance with the accounting standands notified under
Ceenpanica (Accousting Sranderds) Rufles, 2004 (ns amended), o5 notified meder secticn 133 of the Act ("Previos GAAPT) and other relevant provisioms for the A An explanation of law the
erandition from Previcus GAAP 1o [5d AS has affecsed cur fnancial performance, cash flows and finsmcial posithon [ et out fn the fullowdng tbles and tw notes.

A Exsmptions avalled and exceptiona
St cart Bedow gre the spplicable Ind AS 100 opticeal iptions and datory exveplions applied in the rensition fom previous (FAAP o Ind AS, o= ai (e ennsiibon date, e Apil 1, 2006,

Al Ind AS optioaal exeaipibens
ALl Deemed cosi

As per Ind AR 101, an extity may cloct (o uso carrying values of all Progerty, plat mnd equipment, Capitsl work-tn-proges snd inlangible stsels o recoguised in ihe Bnencisl siabenvents & af thi
date of ransition o Ind A5, meanmed ns per the Previoas GAAP mnd use ther an i deemed cost ax w the dwie of mnsition. Accondingly, the Comprny hey elected in mesmes Properry, plant and
wquipment, Capital wirk-fo-progisst sod inlagible sissti o Wl Previous GAAF carrying values. Refer Note 3 and 4,

A1 Leases

Appendix C 1o Ind AS 17 requires an entity in axsee wheiber a eontmel or srrsmgement contning @ leese. 1n seeordance with Ind A% 17, this nescsament should be onmmicd o el the inceplion of the
cantract of erangarent. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessnent oo the basis of facts sad circamstances existing at the date of transition 1o Ind AS, exceps where the effect 8 expected
1o be not material. The Company ke elected to mpply this examption for seds comlreds’armmngmuenis, '

A3 Past business combinatkons

The Comguery has sleciemd not to apply Ind AR 103 Besiness Comnbinations reiroapectively to pas huumbuﬂin hmﬂbﬂemmm#ﬁpﬂ 1 2014, Congequently, the
Company his kept the same classification For the past business combinations w in 2y previous JAAP fi

Al lnd AS mandatery ¢xceptions

ALI Estimares
Undes Ind AS 101, an entity's sslinates in accadaice wills lad AS st “tee date of vansition to lad AS' (e, Apnil 1, 2016) or “the cod of the companative pericd presented in the ensity’s firat Ind AS
fapmein] sestrments’ (e Merch Y1, 3017), s the case mmy he, shoidd ke ponsistend with estimates mads for the samo dato in dunce with tha Provieus GAAP, The Compeny's Bnd A5

14 af ihe transition date &re consisent with the estimates made as af the same date puade ooder Previogs GAAP.

AL Classificathon and measurement of fnaocial assely
Ted AS 100 mmﬂyhmﬂﬂmﬂmdwmmhnih facts and cirumstances that et of b defe of transstion (o l=d AS.

AL Derecognithon of Anarclal assers and liahiltles

Trdd AS 101 requives w Arss-tine adopter o apply the de-recognition provisions of Tnd A% 109 prospectively for transactions cccurring on o after the date of atiem ta [nd AS. H Ind AS
101 allows & firsi-time adopter to apply e de-recognition roquircments in tnd AS 107 retraspectively from o date of the entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109
bor fimancinl sxcels and fnancial Babilitbes darecogaised a8 & resull of past traneacticns was obriained af the time of initislly accounting foc thoes trasaactions,

‘The Company b clectod w mpply the de-recognicion provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively o (be date of tansilion (o [nd A,

B, Recomciliation between previous GAAT anid Ind A5

Aa per i exsessmont done by the Compamy, thero wern no material adjnstmonts roguired on ansiifon from previous GAAP to Ind AS exceps achuarial gain of INR 8 lakha fi the year ended March
31, 2017 which has now been clagsified under other comprehensive income. Accordingly, there is no difference [n the mmowi of toml equity s ot April 1, 2004 and March 31, 3017 &y compared
the Gnancial sistewsnls prepared uodes fe previoo GAAP. Howerer, (ke composcnts of the ficancial statcrcnts fox the consparative peniods have been regrouped and reclassified i peccrduce with
rd AS.

C. Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracty with custamers

O 28 March 2018, Miststry of Corporate Affidrs (“MCA") hay notifled the Ind AS 114, Revenue from coerace with cagtomers, The eore prisciple of the new siendand is that an emicy
should recognose nevanus to depact (e tramafer of proaiied good of services (o customers i s smount (hat reflects the considention wo which the entity expects bo be entitled in
exchange for those goods pe services. Under Ind AR 115, an entity recognizes revesme wisen {or 21] a performance obligetion is safisfied, 1.0 when "aontrol’ of the goods or scraoes:
tnderlying the particalar perfonmasce obligation is tramsferred to the customer. Morneover, the new standard requires enhanced disclospres about the nanee, ameat, tming and encermainry
of reveuse and cash Aows ariding Tom the entity’s contracis with custores. The aflective date hrdnptmnﬂniﬂ Iiﬁammmw:IMImmll.m
Compary will sdopt the sandard en | Apnll 2018 The Cnmqamy i in process of evalearing the mepact e she smmd
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Ricoh-Tndin Limited
Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Rupew, i lukh, wnlezs atherwine stated)

Mote 45: Disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes (SHEN&)

During the previous year, the Company had specified bunk notes ur other denomination notes as defined in the MCA notification G.5.R. 308(E) dated 31 March 2017 on the
detnils of Specified Bank Notes {SEN) held and wansacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. The dencmination wise SBNs and other notes as per

the notification ame grven below:

Particulars SDNs Other denomination notes Tatal

Cloasng cash in hand as on § November 2016 1] 3 9
Add : Permitted receipts 1 23 L
Less : Permilted paymenis 0 14 14
Less : Amount deposited in banks 7 10 17
Ulosing cath in hand a8 o 30 Decenber 2016 0 1

{n} the term “Specified Bank Nates” shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Depanment of Econamic
Affairs number 5.0, 3407(E), dated November 8 2016

A3 per our report of cven date aitached

For B S R & Co, LLP For and on behalf of Ricoh India Limited

Charieresd Accountams
Firm Registration No. - 101243WIW-10122

- i
Vikrnm Advani ﬁ, F Subhankar Lahiri Manish Sehgal
Pariner m Nﬂiﬂﬂ v Managing Director
Membership No. (B1765% DIN: 0E0E0368
Place: Moido + Taken on record

Date: 21 November 2018

ishon Chamudia - o
Reselution Professional
i : RICOH INDIA LIMITED
g}ﬁmuﬁﬂﬂf (Company under Corporate Insoivency Resalution
1018111220 By NCLT, order May 14, 2018)
Place: Heida

Dads; 21 Movember 2018
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RICOH INDIA LIMITED

Regd. Office:1123, 3“Floor, 11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Andheri Ghatkopar
Link Road, Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 093
CIN: L74940MH1993PLC074694
Email: ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in, Website: www.ricoh.co.in
Tele: 022-66833000, Fax: 022-67032099

PROXY FORM
Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

Name of the Member(s):
Registered Address :
Email ID :

Folio No/ Client ID :

DP/ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of ....................... Shares of the above mentioned Company, hereby appoint:

1o NAME. .o AArESS... e Email 1d.......oooii
SIgNALUMe....e e e, or failing him

2. Name. ... AAArESS... i Email 1.
SIGNALUME.....eii i or falling him

3. Name. ..o AAreSS. ... Email 1d.......ooooi
Signature.... ..o or falling him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 21 December 2018 at Hotel The Maridor, 131/B, New Link Road, Chakala, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400 099 at 10:00 AM.
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutions For* Against*

Ordinary Business

1. | Adoption of Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31% March, 2018 and the Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended on that date along with the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon

2. | Nottofillthe vacancy caused due to retirement by rotation of Mr AT Rajan, Non Executive

Director.
Signed this............... day of................. 2018 Affix
. revenue
Signature of Shareholder................c.ocoies il stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)............ccoevvinnnn

Notes:

This form of Proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

For the resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 24Annual General Meeting.
*|t is optional to put a "X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box.

If you leave the "For’ or "Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she
thinks appropriate.
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RICOH INDIA LIMITED

Regd. Office:1123, 3“Floor, 11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Andheri Ghatkopar
Link Road, Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 093
CIN: L74940MH1993PLC074694
Email: ril.secretarial@ricoh.co.in, Website: www.ricoh.co.in
Tele: 022-66833000, Fax: 022-67032099

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No. DP ID

No. of Shares held Client ID

| certify that | am a Member/Proxy* for the Member(s) of the Company

| hereby record my presence at the 25 Annual General Meeting of the Company at Hotel The Maridor, 131/B, New Link Road, Chakala,
Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400 099 at 10:00 AM.

Name of the Member/Proxy*

Signature of the Member/Proxy*

Note: Please fill up this Attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.
*Strike out whichever is not applicable
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Ricoh Way Values

B Customer Centric
Act from the customer’s perspective

I Passion
Approach everything positively and purposefully

B Gemba
Learn and improve from the facts

I Innovation
Break with the status quo to create value without limits

Teamwork
Respect all stakeholders and co-create value

B Winning Spirit
Succeed by embracing challenges through courage and agility

M Ethics & Integrity
Act with honesty and accountability

4 "

RICOH

imagine. change.

CORPORATE OFFICE: 7th, 11th Floors, Tower 'B', Windsor IT Park, A-1, Sector 125, Expressway, Gautam Budh Nagar, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201301
Tel: (0120) 4582900, Service toll free number : 1800 103 0066 & Email: ril.info@ricoh.co.in

REGISTERED OFFICE: Unit no. 1132, 3rd Floor, Building No. 11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Chakala, Andheri East, Mumbai-400 093
Phones: +91 22 66833000 (5 Lines) Fax: +91 22 67032099



